Conneciing people, pay & periermencs

{IIIWIHII!HIIIHIINHIIIIlII\HIIJ J

08055255

f___JH

2008 Annual Report

Received SEC

AUb 0 4 2008

PROCESSED
AUG 062008
THOMSON REUTERS

Washington, DC 20549




Delivering outstanding results

m@u@g@@@n@@z@mm !
and relietsls seluitions for e toughsst compenseltion end telent rmenegement dhelienges i metched '
by our desire CUSiomer Savics seifistizciion.

PERFORMANCE SUCCESSION COMPETENCY
MANAGEMENT PLANNING CONSULTING

9 o=




Connecting people, pay and perfornmeances

Selerycom is & leecling provictr of en-dermend cele, selitwers and sernvices to el employers
dlesign competitve Bullk with cermpensaiion and CompeiEney
dleta &t the cors, our prodlucts ellow businesses fio ecmminisier lsnt MEREGEMENT ProsEsess, ?
sireamiing werldiiows ene implement best precitiees quickly end cost elitsciively

-~ Market leadership

MARKET PAY COMPENSATION
| PRICING ANALYTICS PLANNING

‘; scl cary ¥




A Year of Achieverment and Growth

28 consecutive quarters of revenue growth
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Kent Plunkett
President, CEO and Chairman of the Board
Salary.com, Inc.

To Qur Shareholders:

Fiscal 2008 was a year of superior achievernent and growth for Salary.com. In our first full year as a public company, we
grew our leadership position in compensation, acquired a market leadership position in competency management and
emerged as a leading provider of performance management solutions. Thanks to our customers and employee-owners,
revenue grew 50% and the company generated $8.4 million in cash flow from operations. In fiscal 2009, we plan to
leverage these achievements into a new growth chapter for the company.

Financial Highlights

Our leadership position in compensation management resulted in strong financial results for the 2008 fiscal year. We
posted our twenty-eighth consecutive quarter of revenue growth and fifth consecutive year of positive cash flow from
operations. Our full year revenue increased 50% to $34.5 million, continuing our pace of exceptional sales growth. Even
as we continued to invest in our infrastructure and preduct development to drive future growth, we increased cash flow
from operations by 175% to $8.4 million. Total deferred revenue increased 34% to over $22 million.

Our subscription-based, on-demand business model provides a high degree of visibility and predictability inte our
financial results. Our sales model, growing economies of scale and the fixed cost nature of our data assets power our
growth and allow us to penetrate new markets with targeted offerings, acquire new customers and support continued

investment in innovation.

Growth Drivers

We see the widespread adoption of technology by businesses to solve their human reSource challenges as the key
growth driver in the human capital software space. Two-thirds of employers rank “retaining top talent” as their greatest
future challenge. The impending labor shortage and lack of leadership succession are the next two major challenges
facing employers today. Close to 75% of organizations rely on manual, disparate systems to set and track employee
goals, review performance and administer pay. While nearly 90% of employers view competency management as
critical to effective perfoermance management, atmost 65% do not have competencies well implemented in their

performance processes according to Bersin & Associates.

The lack of technology to automate and integrate different HR systems has become the largest challenge to employers
that want to deploy pay for performance and integrated talent management philosophies. According to IDC, only 30%
of the market has implemented performance management software, leaving a large, un-penetrated segment in need of

technology solutions.

At the same time, on-demand software sclutions are fast becoming a mainstream platform choice for purchasing
human capital management software. Over the past year, IDC reports a 20% increase in market share for
software-as-a-service (SaaS) performance management solutions. Salary.com is well positioned to benefit strongly from
these trends in fiscal 2009.



Market Leadership

QOver the past year, Salary.com continued to expand its leadership in on-demand compensation and performance
management technology and services by serving more markets with a broader product offering. We grew our market
share position in the largely untapped market of businesses with fewer than 5,000 full-time employees with the addition
of a new small and medium business (SMB) sales team focused on selling a medified version of our enterprise products
tailored to the needs of the SMB market. We propelled Salary.com into the global compensation marketplace with the
addition of the IPAS global technology survey and the successful launch of cur Canadian consensus dataset.

In the broader talent management arena, we expanded our position as a leading pay-for-performance provider with the
addition of a best-in-breed succession planning module. Finally, we established ourselves as a teading provider of both
competency content and competency consulting with two successful acquisitions. We expect the talent management
market {0 evolve substantially and the demand for integrated performance management suites and competency
management to continue to increase dramatically over the next 24 months. We believe we are well positioned to exceed

customers’ demands to serve all of these needs.

Product Highlights

Customers of all sizes turn to us to help effectively and efficiently manage pay and performance. Our highly trafficked
website, diverse product offerings and efficient sales model provides a competitive advantage to reach and serve all
markets with a full suite of services. In our 2008 fiscal year, we expanded our product offerings to new audiences in
compensation, performance and competency management.

Enterprise Compensation Management

CompAnalyst®, our flagship product offering, continues to produce strong demand and this year we extended our
reach into international markets. Our IPAS® survey offers a unique single source of globat technology jobs for over
70 countries, and in March 2008, we launched our CompAnalyst Canadian data set with over 650 benchmark jobs
in a single source. In addition, we added the SMB sales team and proved we can grow sales to this audience. We
intend to maintain and extend our leadership position in proprietary compensation data and software while
expanding our capabilities to link rewards to performance in the emerging performance management market. We
are committed to product and market share leadership in fiscal 2009 and will continue to cross-sell and up-sel|
customers across our large customer base.

Enterprise Performance Management

In fiscal 2008, we gained momentum in the market as organizations recognized the value of integrating their
compensation and performance solutions. We overhauled our entire platform to be a highly configurable Ajax, .Net
2.0 product and began selling our new succession planning medule. We faunched a small business version of our
performance suite and are building sales mamentum. We offer employers of all sizes easy and affordable ways to
integrate pay, performance and succession. We continue to win performance management suite business where
pay functionality, ease of use, configurability and total cost of ownership are key considerations. We believe that
the overall category remains a green field opportunity and Salary.com is weli-positioned to win given its expertise in

content-rich software delivered on-demand.

Enterprise Competency Management

Our recent entry into the competency market was fusled by the acquisitions of Schoonaver Associates and ITG
Competency Group—two of the premier providers of competency content, models and consulting services. With
these acquisitions, we created one of the largest libraries for both job function and leadership competencies,



launched our competency consulting group and closed a million dollar consulting assignment. We believe the
competency market is becoming one of the next hot sectors in tatent management and have laid the foundation to
be a full service provider of content, software and services.

Small Business

Our website enables us to sell enterprise-quality data and software to small businesses at prices that fit their
budgets. We now offer professional editions of our enterprise solutions for both compensation and performance
management and plan to aggressively cross-sell these products to our registered database of nearly 50,000 users.

Media

For individuals, we offer perscnalized salary reports to help them value their worth. We provide advertisers with the
unique ability to reach a targeted audience based on factors such as industry, job category and income. Each
month our network of over 500 partners, covering more than 2,600 discrete sites, attracts more than three million
users seeking help on managing pay and performance. Although competition is increasing in this segment of our

business, we believe that we remain the dominant category and brand leader.

Customer Success

Today, we have a large and growing enterprise base with nearly 2,800 enterprise subscribers, up from over 1,800 in
2007, and including over 25% of the Fortune 500. In the past year, we gained momentum in selling larger and more
complex deals with six new deals over $250,000 in lifetime value and 24 transactions with lifetime contract vatue over

$100,000. Our customer retention rates remain strong and highlight the value of our solutions in making our customers

such as Applied Materials, Bertelsmann, Goya Foods, Scotts Miracle-Gro, Singapore Airlines and Rolex Watch USA
winners in the war for talent,

Looking Ahead

OQur growth strategy has been working and we will continue to invest to build a dominant leadership position in

compensation management, expand our human resources footprint, and develop new on-demand software solutions to

help our customers compete for talent and inspire cutstanding performance. We expect to grow our business by

continuing to expand our proprietary datasets, enhancing our sales capabilities and selectively acquiring key companies

across our three enterprise business lines.

Our performance this year would not have been possible without our talented and committed employees — most of
whom are shareholders themselves —and our other shareholders, customers and stakeholders. Thank you for making
Salary.com s0 strong. | am privileged to work with you. As we look forward, | am confident that we are well positioned
to continue delivering growth and creating long term value for our shareholders, customers and employees.

Yours truly,

Lo B

Kent Plunkett
Chief Executive Officer
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PART 1

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

We are a leading provider of on-demand compensation, performance management and competency
management solutions in the human capital software-as-a-service (SaaS) market. Incorporated in 1999 as a
Delaware corporation, we offer content-rich software and services to help businesses and individuals manage pay
and performance. Companies of all sizes tumn to us to effectively and efficiently compensate, promote and
manage their employees. With our help, companies can put the right talent in the right roles to deliver business
objectives and individuals at all levels can determine their worth.

Our highly configurable software applications and proprietary content and our consulting services help
executives, line managers and compensation professionals automate, streamline and optimize critical talent
management processes, such as market pricing, compensation planning, performance management, competency
management (a competency is a set of demonstrated behaviors, skills and proficiencies that determine
performance in a given role) and succession planning. Compensation and competency content are at the core of
our solutions, which deliver productive and cost-effective ways for employers 1o manage and inspire their most
important asset—their people.

We integrate our comprehensive SaaS applications with our proprietary content to automate the essential
elements of our customers’ compensation and performance management processes. Our approach links pay to
performance and aligns employees with corporate goals to drive business results. As a result, our solutions can
significantly improve the effectiveness of our customers’ compensation spending and help them become more
productive in managing their employees. We enable employers of all sizes to replace or supplement inefficient
and expensive traditionai approaches to compensation management, including paper-based surveys, consultants,
internally developed software applications and spreadsheets. Our customers report gains in productivity,
reduction in personnel hours to administer pay and performance programs and improvements in employee
retention.

Our data sets contain base, bonus and incentive pay data for positions held by more than 80% of U.S.
employees and similar data for the top executives in more than 12,000 U.S. public companies. Our flagship
offering is CompAnalyst, a suite of on-demand compensation management applications that integrates our data,
third-party survey data and a customer’s own pay data with a complete analytics offering. In 2008, we expanded
our CompAnalyst market data and added new geographic coverage in the Canadian market with more than 650
benchmark jobs. Qur Canadian content has already attracted a diverse set of customers across multiple industries.
We continue to build our IPAS global compensation technology survey with coverage of technology jobs from
clerk to chief executive officer in more than 70 countries. In addition, we are expanding our compensation data
services for the consumer goods retail sectors (i.e., apparel, footwear, Juxury goods and specialty retail).

Our on-demand performance management solutions offer customers effective and measurable ways to
attract and inspire outstanding employee performance. TalentManager, our employee lifecycle performance
management software suite, helps businesses automate performance reviews, streamline compensation planning
and link employee pay to performance, TalentManager helps employers gain visibility into their performance
cycle and drive employee engagement in the process through a configurable, easy to use interface that can be
personalized by users. Using TalentManager, employers can improve their performance management systems
and mode! the critical jobs skills they need to achieve their business goals.

In fiscal year 2008, we acquired the assets of ITG Competency Group and Schoonover & Associates. We
now offer one of the largest libraries of leadership and job-specific competencies and a leading job-competency
model to manage competencies by position. During 2008, we launched our full employee performance suite that
integrated compensation, performance and succession functions around job-based competency content. Our
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on-demand system helps line managers improve their ability to engage, develop and deploy their talent with
learning references, coaching tips and progress journals. The integrated suite offers a cost effective way to
automate performance and develop a strong internal pipeline of leaders.

In addition to our on-demand enterprise software offerings, we also provide a selection of applications on
the Salary.com website. The applications deliver salary management comparison and analysis tools to individuals
and small businesses on a cost effective, real-time basis. For example, in 2008, we launched TalentManager
Professional, which offers enterprise-quality performance management at a price that smaller companies can
afford. We also offer a professional edition of our CompAnalyst product suite for smaller companies with less
than 500 full-time employees in either report format or through subscription services. We market to individual
consumers providing career services, financial information and premium compensation reports personalized to a
consumer’s unique background. Our network of sites generated an average of more than three million unique
visitors during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.

We sell our enterprise solutions through our direct sales group, primarily using the telephone and web-based
demonstrations, in annual or multi-year subscriptions. Over the past fiscal year, our enterprise subscriber base,
companies that spend from $2,000 to more than $100,000 annually, has grown from 1,850 to nearly 2,800
customers. We draw our customers from all industries, inclueding such companies as Singapore Airlines,
Heineken USA, Comcast Corporation, E*Trade Financial Products, Sony Ericsson Mobile Communications,
Yale New Haven Health System, Scotts Miracle-Gro and Rolex Watch USA.

From April 2001 through March 31, 2008, we achieved 28 consecutive quarters of revenue growth. During
the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 we achieved positive operating cash flows of $8.4 million, $3.1
million and $1.8 million, respectively. During these periods, we have consistently incurred operating losses,
including $12.3 million for 2008, $8.3 million for 2007 and $3.0 million for 2006. As of March 31, 2008, we had
an accumulated deficit of $40.0 million.

Industry Background

Compensation and Performance Management

According to IDC’s Talent Pulse Survey (May 2007), more than two thirds of employers rank retaining top
talent as their top future talent challenge, followed by the impending labor shortage and lack of leadership
succession plan for their organizations. To respond to these challenges, employers are planning talent initiatives
to develop their staff, reduce tumover, align goals, identify top performers and implement pay for performance.

For most organizations, the primary goal of compensation planning and performance management is to
design programs that attract, engage and retain key employees. Optimizing pay is a priority because
compensation remains one of the largest expense categories for most companies. In addition, it is widely believed
that compensation is one of the most important factors to recognize and enhance employee performance,
Integrating pay with performance is a critical way to motivate employees to meet and exceed business goals and
develop the workforce to adapt and respond to changing market conditions and business requirements. The best
managed companies typically are analytical and deliberate in establishing and monitoring their compensation
programs and successfully link pay and performance to reward achievement. They leverage technology to gain
visibility into employee population, identify key talent, develop workforce skills and build a pipeline of internal
leaders.

To execute their pay strategics, most large organizations rely on their internal compensation functions.
Whether formal or informal, the compensation group’s role is to manage the organization’s full breadth of pay
practices. Analytical professionals develop the overall compensation philosophy and specific pay programs. They
build the organization’s salary structures, manage the overall compensation budget and typically define how to
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link pay to performance. They also often work with line managers to cascade that linkage to each individual
employee. These professionals also report and make recommendations to senior management and the board of
directors. The foundation for all this work is a true understanding of the appropriate compensation practices for
specific jobs, departments, groups, and entire organizations.

Market pricing (the process of comparing positions and pay in a company against aggregated, statistically
significant compensation data from companies of comparable size, industry and location) is the predominant
approach companies use to determine appropriate compensation. To conduct a market pricing analysis for a
particular position at a particular company, an internal compensation specialist or an outside consultant compares
the job at that company with the closest matching benchmark jobs found in compensation surveys, When ample
market data has been identified (generally from three or more third-party sources), the compensation specialist or
consultant weights, adjusts and averages the data 10 form an opinion of the market price for the job. Through the
use of market pricing, the development of salary structures, and execution of pay programs (e.g., base pay,
commissions and incentives), organizations can effectively manage their compensation costs and link pay to
performance.

Although most organizations agree that market pricing is important to compensation management, the
processes and tools employed to make compensation decisions vary widely. Some organizations employ in-house
compensation professionals who purchase surveys and use them to price the positions themselves, whereas others
hire compensation consultants to market price their positions and recommend appropriate salary ranges. Many
targe companies will combine in-house resources for a majority of positions with the services of a consulting
firm to market price the jobs that are most critical to the success of the organization or for which data is more
difficult to obtain. It is also common for large organizations to purchase data from more than one source and use
one or more software packages 1o manage different parts of the process. Smaller organizations do not typically
have dedicated compensation specialists; they often rely on a human resource (HR) generalist to manage the
compensation analysis duties for the organization as one component of a larger job.

Traditional Approaches to Compensation Management

Companies have traditionally used a variety of approaches for managing the compensation function. Many
continue to use relatively simplistic internally developed software teols, often based on generic desktop programs
such as Microsoft Excel. Some companies utilize broad HR and/or enterprise resource planning (ERP) software
offerings, which include some compensation management capabilities but typically lack the specialized
functionality to adequately address compensation management. Many of these solutions must be installed on
clients’ servers and maintained by their information technology (IT) departments and do not seamlessly
incorporate compensation data. Larger organizations also engage outside third parties to assist them in managing
their compensation processes. Traditional third-party solution providers include HR business process outsourcers
{HR BPOs) such as Hewitt Associates, Affiliated Computer Services, and HR consultants such as Mercer,
Watson Wyatt Worldwide, Towers Perrin and Hay Group. HR consultants provide full-service market pricing,
comparison analysis and compensation management process assistance, but at a high cost—up to $200,000
annually for a typical company with 500 positions.

Larger organizations face the challenges of compiling and managing large amounts of information,
analyzing and reporting on actual and proposed compensation programs, collaborating among large or
geographically dispersed teams and increasing the organizational effectiveness of their compensation plans.
Although larger organizations typicatly have well-staffed HR departments and dedicated budgets and resources
for compensation management, the need to manage information and data from multiple internal and external
constituencies and integrate those inputs within a single system creates significant difficulties.

For small and mid-sized organizations, professional compensation management is often prohibitively
expensive and time-consuming. These organizations are typically faced with a decision either to use external
consulting firms, the cost of which often exceeds available budgets, or to commit scarce internal resources. In
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addition, HR responsibilities for these organizations are often assigned to only one or two dedicated staff or, in
many cases, shared across non-dedicated staff that have other full-time responsibilities and may lack
compensation expertise. Furthermore, these companies do not possess sophisticated interactive tools and
information for making compensation decisions or administering compensation programs.

On-Demand Software and Compensation Management

Recent innovations in information technology have created opportunities to deliver software applications
directly to users over the Internet in a subscription-based, on-demand business model. This model is made
possible by the proliferation of high-speed, broadband Internet connectivity, open standards for application
integration and advances in network availability and security. For the user, on-demand software eliminates the
need for expensive hardware, sofiware and internal IT support.

For HR personnel, who may not have large capital spending budgets, the often minimal (if any) upfront
expenditure required to implement on-demand solutions and the minimal need for IT department involvement is
particularly attractive. In addition, the hosted architecture helps ensure that the software and vendor-supplied
content is kept current and secure, without requiring any user involvement. On-demand solutions also permit
rapid deployment of and training for new applications, resulting in faster product adoption and increased
productivity, especially for users who may have little or no technological background. These benefits typically
result in a lower total cost of ownership and, in our belief, an increased return on investment. Finally, the
on-demand model enables multiple users, including geographically dispersed executives, HR departments,
departmental managers and employees, to easily coordinate and collaborate within a single application. These
factors make the compensation management market well-suited for the on-demand software business model.

Traditional Approaches to Employee Performance Management

Typically, performance management has been treated as an annual, point-in-time conversation between line
manager and employee that ends in a discussion of merit and bonus pay. The process has been a one-way
dialogue from manager to employee; the styles of communication, content and process vary radically from
manager to manager. Most organizations rely on manual, disparate systems to set goals, review employee
performance, backfill employee vacancies and develop workforce to deliver business objectives. Nearly 50% of
companies have not developed consistent, enterprise-wide standards and processes largely because of the lack of
lechnology to automate their strategic HR processes. According to Bersin & Associates, the majority of
companies cite that their systems are in various stages of maturity and implementation, The overwhelming
majority of companies (80%}) still use manual or spreadsheet systems to conduct and manage employee
performance; more than 50% still rely on paper-based forms while 30% use limited spreadsheet form-based
systems. According to IDC, only 30% of the market has implemented workforce performance management
software. As a result, many lack visibility into their organization and find it difficult to ensure that individual
goals and business unit goals are aligned with company objectives. As the workforce shortage increases and new
generation of workers enters workforce, it becomes increasingly critical for employers to develop existing talent
and address needs of the millennial workforce (i.e., those just entering the workforce) for two-way dialogue and
ongoing feedback on performance and advancement. As a result, organizations rate their top talent management
challenges to be addressing gaps in the leadership pipeline, creating performance-driven culture and filling key
positions, according to Bersin & Associates. The lack of technology to automate and integrate the different HR
systems to address these issues has become the largest challenge to companies that want to move to
pay-for-performance and integrated performance management philosophies.

Integrated Employee Performance Management via SaaS

In response to these challenges, vendors have developed talent management software to help customers
automate performance processes, provide visibility into an organization’s talent pool and improve accountability.
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The software options have increased with the advent of SaaS. This model makes it possible for companies to
implement best practices as well as automate their systems without heavy investment in IT, large hosting fees or
custom consulting services. IDC reports that, on average, 82% of surveyed performance vendors’ performance
management implementations were delivered via the SaaS model, up from 62% a year ago. This 20-point
increase in a single year demonstrates the adoption and acceptance of SaaS by the market. According to
Salary.com research and IDC market analysis, buyer interest remains high in performance management,
succession planning and compensation planning. According to Bersin & Associations, the integration of
performance management functions is gaining momentum; although only 13% of companies have implemented
an integrated performance management system, nearly 62% are in the process of linking these important systems
to improve their ability to connect pay and performance, develop talent and model succession. The top three
priority areas for integrated performance center on performance and development plans, performance and
succession plans and pay-for-performance implementations.

Market Opportunity

Employee compensation is one of the largest expense categories for corporations in the U.S., with 1otal
compensation expense in 2007 approximating $7.51 trillion, according to the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics. As
a result, managing compensation expense is critically important to organizations of all sizes. Estimates show the
compensation management technology market, which includes software and online compensation data offerings,
will grow from approximately $320 million in 2006 to approximately $460 million in 2008, according to an April
2006 study by independent market research firm Yankee Group. This projection from Yankee Group is focused
on the market for software and related data offerings. However, we believe our total addressable market is larger
because our products provide a solution that replaces, in part or in full, not only sofiware and data offerings, but
also service offerings addressing the compensation management market such as those provided by compensation
consulting firms and HR BPOs. Yankee Group has estimated the market for service offerings to be
approximately $960 million in 2006. In sum, the markets for software, data and service offerings totaled
approximately $1.28 billion for 2006, which we believe provides a better estimate of our total addressable
market.

Integrated Employee Performance Management

The market for employee performance management software and maintenance reached $529 million in 2007
and estimates show it will reach $885 million by 2012, increasing at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of
nearly 11% according to IDC. IDC forecasts that spending on performance-management related services reached
$1.1 billion in 2007 and will grow to $1.7 billion by 2012, increasing at a CAGR of nearly 10%. IDC estimates
that the global market reached $1.6 billion and will increase at CAGR of 10% to $2.6 billion in 2012. IDC cites
lower forecasts than previous years due to economic slowdown and its potential impact on talent management
software and services.

Competency Management

Competency management consists of the competency content, the framework that combines the list of
competencies per job, the behavior indicators of success by each competency, the proficiency levels and the
learning references into a system that can be deployed enterprise wide to help organizations evaluate, assess and
develop talent consistently and effectively. Competency management systems are recognized as the foundation
content of strategic HR management providing a common currency to benchmark performance, identify high
potential leaders, provide equitable compensation and engage employees in career planning. However, the
majority of competency content is focused on leadership competencies only and tends to skew to the senior
management levels of an organization; most organizations have not deployed competencies across all levels of
the organization.

According to Bersin & Associates, although more than 86% of companies surveyed believe that skills and
competency management are important or critical to succeed in employee performance management, more than
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60% do not have well-defined competencies and only 31% of organizations with performance management
processes report well-implemented deployment of competeacies in the performance assessment and review. The
challenge for many HR professionals is to create an ongoing system to centratize the content, manage the
multiple changes to models and then integrate them into disparate talent management systems such as recruiting,
performance and learning systems in real-time.

Although the competency market today is relatively small—we estimate it to be under $500 million—it is
rapidly becoming the next hot topic in HR circles. We estimate that software represents only 5% of the market
spend today and we believe that there is an opportunity to redefine and expand the acceptance of competency
content by building and deploying software that is tightly integrated with the competency content.

Our Solutions

Our integrated software applications provide extensive features and broad functionality that address the
critical functions of compensation analysis and planning, goal setting, performance management and succession
planning. By antomating and integrating essential elements of compensation and performance management, our
solutions enable our customers to increase productivity, promote employee retention, and ensure the right talent
for the right roles to meet the business strategies of the future.

We combine content with on-demand software to manage both the compensation management lifecycle and
the employee performance management suite.

Cur content-rich compensation management suite addresses the various stages of the compensation
management lifecycle—ranging from benchmarking jobs for establishing the market price of equivalent jobs, to
managing the compensation review and goal setting process between operating managers and front-line
employees. We deliver our compensation management solutions to customers through our CompAnalyst suite of
on-demand software applications. Customers can subscribe to our software complete with market data for U.S.
and Canada as well as import their own compensation surveys with our survey management module.

In addition to our compensation management solutions, we offer our TalentManager suite to deliver
employee lifecycle performance management solutions, which help organizations establish and align goals
throughout the organization, link employee pay to performance, and plan the succession for key positions. The
enterprise version of TalentManager includes multi-language and currency support for global organizations. A
small business version of TalentManager provides best practices and economical implementation for small and
emerging companies or workgroups,

Our acquisition of ICR Limited, L.C. and ICR International Ltd. (ICR) in May 2007 expanded our
compensation product offering with the addition of two new services: [PAS, the largest single source of
international technelogy compensation data and software, including all relevant job titles in over 70 countries,
and ICR Specialty Consumer Goods, a leading source of U.S. compensation data for apparel, footwear, luxury
goods and specialty retail jobs.

Our comprehensive suite of integrated software applications provides the following key benefits:

Facilitates more effective compensation spending. Our solutions enable companies to deliver more
effective and consistent compensation programs by reducing the risk of high turover caused by underpaying
employees and the risk of reduced profitability caused by overpaying employees. By making better compensation
decisions, our custorners are able to better atiract, motivate and retain their employees, which we believe can lead
to improved business execution and financial performance.

Enables Human Resource professionals 1o be more strategic.  Our solutions incorporate features and best
practices that automate compensation management to reduce or eliminate manual, paper-based and discrete
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business activities. As a result, our solutions help maximize the effectiveness of HR departments by enabling
compensation professionals to focus on more strategic, high-value corporate-wide initiatives.

Provides access to proprietary market-driven compensation intelligence. Companies have traditionally
made compensation decisions based on a limited number of surveys that are updated only once a year. By
contrast, our proprietary data sets provide market-driven compensation information derived from numerous
sources which are updated monthly. We belicve that the current nature, as well as the breadth and depth, of our
data sets provide our customers with significant advantages as they set their compensation levels, To build and
update our data sets, our compensation professionals apply proprietary comparative algorithms and sophisticated
statistical analysis to the data to provide the most up-to-date, comprehensive and useful information to our
customers.

Provides ability to price technology jobs around the world using the same methodology and
participants. Market pricing technology jobs across countries has traditionally been a challenging process
complicated by multiple surveys, different job titles, inconsistent job matching, different participants per country
and no centralized source to compare across countries. Through our IPAS product, we offer a uniform set of job
benchmarks in a single source of comprehensive data that enables consistent benchmarking capabilities across all
countries in the survey. Customers participate in a single, web-based survey and receive access to every job from
clerk to chief executive officer for over 70 countries. For example, a customer can determine what an accountant
makes across all countries in the survey, with the same source, same methodology, same participants, and same
currency.

Reduces compensation management costs. We believe that our solutions are more cost-effective than other
available offerings. Our on-demand model significantly reduces or eliminates the installation and maintenance
costs associated with on-premises solutions. Our intuitive user interfaces enable our customers to find the right
data, manage its application and configure overall compensation plans with litile or no technical assistance.
Furthermore, by integrating our software with our proprietary data sets, we provide our customers with a
significantly less expensive compensation management solution than the traditional approach of separately
purchasing combinations of consulting services, surveys and software applications.

Enables rapid deployment and scalabiliry.  Our on-demand software can be deployed rapidly and
provisioned easily, without our customers having to make a large and risky upfront investment in software,
hardware, implementation services or dedicated IT staff. The delivery platform for our software enables the
solution to scale to suit customers’ needs. Additional users with defined privileges can be granted access with
minimal implementation time, and new applications, such as analytics, can be deployed quickly and transparently
1o existing customers.

Reduces turnover and improves identification and development of top performers. Our on-demand
software can be configured to an organization’s performance philosophies to uniformly identify top talent across
the organization.

Aligns everyone with organizational goals. Our goal management module enables management to ensure
that individual and group goals are aligned with organizational goals to keep employees focused on priorities and
to monitor the execution of the business strategy.

Aligns pay with performance. The integrated pay and performance modules enable management to ensure
that top performers are rewarded for their contribution as well as to ensure that all employees are paid equitably
according to the organization’s pay-for-performance philosophy. This is critical for retention of top performers
while also maintaining compliance and budget control. By integrating goal setting and performance reviews, the
performance suite helps employees track their accomplishments throughout the year and compare capabilities
with current or future job requirements. Employees can see which of their activities align with organizational
goals and how they are adding value. This motivates employees to focus on their performance and development
as a vital part of building their career.



Streamlines annual and date-scheduled performance review cycle. The performance management suite
takes the drudgery out of the annual performance review process by automatically generating review forms with
appropriate competencies for every job. Employee goal achievement is automatically added to the review form
50 that managers can accurately rate performance. Reviews also can be performed by multiple raters or may be
scheduled based on anniversaries or any other date trigger to remind managers and employees to communicate
more frequently about performance.

Improves visibility and management of high-potential talent. The succession planning module also improves
the visibility of key talent or high-potential employees across the organization through performance reviews,
detailed employee profile tracking, and comparison of talented employees to the requirements of positions before
they become vacant. By comparing all employees against job requirements and highlighting their achievements,
talented employees—who might otherwise go unnoticed or leave the company—may be surfaced.

Builds strong pipeline of future leaders. The succession planning module also enables organizations to plan
their resources by positions or jobs, and to compare current employee competencies to those needed by the
organization in the future. Specific successors may be identified for any number of positions based on their
criticality, so candidates may undertake development to ensure a ready pipeline of future leaders.

Increases effectiveness of learning and development. Our proprietary job-competency models help
employees and managers understand the competencies needed to perform their jobs, and to create leaming and
development goals appropriate for their gaps or carcer directions. This ensures learning and development
activities that will directly impact employee performance and profitability. Customers can utilize their own
competency or learning content as well to facilitate development.

Enables global rollout of performance management. The enterprise TalentManager suite facilitates efficient
global rollout by enabling common standards and best practices for performance programs in any geography with
language support for local cultures. Organizations have the ability to localize the terminology or practices to
meet their business needs, and yet take advantage of a common platform that keeps implementation simple and
cost-efficient.

Content

Our proprietary content is a core differentiator of our solutions. By providing comprehensive content
embedded within our applications, we are able to assist corporate customers in achieving their compensation
management and performance management objectives faster and more efficiently. The following diagram
illustrates how we gather and process data and make it available to our enterprise customers through our software
applications:

Data Development Process for Enterprise Data Sets
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To develop our data sets, we begin with raw data we obtain from numerous sources. We purchase data
directly from industry associations, compensation consulting firms, economic analysis firms and other sources.
We also collect data directly from employers, partners and government agencies (for example, the U.S. Bureaun of
Labor Statistics, Department of Labor and SEC). Our team of certified compensation professionals also conducts
proprietary compensation surveys on emerging jobs such as Corporate Ethics Officers and Six Sigma jobs.
Through our acquisition of ICR in May 2007, we expanded both our custom survey capabilities to include
consumer goods surveys across four main sectors—luxury goods, apparel, footwear and specialty retail—and
also our data-filled software capabilities into global technology jobs with the addition of the IPAS product. Our
team of compensation professionals processes data from these sources to derive our own proprietary data sets of
compensation and other job-related information.

Our Market Pricing Data Processes

For our proprictary market pricing data sets, we use both standard and proprietary algorithms, which provide
our customers with complete and consistent data that is representative of nearly all relevant markets and
reasonable combinations of jobs, industries, locations and organization sizes. The completeness and consistency
of our data sets provides our enterprise and consumer customers with market-driven compensation intelligence
that we believe they could not procure or easily derive from alternate sources. In addition, our market pricing
data processes and data sets also reduce the problems corporate compensation departments face from their lack of
standardized processes for analyzing and combining multiple survey sources and maintaining the consistency of
those sources year-over-year.

Enterprise and Consumer Data Sets

We have two proprietary data sets: one for our enterprise customers and one for consumer customers. Our
enterprise data set contains base, bonus and incentive pay data for more than 3,600 positions held by more than
80% of U.S. employees and our consumer data set currently addresses more than 3,700 jobs held by more than
86% of the U.S. workforce.

Our enterprise solutions report data based on the most reliable sources available. Our enterprise customers
may also incorporate data sources that they have independently acquired, which are then available for their
exclusive use. Our enterprise data set also is augmented by compensation data from our customers, which they
provide to us through surveys we conduct and which we do not include in our consumer data set. In addition, we
provide a module in which an enterprise customer can store its own employee records to match to its preferred
market sources and compare actual compensation, target compensation and market compensation.

Our lower-priced and free consumer products report data designed to provide a reasonably accurate estimate
of the compensation pay levels for thousands of jobs in various types of organizations throughout the United
States and Canada. The jobs reported in our consumer tools are primarily the major benchmark jobs available
from numerous publicly available data sources. The purpose of the consumer tools is to educate the individual
employee regarding the compensation decision-making process and to provide a reasonable approximation of the
market for that individual’s job. We believe the best way for an employee and employer to have a productive
conversation regarding compensation and pay for performance is for both to be educated about the process and
current market values.

SEC Data Set

In addition to our proprietary market pricing data sets described above, we also maintain a complete data set
of executive compensation and related data for more than 12,000 U.S. publicly traded companies. All
compensation data included in this data set is obtained directly from filings made by these companies with the
SEC. Our SEC data set also contains data on the compensation of directors from approximately 3,000 of the
largest publicly traded companies. Our SEC data set is updated daily to reflect new public filings and we
maintain the historical data in our SEC data set to facilitate comparisons.
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We also include basic financial data on public companies in our SEC data set, which we purchase from
Standard & Poor’s. This data is used 10 enable our customers 1o place compensation data in the context of a
company’s financial performance.

Competency Content and Job Competency Models

In fiscal year 2008, we acquired the Schoonover competency content library with more than 1,800
leadership competencies and the ITG Competency Group with more than 1,200 job-specific competencies. The
combined content library houses more than 3,000 competencies. We help customers build competency libraries
as well as help them design competency models that can be deployed across the organization. Customers can
purchase our competency content to build or augment their competency content. We offer customers six different
types of competency content: business {general business knowledge and skills), individual, (knowledge, abilities
and behaviors that drive personal effectiveness), functional, (technical skills and abilities associated with specific
jobs), core (general competencies defined for all employees), management (competencies specific to managers
and supervisors’ job tasks), and leadership (competencies specific to executive and leadership roles). Our
off-the-shelf competency content and models by industry and job family including corporate enterprise,
insurance enterprise, banking enterprise, retail enterprise, manufacturing enterprise, information technology,
general leadership, healthcare administration as well as assessment tools, implementation gnides and
customization tools to tailor competencies to a customer’s organization. Each model contains competencies for
68 job famities, 900 job profiles, more than },200 competencies, 3,600 learning references and 25,500 behavior
indicators which include four proficiency level recommendations to measure success in a given job.

68 Job Families

. 900 Jobs
Job Family Name # of Jobs
] i _’ Job description with
Audit and Compliance 16 Job responsibilitias
Administration 17
Corporate Communications 14 .
Customer Support 24 OB PROFILES 3,600+ Learning References
Finance and Accounting as mapped to compelencies
Human Resources 24 ‘v ACtI\:'ItIBS External Publications
Logal & Audictapes External References
al Services 7 .
) Books Training Programs
Marketing 14 1 '200+ Compelenmes | Conferences Universities
' Government Resources  Videos

Purchasing 10 .

Business 25 Internal Resources Vandors
Resaarch and Developmant 7 Interpersonal 24 Organizations World Wide Wab
Sales 15 Management 21

Tachnicat 185
Training and Development 15 Business Tools 22
Executive 5

4 Levels of Proficiency with unique

behavioral descriptors for each level

Level 1: Basic understanding

Level 2: Working experience

Leval 3: Extensive experience

Level 4: Subject matter depth and breadth

Products

We offer a suite of enterprise compensation management applications for enterprise customers that helps
companies determine how much to pay new and existing employees and manage overall compensation programs.
We also offer a suite of performance management applications to assist customers in establishing and tracking
performance goals throughout their organizations, linking each employee’s pay to performance against these
goals, and planning for talent needs and future succession. Along with our application suites, we provide our
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customers with implementation and data configuration services as well as assistance with the configuration of
our compensation and performance management solutions to their organization’s unique business needs. In
addition to our enterprise offerings, we also provide a series of consumer and e-commerce solutions through our
website to provide compensation information and tools designed for the consumer. We provide these solutions on
a subscription, transaction or ad-sponsored basis.

For the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2003, our subscription revenues derived from our
TalentManager products comprised less than 10% of our total revenues, with the remainder of our subscription
revenues being derived from our compensation management and data products. Our solutions consist of the

following products:

Product Category

Enterprise Solutions—Compensation
Management Solutions

Small Business—Compensation Solutions

Compensation Surveys—All Sizes

Enterprise Solutions—
Performance Management Services

Consumer & E-Commerce Services

Product Name

Principal Revenue Type

CompAnalyst {(CA) Suite
CA ' U.S. Market Data

CA ! Canadian Market Data

CA I Survey Center

CA [ Reporting & Analytics

CA | Salary Structures

CA I Merit Modeling

CA | Executive

Compensation Consulting
Services

CompAnalyst Professional Edition

Salary.com | Professional Edition

Salary.com Compensation Market

Studies
Salary.com Industry Surveys

Salary.com Consumer Goods
Surveys

Salary.com IPAS Survey

TalentManager (TM) Suite

TM { Performance Management
TM { Compensation Planning
TM { Incentive Management
TM 1 Succession Planning
TalentManager Professional
Edition
ITG Job Competence Model
Schoenover Leadership Library
Salary.com Competency &
HCM Consulting

www.salary.com
Salary Wizard
Salary Center

Personal Salary Report Subscription
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Transaction
Transaction

Transaction

Subscription/Ad-sponsored
Subscription/Ad-sponsored
Subscription/Ad-sponsored

Subscription



Enterprise Solutions
Compensation Management Products

CompAnalyst (CA) is a suite of on-demand compensation management solutions for use by compensation
professionals in large and small organizations. CompAnalyst is built around a core data set of accurate,
employer-reported market data that is benchmarked and mapped for jobs held by more than 80% of U.S.
employees. Customers get immediate access to a complete source of data to value jobs, participate in surveys and
analyze pay competitiveness including the following applications:

CA | Market Data: Provides customers of all sizes easy access to a single source of accurate and trusted
compensation data for over 3,700 benchmark jobs in companies of all sizes, across 21 industries, 29 company
size categories and across all U.S. geographies (243 geographic listings including regions, states and major
metropolitan areas) as well as more than 650 benchmark jobs in Canada. Customers can also quickly find the
market price for any benchmark job or create and price a “hybrid job” by mixing multiple jobs together.

CA | Survey Center: Provides customers with a centralized, online repository for managing and performing
market pricing with third-party surveys that they acquire and own themselves. The solution also simplifies the
customers’ participation in multiple surveys. Our easy-to-use tools enable customers to age, weight, adjust and
combine data from multiple sources to produce market rates for use in compensation program design and
analysis activities. Customers can use this functionality when they have specific data sources and weightings they
choose to employ in determining market pricing. The Survey Center module also simplifies and speeds up the
customer’s survey participation process by leveraging data already stored within the module—including
employee pay and demographic data as well as the company’s job matches to survey vendor jobs—and exporting
survey participation files in the specific survey vendor’s preferred format.

CA | Reporting & Analysis: Enables organizations to assess external competitiveness against internal equity
by comparing actual pay practices to market data developed in CA Market Data or Survey Center. Customers
may analyze trends by year, compare pay practices across groups of employees (e.g., by region, business unit,
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission protected class) and create custom queries to meet their analysis
needs. Customers can also store data and use it to conduct historical comparisons.

CA | Salary Structures: Facilitates streamlined analysis of cost scenarios related to internal salary structures
and distribution of merit budgets. Provides customers visibility into internal equity and helps customers assess
salary structures against market rates. Customers can analyze current pay structures and model the budget impact
and cost of new structures and proposed changes. The Salary Structures module enables customers to assess the
alignment of pay practices with the external market and internal targets, and to perform *“what if” analysis to
support recommendations for changes in compensation program design. Customers can seamlessly integrate with
the merit modeling module and link to the performance module 1o verify where an employee fits within the
salary structure when determining appropriate pay for performance.

CA | Merit Modeling: Models the cost of performance-based merit increase programs. Customers can build
merit matrices to meet budgets based on parameters for performance and range placement or market index.
Customers can model with histarical data or expected performance distributions and compare the cost of multiple
scenarios for the determination of appropriate merit budgets. This module provides quick and easy tools to
measure the impact of merit increases for financial and strategic planning purposes, and integrates with
compensation planning and performance management.

CA | Executive: Allows CEQOs, CFOs, executive compensation specialists, board members and consultants
to instantly analyze and review compensation information disclosed in filings with the SEC for more than 12,000
public companies. The data available with this product, which is updated daily, includes pay, incentive
compensation, Black-Scholes values, benefits, director compensation, financial and stock performance data and
more. CompAnalyst Executive’s functionality includes the ability to build and analyze peer groups by industry,
size and location, as well as company financial performance measures and executive and director pay measures.
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CompAnalyst | Professional Edition: Targeted to businesses with under 350 full-time equivalents, or
FTE’s; provides market content and software, similar to CompAnalyst market content, except with less data and
functionality. Our sales force sells this application to smaller businesses.

Salary.com Professional Edition; Targeted to businesses with less than 100 FTE’s and offered via the web
in a self-service subscription model. This data product is similar to CompAnalyst Professional Edition, but
contains data only on small companies.

Salary.com Job Valuation Reports: This report is designed for use by HR departments to price a single job.
It allows users to view a report on the appropriate market compensation data for that job and, if they desire,
recommend adjustments to reflect the particular experience, education and other factors specific to an employee
currently in the job. The job valuation report also includes basic explanations of how to use the data and how to
explain market pricing practices to an employee. We sell this application to employers through our website and
our partners’ websites.

Salary.com Compensation Market Studies: These survey-like reports aggregate the data, generally for 50 to
200 related job titles within an industry group, typically within the same job family (for example, finance and
accounting) or the same level {for example, executives). We have more than 100,000 of these reports that we sell
to employers through our website and our partners’ websites.

Salary.com Industry Surveys: We run compensation and benefits surveys, some of which are sponsored
directly by us and others of which are sponsered in partnership with industry associations or other external
sponsors. To conduct a survey, we solicit companies to submit actual pay data for their employees to us. We
analyze, aggregate and anonymize their data and report the results back to participating companies. Typically, we
charge participants a fee and we also may sell final reports to non-participants for a higher fee.

Salary.com | IPAS Global Survey: Provides global compensation content-rich software to value jobs and
total compensation factors for companies in the high technology industry through our IPAS survey software.
Customers must participate in compensation surveys and subscribe to the on-demand software to access
compensation information. Customers can access a single source of compensation content from clerk to chief
executive officer in over 70 countries.

Salary.com | Consumer Surveys: Provides industry-specific compensation content and reports to value jobs
in the consumer retail industry. Customers must participate in the compensation surveys and purchase the reports
to access the compensation data for the four consumer goods markets including: Specialty Retail, Luxury Goods,
Footwear and Apparel.

PayScore: This product is a salary qualification service which helps mortgage professionals gain
efficiencies in the application process. PayScore combines data and software to enable lenders io better qualify
applicants’ salary claims, improve credit decision making and provide an audit trail for compliance purposes.

Performance Management Products

TalentManager is a suite of on-demand performance management solutions that provides the essential
workflow to tink pay to performance, improve performance management interactions, and develop a strong
pipeline of future leaders across the enterprise. TalentManager enables an organization to manage goal setting,
performance reviews and incentive plans, and to link these critical activities to the relevant compensation
programs to administer the organization’s pay-for-performance program—all within a single integrated
application. Our TalentManager suite includes the following modules:

Performance Management: Enables the communication and setting of goals and targets by employees and
managers as well as the tracking of performance against those goals. The system enables organizations to
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establish corporate level goals and to cascade those goals throughout the organization to ensure alignmenti and
results. The system automatically brings employee geals to the employee’s performance review along with their
accomplishments to date to streamline the review process and facilitate better employee-manager interactions.
Performance Management is fully integrated with compensation planning, succession planning and incentives.
We can link any goal or other component of performance to a virtually unlimited number of pay programs to
reflect the organization’s pay-for-performance philosophy.

Compensation Planning: Enables organizations to automate and control the process of allocating salary
increases, budget pools, lump sum adjustments and basic bonus plans. Within TalentManager, HR and finance
departments can set rules or guidelines that dictate the limits and the approval process for any component of the
compensation decision-making process. By setting all of the rules in one system, which programmatically
enforces the process, the entire organization can easily and efficiently adhere to policies and control procedures
while ensuring equitable pay-for-performance.

Incentive Management: A configurable and customizable application capable of managing complex
formulaic incentive plans. Incentive plans vary significantly among and within organizations and can have
complex rules and payout structures. This module is used when organizations have multiple incentive plans with
similar structures typically based on corporate key performance indicators (KPIs), as well as individual goals and
targets that tailor the incentive compensation for the individual. Although the standard Compensation Planning
module inciudes features to address basic variable compensation, many organizations need the additional
sophisticated algorithm and payout administration available in the Incentive Management module.

Succession Planning: Enables companies to plan resources, create succession plans and easily identify
backup candidates with the necessary skills, competency ratings and performance history. The system also allows
resource planners to determine and manage gaps in skills or competencies needed for jobs or position that will be
required to execute the business strategy. Customers can assess candidates, recognize skill gaps and create
appropriate development plans to build sufficient bench strength and ensure a consistent pool of high potential
employees for critical roles across the organization. Managers and executives can streamline planning for
vacancies to minimize risk and quickly fill key leadership roles to manage transitions to minimize impact on the
business. Identifying succession candidates early enables organizations to implement employee development
plans, close skills gaps, and ensure that effective leaders are fully ready to assume critical roles when the time
comes.

TalentManager Professional Edition: Provides a configurable, scaled down version of the enterprise
TalentManager performance and compensation management software targeted to companies with less than 500
FTE’s. The professional edition enables smaller employers to deploy the best practices of larger organizations to
motivate and reward teams through appropriate pay-for-performance programs—all without extensive HR
oversight, heavy IT investment, or long implementation timeframes. The professional edition offers a menu of
configurable components for performance, compensation planning and variable incentive programs in an easy to
use and easy to maintain user experience.

Professional Services

Our CompAnalyst professional services teams handle new customer implementations, training and general
help desk services for the CompAnalyst product line and all data products. The TalentManager professional services
team handles all new customer implementations, configurations, training, and general help desk services for the
TalentManager suite of applications. For implementations that are not strictly “plug and play,” our product-specific
implementation teams provide initialization, configuration, training and general help-desk services. We also train
our customers so that they can be more self-sufficient for future implementations. TalentManager customers
generally require more professional services than CompAnalyst customers. Professional services in most cases are
included as part of our subscription agreements and, to a lesser extent, are offered on an as-needed basis.
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Compensation Consulting

Our team of certified compensation professionals helps customers analyze and deliver compensation best
practices including assessment, design and implementation of new processes. Our compensation assessment
service provides system diagnostic report to benchmark a company’s compensation system vs. industry best
practices. In the design phase, our compensation consultants provide services to define, communicate and
implement the organization’s compensation philosophy including the development of compensation policies and
procedures, the design of market-based compensation, internal equity-based compensation programs and short-
term incentive programs. In the implementation phase, our team aligns the scoped programs and handles all the
necessary rollout and communication such as pay delivery policies regarding grade movement, promotions and
out-of-range employees.

Competency-Driven HCM Management Consulting

Our human capital consulting practice helps organizations deploy competency-driven talent management
systems to drive performance management and leadership development. We help organization design their talent
systems around job-based competency content that they can deploy rapidly, manage internally and deliver
consistently across the entire organization. Qur team of industry experts, including competency and leadership
development pioneer Dr. Stephen Schoonover, help senior executives identify the key competencies that
reinforce a companies goals and culture; auther and map competencies to jobs and job profiles, build competency
models to drive identification and development of key internal leaders and build a curriculum to develop future
leaders to drive business growth and results.

Consumer and E-Commerce Solutions

Our consumer and e-commerce family of products consists of free-to-user applications that are
ad-sponsored, as well as certain premium products that are sold directly to individuals visiling our website, We
also generate indirect revenue from these products through advertisers that pay for space on our website and our
partners’ websites.

Our consumer and e-commerce products include;

www.salary.com: Our destination website and marketing face of the company is an advertising and online
subscription sales channel. Our internet media traffic averaged three million unique monthly visitors during the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2008. According to a search we performed using Google, more than 50,000 external
links direct consumers to our website for career information, salary negotiation and ways to determine their
worth. The site includes calculators, memberships, newsletters and content around the topic of career and pay
management for individuals, as well as related business content for small business and enterprise audiences. We
believe that more than 90% of Salary.com’s traffic is organically generated and is not the result of substantial
direct advertising and marketing on our part.

Salary Wizard: Salary Wizard is an ad-sponsored salary calculator designed to provide non-scoped,
national average base pay and total annual cash compensation ranges for the positions we track. Users may adjust
the national average information to their desired location by selecting a metropolitan area or zip code, and the
results will be adjusted using a geographic adjustment factor to estimate the pay level for that location. In 2008,
we introduced new features to help users personalize their answers and see how they compare not only to what
employers pay in their area but how their background compares to their peers in their local area. Salary Wizard
also attracts visitors to our website and our syndicated partner network of sites and serves as an entry point for
consumers and employers to purchase a report or subscription product from us, The product is used more than
3 million times per month by both individuals and businesses.

Salary Center: Our syndicated product is a fully functional set of applications that deploy onto our
partners’ websites to power the compensation section of their websites in a co-branded manner. For example,
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Monster's Salary & Benefits area is populated with Salary.com tools and the content is hosted and managed by
Salary.com. The syndicated Salary Center product typically includes advertising inventory and e-commerce
reports for which partners share revenue with us. Our partners include Monster, CNN Money, Yahoo! Hotjobs,
Dice, Business Week, the New York Times, ADP and over 575 other companies representing more than 2,500
discrete websites.

Personal Salary Report Subscription:  This application is a premium 14-page report providing individuals
with an HR-quality assessment of their worth in the job market. The report also educates the subscriber about
how employers determine compensation and advises the subscriber on how to negotiate salary for a win-win
outcome.

In addition to these online offerings, we also sell space for third-party advertisers to deliver their messages
to users of our website. Advertisers will pay for targeted inventory space adjacent to content that will be viewed
by certain types of consumers. We believe our advertising inventory is attractive to advertisers because we
provide a large volume of exposure opportunities and we can link those opportunities to a variety of consumer
demographic factors, such as job title, location and income. Advertisers that purchase this inventory include job
boards, recruiters, colleges and universities and financial services firms.

Compensation Team

We believe that one of the most significant differentiators between us and our software competitors is our
compensation team. In addition to hiring experienced compensation professionals from industry, many of whom
are certified compensation professionals, we train our technology personnel about compensation and our
compensation personnel about technology, so that each group possesses both the HR and the technological
expertise essential to our products. We believe that this combined expertise enables us to design our sofiware and
data sets in a sophisticated and useful manner for our customers. We also try to ensure that employees with
compensation experience are deployed throughout our organization. Historically, we have moved compensation
professionals into roles within sales, product management, and professional services. In this way we are able to
embed compensation knowledge, skills and abilities in all aspects of what we do, and we believe this enables us
to position our domain expertise as a true competitive advantage.

Research & Development

Our research and development efforts are focused on improving and enhancing our existing on-demand
service offerings as well as developing new products, features and functionality. Expansion of our solutions into
new areas often involves a multiple-year commitment to enter a new business, and we seek new product
opportunities related to compensation, performance and talent management. When we extend an existing
application or data set, our development costs are relatively low. When we innovate in an area requiring the
development of a new data set, our development costs increase due to the high initial fixed costs of entering the
new area and also building original software functionality. Once the initial investment in a new area has been
made, however, the ongoing costs to maintain a data set and extend a product are often significantly less than the
costs of maintaining the typical installed software product. Research and development expense for the fiscal
years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $4.9 million, $4.1 million and $2.2 million, respectively.

Technology

We pioneered hosted, multi-tenant, on-demand software when we launched our first product in 2000. Our
on-demand software is a highly scalable, multi-ienant application platform written in CSS, XML, DHTML,
Visual Basic, C++, Java and C# for the NET framework and COM+ and MSMQ for the Windows operating
systems. We use commercially available hardware and a combination of proprietary and commercially available
software, including Microsoft SQL Server, Microsoft IIS Server and Microsoft Windows.
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Our on-demand software treats our customers as separate tenants in central applications and data sets. As a
result, we are able to spread the cost of delivering our service across our user base. In addition, because we do
not have to manage thousands of distinct applications with their own business logic and database schemas, we
believe that we can scale our business faster than traditional software vendors, even those that have modified
their products to be accessible over the Internet.

Our TalentManager products are built on our proprietary, highly scalable Salary.com FlexTenant plaiform,
which enables us to customize the business logic, data flow, workflow and user interfaces of our enterprise
applications for clients and yet continue to operate in the same multi-tenant application shared by our other
customers.

Operations

We serve all of our customers from a third-party network operations facility located in Watertown,
Massachusetts. This facility — operated by AT&T — provides around-the-clock security personnel, photo 1D/
access cards, biometric hand scanners and sophisticated fire systems. The overall security of each data center
(inside and outside) and network operations center are monitored by digital video surveillance cameras 24 hours
a day, seven days a week. In addition, redundant bandwidth, on-site electrical generators and environmental
control devices are used to keep servers up and running. We continuously monitor the performance of our
service. We have a comprehensive security infrastructure, including firewalls, intrusion detection systems and
encryption for transmissions over the Internet. We monitor and test this security infrastructure on a regular basis.
Our site operations team provides system management, maintenance, monitoring and back-up. We run tests
regularly to ensure adequate response from our sites and conduct production environment reviews for hosting
capacity, expansion and upgrade planning. We also monitor site availability and latency. We own or lease and
operate all of the hardware on which our applications run in the network operations facility.

To facilitate high availability of our solutions and loss recovery, we operate a multi-tiered system
configuration with redundant bandwidth, load balanced web server pools, replicated and clustered database
servers and fault tolerant storage devices. Data sets are restored to hot standby database servers using transaction
logs shipped from primary production database servers. This solution is designed to provide near real-time
failover service in the event of a malfunction with a primary clustered database or server. Full backups of all data
sets take place nightly and are archived to tapes. These tapes are rotated offsite to a separate facility managed by
Iron Mountain. We also maintain a fully redundant site, located within our headquarters, which would serve as
our primary site in the event that a disaster was to render the network operations facility inoperable. Our real-
time backups are stored on servers in our corporate headquarters. Although we have not experienced a failure of
our third-party network operations facility, we believe that if such facility became inoperable, most of our
products would be available to our customers with minimal interruption in service.

In 2008, we successfully completed the Statement on Auditing Standards No. 70 (SAS 70) Type II audit and
received our SAS 70 Type 1 Certification. The SAS 70 is an internationally recognized auditing standard
developed by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). It defines the professional
standards used by auditors to assess the internal controls of a service organization. The SAS 70 audit reports on
the internal controls and safeguards service organizations have in place to process data belonging to its
customers. The audit, conducted by an independent service auditor, focused on six key areas: information
technology organization and access security, applications system development, implementation and maintenance
and computer operations.

Sales and Marketing

We sell our enterprise solutions primarily through our direct sales organization and 1o a lesser extent
through indirect channels. As of March 31, 2008, our direct sales force consisted of 96 employees. We employ
business development representatives to call potential enterprise customers to book initial demonstrations and to
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qualify customer leads. Once a lead is qualified, our account executives assess customer needs, complete
demonstrations and close sales, primarily by telephone and via web-based product demonstrations. We also
employ account managers who maintain on-going or post-sale relationships with subscribers, manage renewals
and generate interest from existing customers to purchase additional products. In addition, our sales engineers
and compensation professionals assist with sales to customers with particularly complex needs and provide post-
sales customer support. Most of our sales personnel are located in our headquarters in Waltham, Massachusetts.
We also have an advertising and syndication sales team, which works in much the same way as our enterprise
product sales team, but focuses its efforts on selling and marketing advertising on our website and syndication of
our consumer offerings to other websites. Although we have relationships with many pariners, including websites
and consulting firms, these partners accounted for less than 10% in the aggregate of our total revenue in the fiscal

years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007.

Our marketing program is anchored by an integrated communications strategy that supports the core of our
brand and value proposition. Our marketing programs include direct mail and email campaigns, using our
website to provide product and company information, advertising in both print and online media, search engine
marketing, issuing press releases on a regular basis and launching events to publicize our service to existing
customers and prospects. We build our brand through our website, syndication and public relations, all of which
are intended to increase market awareness of us as a top-tier provider of on-demand compensation management
solutions, as well as a leading website for free information about compensation. Furthermore, our thought leaders
are frequently sought as expert commentators by major media, including television, radio, newspapers and
mainstream and trade magazines. We believe that this is a critical component of our branding program and
positions us as an expert in the compensation field. In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, our television and
radio appearances were viewed more than 50 million times and our print appearances were viewed more than 200
million times. We also conduct seminars, participate in trade shows and industry conferences, publish white

papers on HR issues and develop customer reference programs.

In May 2008, we announced new marketing and sales initiatives designed to accelerate growth and expand
our leadership positicn in the compensation and employee performance management markets. Over the next two
years, we plan to re-invest up to $10 million in marketing and hire up to 100 sales people to support new product
offerings. The marketing investments are expected to extend our compensation brand globally and build
awareness among a new set of buyers in organizational and leadership development. We plan to incrementally
hire up to 100 sales people to build out our competency, international, small business and strategic sales teams to
penetrate new buying groups and new geographic markets over the next two years.

Customers

As of March 31, 2008, we had nearly 2,800 enterprise subscribers, in various industries, who spend from
$2,000 to more than $100,000 annually. No single customer accounted for more than 3% of our revenue in the
fiscal years ended March 31, 2008 or 2007. Below is a representative list of companies who were customers as of
March 31, 2008, grouped by industry category and number of employees in the business unit we serve.

1,000 to 9,999
Full-Time Employees

Less than 1,000
Full-Time Employees

Industry 10,000+Full-Time Employees
Transportation ............ ... .. .0 ... Southwest Airlines
Greyhound Lines, Inc.
Old Dominion Freight Line, Inc.
Amitrak Passenger Railroad
Swift Transportation Co., Inc.
Retail ... . e Amazon.com, Inc.

Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.
Hallmark Cards, Inc.
Steve and Barry's LLC
Target Corporation
Williams-Sonoma, Inc.
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CHEP

Covenant Transportation
Saia Motor Freight Line
Expedia, Inc.
Norwegian Cruise Lines

Lifetime Fitness
Lord & Taylor LLC
eBay, Inc.

Tiffany & Co.
Chanel USA, Inc.
J. Crew Group, Inc.

Air France USA
Mexicana Airlines
Singapore Airlines
Virgin Atlantic
Alaska Railroad

Guess?, Inc.

Harry Winston

Rolex Watch USA
Eastern Mountain Sports
Quiksilver, Inc.

[kea North America, Inc.



1,000 to 9,999 Less than 1,600

Industry 10,000+ Full-Time Employees Full-Time Employees Full-Time Employees
Publishing ...................... Bertelsmann, Inc. BBC Worldwide Americas The Motley Fool, Inc.
Google ESPN, Inc. XM Satellite Radio
Jostens VistaPrint USA, Inc. National Public Radio
Thomson Reuters John Wiley & Sons Harvard Business School
The New York Times Company Publishing Corporation
Consumer Products ............... Yahoo! Inc. Ticketmaster Comcast Corporation
Sony Corporation of America Nu Skin Enterprises FUJIFILM Dimatix, Inc.
AMF Bowling Deluxe Corperation Heineken USA
Stanley Works Dreyer's Grand Ice Cream Zipear, Inc.
La-Z-Boy Incorporate Electronic Arts Duraflame Inc.
National Football League Birkenstock, USA LP
Financial Products and Services . . . .. Alfa Corporation First Capital Corporation
Commerce Bank Imperial Capital Bank Chicago Board Options
Exchange, Inc.
Dollar Bank Mastercard International Eastern Financial Federal
Credit Union
E*Trade Financial Products New York Stock Exchange. Inc. Five Star Bank
Digital Federal Credit Union Robert W. Baird & Co. Inc. Freedom Mortgage
Corporation
Trans Union, LLC Midtand Credit
Management, Inc.
Trustmark National Bank OceanFirst Bank
Wilmington Trust Company SchoolsFirst Federal
Credit Union
Manufacturing . .................. Apple, Inc. Analog Devices Evergreen Solar, Inc.
Dell, Inc. Dresser, [nc. Benchmark Electronics
EMC Corporaticn Oshkosh Truck Corporation Hitachi Computer
Products
Black & Decker Scotts Miracle-gro Company Gates Rubber Co.
Covidien Roche Diagnostics Corporation Hewlett Packard Financial
Services
Research In Motion Inc. Nikon, Inc.
Healthcare ...................... New York Presbyterian Hospital ~ Adventist Healthcare Spectra Laboratories
Sanofi-Avenlis Cincinnati Children’s Hospital Calvary Hospital, Inc.
Hospital For Special Surgery Evanston Northwestern Healthcare  Christian healthcare
Center
University of North Curolina Franciscan Hospital for Children Huntington Memorial
Hospitals Hospital
Lutheran Medical Center Nevada Cancer Institute Mercy Hospital Miami
Yale New Haven Health System  Palmetto Health OCakwood Healthcare
Competition

The market for on-demand compensation management and performance management solutions is
fragmented, competitive and rapidly evolving, and there are low barriers to entry to some segments of this
market. Within our markets, the most common applications in use today are generic desktop software tools and
solutions that are not specifically designed for compensation management or performance management. We also
compete with software vendors that offer solutions through either traditional on-premise delivery methods or to a
lesser extent, on-demand solutions, and established consulting firms that continue to offer a diversity of services
and software products. We also expect to encounter new and evolving competition as the market for on-demand
compensation management software and services consolidates and matures and as organizations become
increasingly aware of the advantages and efficiencies that can be attained from the use of compensation
management software and data solutions.
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We believe the principal factors that generally determine a company’s competitive advantage in the
compensation management and performance management markets include the following:

»  alarge instalied customer base;
¢+ awell-known and respected brand;
+  breadth and depth of proprietary content;

« the ability to offer both powerful software and technology and accurate compensation data in a single
offering;

+  experienced sales and distribution capabilities;

= ease of deployment;

+  low cost of ownership;

+  asuite of products (rather than individual point solutions); and

+  anintegrated platform (e.g., in which pay and performance software and data are linked).

We face competition primarily from five sources:
»  generic desktop software and in-house or custom-developed solutions;

*  established software vendors offering products specifically designed for compensation management,
performance management and/or talent management;

=  established compensation and HR consulting firms;
»  other websites and advertising venues; and

*  existing and future start-up companies offering software, data, and e-commerce compensation
solutions.

Generic desktop software and in-house or custom-developed solutions:  Perhaps the most common
applications in use today are generic desktop software tools such as Microsoft Excel and Microsoft Access, as
well as other commercially available software solutions not specifically designed for compensation or
performance management. Compensation professionals at organizations of all sizes routinely use these generic
software tools to develop in-house or home-grown solutions. Although we believe our CompAnalyst and
TalentManager offerings are superior to these home-grown, partially automated solutions, some potential
customers may be reluctant to switch both because of the cost of our solution and because of the perceived risk
they face in giving up direct control over their sources of data.

Established software vendors:  Established HR software vendors compete with both our CompAnalyst and
TalentManager solutions. In addition, the market for our TalentManager solution is extremely competitive and
includes several companies that are more established and have greater financial, technological and marketing
resources than we do. As a result, we expect to face intense ongoing competition in this segment of our business,
which could affect our ability to increase or maintain market share in the performance management arena. These
software vendors include, without limitation, Authoria, Inc., Economic Research Institute, Inc., Equilar, inc.,
Halogen Sofiware Inc., MarketPay Associates LLC, Payscale, Inc., SuccessFactors, Inc., Workscape, Inc. and
Workstream Inc.

We also expect that new competitors, such as enterprise software vendors that have traditionatly focused on
enterprise resource planning, or ERP, or back office applications, will enter, or greatly expand their offerings in,
the on-demand compensation and performance management software market as it develops and matures. In
addition, there are a number of companies that have products in the broader talent management market, which
includes not only compensation and performance management, but aiso learning and recruitment management.
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We expect over time that certain of these companies may also seek to offer compensation and performance
management products in competition with us. These large, traditional players in the HR space could focus their
considerable financial, technical, marketing and sales resources on various segments of our business, either by
developing their own products in-house or purchasing another company. To the extent such efforts are
successful, it is possible that these new competitors could rapidly acquire significant market share.

Established compensation and HR consulting firms:  The market for compensation management data and
services has traditionally been dominated by large consulting firms, such as Mercer LLC and Watson Wyatt
Worldwide, Inc., many of which have greater financial, sales and marketing, management, service, support and
other resources than we have. Such firms have traditionally offered an expensive but fully customized
compensation management solution to the nation’s largest enterprises. In addition, several of these firms have
invested in software-based compensation management tools. Therefore, we face two types of competition from
established consulting firms:

»  First, their customized consulting services represent an alternative to our CompAnalyst suite,
particularly in larger organizations, which frequently have long-standing and well-entrenched
relationships with compensation and HR consulting firms.

«  Second, some established HR consulting firms offer software that competes directly with certain
modules of both our CompAnalyst and TalentManager product lines. Although we believe that our
software products compete favorably with those offered by consulting firms, some of these firms have

"_far greater resources than we do and as a result may compete successfultly with our CompAnalyst and
TalentManager solutions.

Other websites and advertising venues: OQur advertising-sponsored offerings (Salary Wizard,
www salary.com, and Salary Center) compete with a wide variety of other websites and online media for
advertising dollars. To the extent these competitors are able to offer advertisers more effective or cost-efficient
means of marketing their product and services, we may be unable to grow, or face reduced revenues from some
or all of our advertising-based products.

Existing and future start-up software, data, and e-commerce companies: A number of smaller, early-stage
companies offer products that compete directly with one or more of our product lines. Although many of these
young companies may have fewer resources than we do, to the extent they are successful in their efforts, we may
face more effective competition from them in the future, and our financial performance may suffer as a result. In
addition, because the market for compensation and performance management software and services, as well as
e-commerce compensation products, is nascent and rapidly evolving, we expect additional, as yet unformed,
companies to enter our markets in the future. To the extent this occurs, some or all of our product lines will face
greater competition in the future, which may materially adversely affect our financial performance.

Inteflectual Property and Proprietary Content

We rely on a combination of patent, trademark, copyright and trade secret laws in the United States and
other jurisdictions as well as confidentiality procedures and contractual provisions to protect our proprietary
technology and our brand. We have two U.S. issued patents (one for our proprietary methods for calculating
market pricing across our data sets and one for our Salary Wizard product), each of which expires in 2022, and
three pending U.S. patent applications, as well as related patents and patent applications in other jurisdictions.
We also enter into confidentiality and proprietary rights agreements with our employees, consultants and other
third parties and control access to software, documentation, data and other proprietary information.

We pursue the registration of our trademarks in the United States. Currently, our CompPlanner, Salary
Wizard, CompAnalyst, CompAnalyst Executive, eComp, IPAS, TalentManager, and Survey Center marks are
federally registered in the U.S. In addition, we have applied for registration of the following trademarks:
Salary.com, PayScore and FlexTenant.
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We currentty license some of the content used to buitd our compensation data sets from numerous providers
pursuant to data reseller, data distribution, and license agreements with these providers. Our data sets are
generally derived from market data as collected in salary surveys. This information is used as one of several
inputs to our data set calculation methodology. Most of the licenses for this content are non-exclusive. We cannot
ensure that the data we require for our data sets will be available from such sources in the future or that the cost
of such data will not increase. Because we have content from numerous providers, we believe that the loss of any
one license would not substantially affect the quality of our data sets. In addition, if a third party successfully
asserted a claim that our use of data has violated our agreement with them or infringed upon their copyright, we
may be required to remove the applicable data from our data sets and regenerate our data sets without such data.

Although the protection afforded by patent, trademark, copyright and trade secret laws may provide some
advantages, we believe that our ability to maintain our competitive position is largely determined by such factors
as the technical skills of our personnel, the breadth and depth of our proprietary data sets, new product
developments and product enhancements.

Substantial litigation regarding intellectual property rights exists in the software industry. From time to
time, in the ordinary course of business, we may be subject to claims relating to our intellectual property rights or
those of others, and we expect that third parties may commence legal proceedings or otherwise assert inteliectual
property claims against us in the future, particularly as we expand the complexity and scope of our business, the
number of similar products increases and the functionality of these products further overlap. If a claim is asserted
that we have infringed the intellectual property of & third party, we may be required to seek licenses to that
technology. In addition, we license third-party technologies, primarily from Microsoft, that are incorporated into
some elements of our services. Although we do not believe that any one license is material to our operations,
licenses from third parties may not continue to be available to us at a reasonable cost, or at all. In addition, the
steps we have taken to protect our intellectual property rights may not be adequate. Third parties may infringe or
misappropriate our proprietary rights. Competitors may also independently develop technologies that are
substantially equivalent or superior to the technologies we employ in our services.

Seasonality

We experience some seasonality in our business cycle, resulting in cash flows from operating activities
typically being lower in our fiscal first and second quarters and higher in our fiscal third and fourth quarters.

Employees

At March 31, 2008, we had 366 full-time and part-time employees. Our employees are not represented by
any collective bargaining agreement, and we have never experienced a work stoppage. We believe we have good
relations with our employees.
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Executive Officers and Key Employees

The following table provides information regarding our executive officers and key employees as of June 1,

2008:

Name E Position(s)

Kent Plunkett* ......... 45 Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Yong Zhang® .......... 40 Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Technology Officer
and Director

Bryce Chicoyne* ........ 39 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

William H. Coleman* .... 45 Senior Vice President and Chief Compensation Officer

Meredith A. Hanrahan* .. 46 Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer

Teresa A. Shipp*........ 46  Senior Vice President of Sales

Christopher I. Fusco* .... 43 Vice President of Compensation and Data Operations

AndrewLinn ........... 49  Senior Vice President of Global Data Products

ElliotJ. Mark .......... 43  Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

Dean Vassiliou ......... 39  Vice President of Professional Services

Mark Albrecht .. ........ 56 Vice President of Product Marketing, Talent Management Solutions

Nicholas Camelio ....... 37  Vice President of Human Resources

Douglas W. Crisman ... .. 59  Vice President and General Manager, Competency Products

Joseph E. Duggan ....... 53 Vice President and Co-General Manager, ICR Division

Dana Freeman .......... 46  Vice President of Product Management

Brent Kleiman . ......... 39 Vice President of Marketing and General Manager, Small Business

John McCammond ...... 49  Vice President of Business Development

Thomas A. Samalis ...... 60 Vice President and Corporate Controller

Stephen Schoonover . .. .. 61 Vice President of HCM Consulting

Roger C. Sturtevant, Jr. 47 Vice President and Co-General Manager, ICR Division

* Denotes executive officer

Kent Plunkett founded Salary.com and has served as our Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
since 1999. Prior to founding Salary.com, Mr. Plunkett was CEO of Bumblebee Technologies Inc., a career
software publisher, from 1996 through 1999, held a leadership role at InfoSpace, Inc., an online content
syndication company, including online white and yellow pages, private-label search and mobile entertainment, in
1996 and Director of Business Development for Pro CD, Inc., a CD-ROM electronic directory publisher of white
pages, yellow pages and mapping content, from 1995 through 1996. In 2007, Mr. Plunkett received the Emst &
Young Entrepreneur of the Year award in the business and financial services category for the New England
region. Mr. Plunkett holds an A.B. degree from Georgetown University and an M.B.A. from the Harvard
Business School and is a Certified Compensation Professional.

Yong Zhang has served as our Chief Technology Officer since April 2000 and as our Executive Vice
President and Chief Operating Officer since June 2006. Mr. Zhang has been a member of our board of directors
since December 2004. Prior to joining Salary.com, Mr. Zhang held various technical leadership and project
management positions at privately held software and healthcare companies, including Iconomy.com, a pioneer of
private-label e-commerce solutions, Smart Route System, a traveler information company, and Center for Health
and Human Services, Inc., and served as consultant for Aerovox, Inc., a publicly-held capacitor manufacturer.
Mr. Zhang holds a B.S. in Physics from Shanghai University of Science and Technology, an M.B.A. from
Cornell University and an M.S. in Electrical Engineering as well as an M.S. in Physics from University of
Massachusetts at Dartmouth. Mr. Zhang is a Certified Compensation Professionat and a Global Remuneration
Professional.

Bryce Chicoyne has served as our Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since May 2008. From
August 2004 to May 2008, Mr, Chicoyne was the Chief Financial Officer of Harvard Bioscience, Inc., a
developer and manufacturer of products for the clinical and research industries. Prior to joining Harvard
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Bioscience, Mr. Chicoyne served from December 2002 to August 2004 as Director of Financial Reporting with
Apogent Technologies Inc. (now a subsidiary of Fisher Scientific Inc.), a developer and manufacturer of products
for the clinical and research industries. From May 2000 to December 2002, Mr. Chicoyne served as the Manager
of Financial Reporting of Sonus Networks, Inc., a provider of voice over IP infrastructure solutions for wireline
and wireless service providers. Mr. Chicoyne holds a B.S. in accounting from the University of Southern New
Hampshire and an M.B.A. from the F.W. Olin School of Business at Babson College.

William H, Coleman has served as our Senior Vice President and Chief Compensation Officer since
November 2006 and served as our Senior Vice President, Compensation from November 2002 until November
2006 and as our Vice President, Compensation from May 2000 until November 2002. Prior to joining us,

Mr. Coleman held senior compensation positions with Watson Wyatt Worldwide, a global consulting company,
and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. Mr. Coleman holds a B.S. in Mathematics from the Massachusetts Institute of
Technology and is a Certified Compensation Professional.

Meredith A. Hanrahan has served as our Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer since
September 2005. From January 2005 to September 2005, Ms. Hanrahan was a marketing consultant for Yankee
Group, a technology research and consulting firm, and also for Boston Beer Company, a publicly-traded
beverage company. From November 2003 until November 2004, Ms. Hanrahan was General Manager and Chief
Marketing Officer for AG Interactive (the interactive division of American Greetings) and from May 2000
through November 2003, Ms. Hanrahan was Vice President and General Manager for Terra Lycos, a Spanish
provider of Internet access. Prior to that, Ms. Hanrahan worked for five years as a strategy consultant for KPMG
and McKinsey & Company in New York, and for ten years in senior and management positions at General Mils,
Inc., Miller Brewing Company, and Lindt Chocolate USA. Ms. Hanrahan holds a B.A. from the University of
New Hampshire and an M.B.A. from the Harvard Business School.

Teresa A. Shipp has served as our Senior Vice President of Sales since May 2003 and served as our
Corporate Controller from November 2002 until August 2004. From November 2001 until September 2002,
Ms, Shipp was International Finance Manager for LoJack Corporation, a publicly-held provider of vehicle
recovery systems. Ms. Shipp holds a B.S. in Electrical Engineering from the University of Notre Dame and an
M.B.A. from the Harvard Business School and is a Certified Public Accountant, a Certified Compensation
Professional and a Global Remuneration Professional.

Christopher J. Fusco has served as our Vice President of Compensation and Data Operations since July
2006 and served as our Vice President, Business Analysis, from July 2005 to July 2006, our Professional
Services Director from March 2004 to July 2005 and our Senior Compensation Consultant from February 2002
to March 2004. From July 1998 through May 2001, Mr. Fusco was a Senior Consultant with William M. Mercer,
Inc., a global consulting company. Prior to 1998, Mr. Fusco served in various compensation management
positions with companies such as KPMG, an audit, tax and advisory firm, W.R. Grace & Co., a global specialty
chemicals and materials company, Towers Perrin, a professional services firm, and Interleaf, a provider of
software products used for business documents. Mr. Fusco holds a B.S. from the University of Connecticut and
an M.B.A. frem Northeastern University. Mr. Fusco is a Certified Compensation Professional and Global
Remuneration Professional and has earned lifetime achievement as a Senior Professional in Human Resources
(SPHR) by the Society of Human Resource Management.

Andrew Linn has served as our Senior Vice President of Global Data Products since July 2005 and served as
our Senior Vice President of Product Management from 2000 to July 2005. Prior to 2000, Mr. Linn served in
various capacities with One Source Information Services (and its predecessor, Lotus Development Corporation),
including Group Product Manager and Product Manager from November 1988 through Janueary 2000, an
aggregator of business and company information. Mr. Linn holds a B.S. from the Wharton School at the
University of Pennsylvania and is a Chartered Financial Analyst, a Certified Compensation Professional and a
World at Work certified Global Remuneration Professional.
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Elliot J. Mark has served as our Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary since October 2006.
From August 2003 until September 2006, Mr. Mark was Senior Vice President and General Counsel of Viisage
Technology, Inc., a NASDAQ-traded identity technology company. During the period from January 2001 to
March 2003, Mr. Mark was the General Counsel of eRoom Technology, Inc., an enterprise software company.
Prior to that, Mr. Mark held senior legal positions a1 SimPlayer Sports, Inc., a developer of interactive
applications for the sports market, Arthur D. Little, Inc., a global consulting firm, and Molten Metal Technology,
Inc., an environmental technology company. Mr. Mark started his career with Goodwin Procter LLP. Mr. Mark
holds a B.A. from Wesleyan University and a J.D. from The Georgetown University Law Center.

Dean Vassiliou has served as our Vice President of Professional Services since October 2006. From
November 2003 to October 2006, Mr. Vassiliou was the Vice President of Professional Services at 4Datalink
Inc., an enterprise application integration solution provider. From June 2004 to November 2005, he was the Vice
President of Product Management and Marketing at Valaran Corporation, an enterprise software company. Prior
to that, Mr. Vassiliou held a variety of positions at Lodestar Corporation, an enterprise software company, from
1998 to February 2004, including Senior Vice President of Products, Services and Support from November 2001
to February 2004. Mr. Vassiliou holds a B.S. in Mechanica! Engineering from the University of Hartford.

Mark Albrecht has served as our Vice President of Product Marketing for Talent Management Solutions
since March 2006 and from February 2004 to March 2006, he served as our Vice President of Professional
Services. From 2002 through 2004, Mr. Albrecht served as Managing Partner of Business Performance Partners,
a performance management consulting firm. During the period from 2000 through 2002, Mr. Albrecht was Vice
President of Professional Services at Comimerce One, a supplier of on demand supply chain management
solutions. Mr. Albrecht holds a B.S. from Florida State University, an M.B.A. in Operations Management from
Boston University and an M.A. in Psychology from Montclair State College and is a Certified Compensation
Professional.

Nicholas Camelio has served as our Vice President of Human Resources since June 2007. From January
2006 to March 2007, Mr. Camelio was the Vice President of Human Resources for BrassRing Inc., an enterprise
application talent management solution provider. From February 2001 through January 2006, Mr. Camelio
served as Senior Director of Human Resources at BrassRing Inc., and prior to that was a Regional Human
Resources Director for Vignette Corporation, an enterprise software company. From 1992 through February,
2000, Mr. Camelic held a variety of positions at Lotus Development Corporation and International Business
Machines (IBM), including Human Resources Director for the North American Sales and Services organization.
Mr. Camelio holds a B.S. from Bentley College and is a member of World at Work, the American Society for
Training and Development, the Society of Human Resource Management and a certified Myers-Briggs
professional trainer.

Douglas W. Crisman joined Salary.com in August 2007 as part of the ITG Competency Group acquisition,
and now serves as a Vice President of Salary.com and General Manager of our competency business. Mr.
Crisman was the President and sole owner of ITG from 2006 to August 2007. In 2001, Mr. Crisman founded
Oldhorses, Inc., a consulting firm assisting business owners in growing their businesses. From 2000 to 2001, he
was the Chief Operating Officer of the e-commerce group of the American Arbitration Association, a dispute
resolution organization. Mr. Crisman holds a B.A. in Management and Data Processing from Boise State
University. He currently sits on the Executive Committee for SIM New Jersey and the Board of Directors for
Glen Wild Lake Association, and is a member of Vistage International and ACG International.

Joseph E. Duggan joined us in May 2007 as part of the ICR acquisition, and serves as the Vice President
and co-General Manager of our ICR division. Mr. Duggan was a founding partner of ICR in 1995, and served in
an executive role at that firm since its founding. Prior to that, Mr. Duggan held senior management positions with
Stride Rite Corporation, a publicly traded footwear company, and Data General Corporation, a computer systems
manufacturer. He has a B.S. from Suffolk University and an M.B.A. from Babson College.
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Dana Freeman has served as our Vice President of Product Management since March 2006. From 2003
through 2006, Mr. Freeman was Vice President of Product Management at Deploy Solutions, a human resources
management software company. From 1999 through 2003, Mr. Freeman was President and CEO of HRchitect, a
human capital management consulting company. Mr. Freeman holds a B.S. in Business Administration from the
University of Maine.

Brent Kleiman has served as our Vice President of Marketing and General Manager, Small Business since
November 2007. From December 2003 through October 2006, Mr. Kleiman held various executive roles at
Deploy Solutions (acquired by Kronos), a leading provider of recruiting and hiring software and services.
Kleiman spent August 1996 through December 2003 in leadership positions at Humetrics, a company
specializing in hourly employee hiring automation. From January 2000 through December 2003, Kleiman served
as Humetrics’ President and CEQ, which was then acquired by Deploy in late 2003. Prior to Humetrics, Kleiman
led successful teams in general management and brand marketing for the Procter & Gamble Company and
Heublein. Kleiman holds a B.A. in Business with a concentration in Finance and Marketing from the University
of Texas at Austin and an M.B.A. from the Harvard Business School.

John McCammond has served as our Vice President of Business Development since May 2005. From 2001
to 2005, Mr, McCammond was Vice President of Channel Sales at Avaki, a provider of enterprise information
integration software systems. Mr. McCammond holds a B.A. from Williams College and an M.B.A. from the
Harvard Business School,

Thomas A. Samalis has served as our Vice President and Corporate Controller since August 2004. From
1994 to July 2004, Mr. Samalis was Vice President and Corporate Controller for OneSource Information
Services, Inc., a publicly-held company and provider of business information. Prior to that, he was employed for
twenty-three years by Interactive Data Corporation, a provider of business and financial data, where he served as
Vice President and Corporate Controller for six years, and in various finance and accounting capacities, including
Director of Accounting and Accounting Manager throughout the preceding seventeen years. Mr. Samalis holds a
B.S. in Accounting from Suffolk University and an M.B.A. from Bentley College.

Stephen Schoonover, M.D, joined us in December 2007 as Vice President of Salary.com HCM Consulting
Practice. For the past twenty-five years, Dr. Schoonover has designed and implemented performance
development systems. He pioneered the development of a compelency-based leadership framework and has
delivered competency consulting engagements for a variety of leading Fortune 100 companies. Dr, Schoonover is
an authority on the successful implementation of competency-driven human capital management and published
several key studies, including Competency-Based HR Applications: Results of a Comprehensive Study in
partnership with the Society for Human Resource Management and Arthur Andersen; a study for the Society for
Human Resource Management on human resource competencies “Human Resource Competencies for the Year
2000: The Wake Up Calt” published by SHRM and its companion piece, Human Resource Competencies for the
Year 2000: A Professional’s Toolkit for Performance Development. Dr. Schoonover is a board-certified
psychiatrist and a graduate of Harvard College and Harvard Medical School. He was on the academic faculty at
Harvard Medical Schoel for ever 15 years, taught in Harvard’s department of psychology and currently teaches
courses at Kellogg School of Management. ‘

Roger C. Sturtevant, Jr, joined us in May 2007 as part of the ICR acquisition, and serves as the Vice
President and co-General Manager of our ICR division. Mr. Sturtevant was a founding partner of ICR in 1995,
Prior to that, he was the Manager of Compensation, HRIS and Staffing at Kendall Healthcare Products, a
healthcare products company. Mr. Sturtevant holds a B.S. in Organizational Psychology and an M.S. in Human
Resources Management from Purdue University.
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Facilities

Our corporate headquarters, including our principal administrative, marketing, technical support and
research and development facilities, are located in Waltham, Massachusetts, where we lease approximately
62,000 square feet under an agreement that expires in 2009. Additionally, we lease approximately 18,800 square
feet of office space in Shanghai, China, which is the headquarters of SDC China Limited, our wholly foreign
owned enterprise. We primarily conduct research and development in the Shanghai office. We have multiple
leases for contiguous office space with two year base terms, the first of which expires in 2008. Each lease has a
two year extension option. We believe that our current facilities are suitable and adequate to meet our current
needs, and that suitable additional or substitute space will be available as needed to accommodate expansion of
our operations. We expect to occupy new headquarters in the metropolitan Boston area upon the expiration of our
headquarters lease in 2009. As a result of our projected growth in headcount, we anticipate leasing more than
62,000 square feet long-term space. We will incur costs to relocate our headquarters and we expect that our remial
costs for new space will be higher than our current rental costs due to the larger space and current market
conditions. See Note 7 to the notes to our consolidated financial statements and “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Contractual Obligations” for information regarding
our lease obligations.

Internet Address

Our internet address is www.salary.com. We make available, free of charge, on or through our website, our
Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form §-K and
amendments to such reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended as soon as reasonably practical after such reports are electronically filed with the SEC. Our
website is not incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains or incorporates a number of forward-looking statements within
the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. Forward-looking statements relate to future events or our future financial performance. We generally
identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “plans,”
“anticipates,” “could,” “intends,” “target,” “projects,” “contemplates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,”
“potential” or “continue” or the negative of these terms or other similar words. These statements are only
predictions. We have based these forward-looking statements largely on our current expectations and projections
about future events and financial trends that we believe may affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations. The outcome of the events described in these forward-locking statements is subject to risks,
uncertainties and other factors described in “Risk Factors,” “Management’s Discussion and Anatysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” and elsewhere in this report. Accordingly, you should not rely upon
forward-looking statements as predictions of future events. We cannot assure you that the events and
circumstances reflected in the forward-looking statements will be achieved or occur, and actual results could
differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking statermnents. We have identified below some
important factors that could cause our forward-looking statements to differ materially from actual results,
performance or financial condition:

LAY ELITY LI 2

¢ our ability to become profitable;
»  the ability of our solutions to achieve market acceplance;
*  ahighly competitive market for compensation management;

*  failure of our customers to renew their subscriptions for our products;
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»  our inability to adequately grow our operations and attain sufficient operating scale;

*  our inability to effectively protect our intellectual property and not infringe on the iniellectual property
of others;

*  our inability to raise sufficient capital when necessary or at satisfactory valuations;
«  the loss of key personnel; and

¢ other factors discussed elsewhere in this report.

The risks and uncertainties described in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are not the only ones we face.
Additional risks and uncertainties, including those not presently known to us or that we currently deem
immaterial, may also impair our business. The forward-looking statements made in this Annual Report on Form
10-K relate only to events as of the date of this report. Except as required by law, we assume no obligation to
update any forward-looking statements after the date of this report.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K also contains market data related to our business and industry. This
market data includes projections that are based on a number of assumptions. If these assumptions turn out to be
incorrect, actual results may differ from the projections based on these assumptions. As a result, cur markets may
not grow at the rates projected by these data, or at all. The failure of these markets to grow at these projected
rates may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations and the
market price of our common stock

We operate in an emerging and rapidly evolving market which makes it difficult to evaluate our business
and future prospects and may increase the risk of your investment,.

We derive, and expect to continue to derive for the foreseeable future, the vast majority of our revenues
from on-demand compensation and talent management solutions, which is a relatively new and emerging market,
making our business and future prospects difficult to evaluate. Many companies have invested substantial
personnel and financial resources in their human resource, or HR, departments or have engaged outside
consulting firms or HR Business Process Qutsourcers, or HR BPOs, to obtain corporate compensation data and
solutions, and may be reluctant or unwilling to migrate to on-demand software designed to address their
compensation management needs. The market for on-demand software solutions is at an early stage of
development, and it is uncertain whether an on-demand model such as ours will achieve and sustain the high
level of market acceptance that is critical to the success of our business. Qur success will depend to a substantial
extent on the willingness of companies to increase their use of on-demand software in general and on-demand
compensation management software in particular. If businesses do not perceive the benefits of on-demand
software, then the market may not develop further, or it may develop more slowly than we expect, either of
which would adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. You must consider our
business and future prospects in light of the challenges, risks and difficulties we encounter in the new and rapidly
evolving market for on-demand compensation management. These challenges, risks and difficulties include the
following:

»  generating sufficient revenue to achieve and maintain profitability;
+  developing new products and enhancing the functionality and features of existing applications;
+  attracting and retaining new customers and expanding the revenue generated from existing customers;,

= managing growth in our operations, including the expansion of our direct sales and marketing
operations; and

*  attracting and retaining key personnel.

We may not be able 1o successfully address any of these challenges, risks and difficuliies, including the
other risks related to our business and industry described below. Failure to adequately do so could adversely
affect our business, results of operations or financial condition.
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Our solutions are primarily sold pursuant to subscription agreements, and if our existing customers elect
either not to renew these agreements or renew these agreements for fewer applications or at a lower price,
our business, financial condition and results of operations will be adversely affected.

Our solutions are primarily sold pursuant to annual or multi-year subscription agreements and our customers
have no obligation to renew these agreements. As a result, we are not able to consistently and accurately predict
future renewal rates. Our customers’ renewal rates may decline or fluctuate or our customers may renew for
fewer applications or at a lower price as a result of a number of factors, including their level of satisfaction with
our solutions, budgetary concemns or the availability and pricing of competing products. Additionally, we may
lose customers due to the high turmover rate in their HR departmenits. If large numbers of existing customers do
not renew these agreements, or renew these agreements on terms less favorable to us, and if we cannot replace or
supplement those non-renewals with new subscription agreements generating the same or greater level of
revenue, our business, financial condition and results of operations will be adversely affected.

We have incurred operating losses in the past and expect to incur operating losses in the future.

We have incurred operating losses in the past and we expect to incur operating losses in the future. As of
March 31, 2008, our accumulated deficit is approximately $40.0 million. Qur recent operating losses were $12.3
million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, $8.3 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, and
$3.0 million for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006. We have not been profitable since our inception, and we
may not become profitable. In addition, we expect our operating expenses to increase in the future as we expand
our operations. If our operaling expenses exceed our expectations, our financial performance could be adversely
affected. If our revenue does not grow to offset these increased expenses, we may not become profitable. You
should not consider recent revenue growth as indicative of our future performance. In fact, in future periods, we
may not have any revenue growth, or our revenue could decline.

Our quarterly results of operations may fluctuate in the future. As a result, we may fail to meet or exceed
the expectations of investors or securities analysts which could cause our stock price to decline.

QOur quarterly revenue and results of operations may fluctuate as a result of a variety of factors, many of
which are outside of our control. If our quarterly revenue or results of operations fall below the expectations of
investors or securities analysts, the price of our commeon stock could decline substantially. Fluctuations in our
results of operations may be due to a number of factors, including, but not limited to, those listed below and
identified throughout this “Risk Factors” section in this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

*  our ability to retain and increase sales to existing customers and attract new customers;

»  the amount and timing of revenue recognized in a particular quarter as a result of changes in the
volume and mix of products and services sold in that quarter and prior quarters;

*  seasonality of our business cycle, given that our cash flows from operating activities are typically lower
in our fiscal first and second quarters and higher in our fiscal third and fourth quarters;

*  our policy of expensing sales commissions in each year of our customer subscriptions;
*  the timing and success of new product introductions or upgrades by us or our competitors;
«  changes in our pricing policies or those of our competitors;

*  competition, including entry into the market by new competitors and new product offerings by existing
competitors;

*  the amount and timing of expenditures related to expanding our operations, research and development,
or introducing new products;

«  changes in the payment terms for our products and services; and

»  the purchasing and budgeting cycles of our customers.
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Because our on-demand software is sold pursuant to annual or mulii-year subscription agreements and generally
we recognize revenue from these subscriptions over the term of the agreement, downturns or upturns in sales
may not be immediately reflected in our operating results. Most of our expenses, such as salaries and third party
hosting co-location costs, are relatively fixed in the short-term, and our expense levels are based in part on our
expectations regarding future revenue levels. As a result, if revenue for a particular quarter is below our
expectations, we may not be able to proportionally reduce operating expenses for that quarter, causing a
disproportionate effect on our expected results of operations for that quarter.

Due to the foregeing factors, and the other risks discussed in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, you should
not rely on quarter-to-quarter comparisons of our results of operations as an indication of our future performance.

Because we recognize revenue over the term of the applicable subscription agreement, the lack of
subscription renewals or new subscription agreements may not be immediately reflected in our operating
results,

We recognize revenue from our customers over the term of their subscription agreements with us or, if
applicable, over the remaining term once configuration and acceptance of application services has occurred. The
substantial majority of our quarterly revenue usually represents deferred revenue from subscriptions sold during
previous quarters. As a result, a decline in new or renewed subscription agreements in any one quarter will not
necessarily be fully reflected in the revenue for the corresponding quarter but will negatively affect our revenue
in future quarters. Additionally, the effect of significant downturns in sales and market acceptance of our
solutions may not be fully reflected in our results of operations until future periods. Our business mode] also
makes it difficult for us to reflect any rapid increase in our customer base and the resulting effect of this increase
in our revenue in any one period because revenue from new customers will be recognized over the applicable
subscription agreement term.

If our efforts to attract new customers or to sell additional solutions to our existing customers are not
successful, our revenue growth will be adversely affected.

To grow our revenue, we musi continually add new customers and sell additional solutions to existing
customers. If our existing and prospective customers do not perceive our solutions to be of sufficiently high value
and quality, we may not be able to attract new customers or to increase sales to existing customers. Our ability to
attract new customers and to sell new solutions to existing customers will depend in large part on the success of
our sales and marketing efforts. However, our existing and prospective customers may not be familiar with some
of our solutions or may have traditionally used other products and services for some of their compensation
management and talent management requirements. In addition, prospective customers may have invested
substantial personnel and financial resources in their HR deparniments or have engaged ouiside consulting firms
or HR BPOs to obtain corporate compensation data and solutions, and may be reluctant or unwilling to migrate to
our on-demand compensation management solutions to address their compensation management needs. Existing
customers and prospective customers may also decline to purchase our compensaticn management sotutions due
to budgetary concerns or the availability and pricing of competing products. If we fail to generate additional
business from our existing customers and new customers, our revenue could grow at a slower rate or decrease,
which could adversely affect our business, financial conditton and results of operations.

If we fail to successfully develop new applications, the growth of our business, our revenues and our results
of operations will be materially adversely affected.

We have developed new applications over time that have contributed to the growth of our business to date.
For example, we initially launched CompAnalyst Market Data (formerly known as Job Analyzer) in 2000 and
have since added CompAnalyst Survey Management, CompAnalyst Pay Analytics, which includes Reporting &
Analysis, Merit Modeling and Saiary Structures, and CompAnalyst Executive modules to create our
CompAnalyst suite. Products in the on-demand compensation management market typically take years to
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develop widespread market accepiance. We expect to rely on newly introduced applications for a substantial
portion of our growth for the foreseeable future. For example, in 2004, we introduced our TalentManager suite of
enterprise pay-for-performance applications. We anticipate that, as with any on-demand compensation
management application, it may be an extended period of time before TalentManager achieves market
acceptance. If we are unable to continue to develop and launch new applications or if our new applications are
not able to achieve market acceptance, our business, financial condition and results of operations will be
materially adversely affected.

If the economy worsens or labor market conditions deteriorate materially, our business may be harmed.

To the extent that the economy or labor market conditions materially deteriorate, our existing and potential
clients may no longer consider investment in their compensation and talent management systems a necessity, or
may elect to defer purchases or reduce budgets in these areas, Either of these developments could have an
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

If we do not continue to innovate and provide compensation management solutions that are useful te users,
we may not remain competitive, and our revenues and operating results could suffer.

Our success depends on providing compensation management solutions that HR decision makers may use to
make compensation decisions and individuals may use to assess their worth in the job market. QOur competitors
are constantly developing innovations in compensation management solutions. Additionally, the market for our
on-demand software is characterized by changes in customer requirements, changes in protocols and evolving
industry standards. As a result, we must continue to invest significant resources in research and development in
order to improve and enhance the responsiveness, functionality and features of our existing applications and
develop new applications so that we may offer a complete suite of solutions that are easy to use and effective. In
particular, we will need to expand our offering to more comprehensively address our customers’ compensation
management needs. If our innovations are not responsive to the needs of our users, they may become dissatisfied
and move to competitors” products and services, which would significantly impair our revenue growth, operating
results and reputation. In addition, if we are unable to predict user preferences or industry changes, or if we are
unable to modify our offerings on a timely basis, we may lose customers. Our operating results would also suffer
if our innovations are not appropriately timed with market opportunities or are not effectively brought to market.

Failure to effectively develop and expand our sales and marketing capabilities could harm our ability to
increase our customer base and achieve broader market acceptance of our solutions.

Increasing our customer base and achieving broader market acceptance of our solutions will depend to a
significant extent on our ability to expand our direct sales and marketing operations. We plan to continue to
expand our direct sales force in our Waltham, Massachusetts office as well as expand our regional sales force.
More specifically, over the next two years, we plan to incrementally hire up to 100 sales people to build out cur
competency, international, small business and strategic sales teams to penetrate new buying groups and new
geographic markets. Over this same time period, we also plan to incrementally invest up to $10 million in
marketing to extend our compensation brand globally and build awareness among a new set of buyers in
organizational and leadership development. Competition for our direct sales personnel is intense. We may have
difficulty hiring qualified candidates, particularly individuals with both compensation management and sales
experience, or may incur additional costs related to training new employees without a compensation or sales
background. We have from time to time in the past experienced, and we expect to continue to experience in the
future, difficulty in hiring and retaining highly skilled direct sales personnel with appropriate qualifications.
Furthermore, over the next two years we may be unable to meet the specific hiring and marketing investment
goals summarized above, the results of such initiatives may not yield the desired results to grow and expand our
business or brand awareness, and/or we may be unable to manage the resulting growth in headcount or marketing
spend in an efficient and cost effective manner. In this event, our ability to increase our customer base and
achieve broader market acceptance of our solutions could be jeopardized.
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Our sales force currently consists primarily of direct sales personnel who sell our products over the
telephone. As we expand our offerings and our customer base, it will be necessary for our sales personnel to
increase the frequency of in-person meetings with our customers in order to sell our products, which will increase
the costs incurred in the sales process, will require us to hire additional sales personnel and may extend the length
of our typical sales cycle. We also plan to expand our field sales force.

Our expansion will require us to invest significant financial and other resources in the sales and marketing
functions. Identifying and recruiting both in-house and field sales personnel and training them in the use of our
products requires significant time, expense and attention. New sales personnel are often not profitable during
their first year with us. Our business will be sertously harmed if the expansion of the direct sales force does not
generate a corresponding significant increase in revenue. We may not achieve anticipated revenue growth from
expanding our direct sales force if we are unable to hire, develop and retain talented direct sales personnel or if
our new direct sales personnel are unable to achieve desired productivity levels in a reasonable period of time.

If we fail to develop or maintain our brand cost-effectively, our business may suffer.

We believe that developing and maintaining awareness of our brand in a cost-effective manner is critical to
achieving widespread acceptance of our existing and future applications and is an important element in attracting
new customers and increasing business with existing customers. Successful promotion of our brand will depend
largely on the effectiveness of our marketing efforts and on our ability to provide reliable and useful solutions.
Brand promotion activities may not yield increased revenue, and even if they do, any increased revenue may not
offset the expenses we incur in building our brand. To date, we have developed our brand at a low cost primarily
by partnering with large Internet companies who drive traffic to our web site. Our strategy of partnering with
large Internet companies may not continue to build awareness of our brand at the rate we expect. If we are unable
to rely on the low cost distribution strategy of partnering with these Internet companies, we would incur costs to
replace this distribution which would adversely affect our results of operations. If we fail to successfully promote
and maintain our brand, or incur substantial expenses in an unsuccessful attempt to promote and maintain our
brand, we may fail to attract new customers or retain our existing customers to the extent necessary to realize a
sufficient return on our brand-building efforts, and our business could suffer. More specifically, over the next
two years, we plan to incrementally invest up to $10 million in marketing to extend our compensation brand
globally and build awareness among a new set of buyers in organizational and leadership development. Failure to
execute this plan in an efficient and cost effective manner could cause our business suffer.

We are dependent on our executive officers, and the loss of any of them may prevent us from
implementing our business plan in a timely manner if at all.

Our success depends largely upon the continued services of our executive officers and other key personnel,
particularly Kent Plunkett, our Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer, and Yong Zhang, our Executive
Vice President, Chief Operating Officer and Chief Technology Officer. We are also substantially dependent on
the continued service of our existing development personnel because of the complexity of our products and
technotogies, as well as on our existing personnel with both compensation management and technical experience
because of the difficulty we have had hiring individuals who have experience in both of these fields. Although
we currently maintain a key man life insurance policy on Kent Plunkett, this insurance would not adequately
compensate us for the loss of his services. The loss of one or more of our key employees could seriously harm
our business.

We may not be able to attract and retain the highly skilled employees we need to support our planned
growth.

To execute our business strategy, we must attract and retain highly qualified personnel. Competition for
these personnel is intense, especially for senior direct sales personnel with compensation management experience
and engineers with high levels of experience in designing and developing on-demand software. We have from
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time to time in the past experienced, and we expect to continue to experience in the future, difficulty in hiring
and retaining highly skilled employees with appropriate qualifications. Many of the companies with which we
compete for experienced personnel have greater resources than we do. In addition, in making employment
decisions, particularly in the Internet and high-technology industries, job candidates often consider the value of
the stock options or restricted stock they are to receive in connection with their employment. Significant
volatility in the price of our stock may, therefore, adversely affect our ability to attract’or retain key employees. If
we fail to attract new personnel or fail to retain and motivate our current personnel, we may not be able to
support our plan to hire up to 100 incremental salespeople over the next two years and our business and future
growth prospects could be severely harmed.

Our growth could strain our personnel and infrastructure resources, and if we are unable to implement
apprepriate controls and procedures to manage our growth, we may not be able to successfully implement
our business plan.

Rapid growth in our headcount and operations may place a significant strain on our management,
administrative, operational and financial infrastructure. Between March 31, 2004 and March 31, 2008, the
number of our full time equivalent employees increased from 68 to 366. We anticipate that additional growth will
be required in order to increase our customer base and handle an increase in the volume of our business. More
specifically, over the next two years, we plan to incrementally hire up to 100 sales people to build out our
compelency, international, small business and strategic sales teams to penetrate new buying groups and new
geographic markets,

Qur success will depend in part upon the ability of cur senior management to manage growth effectively. To
do so, we must continue to hire, train and manage new employees as needed. To date, we have not experienced
any significant problems as a result of the rapid growth in our headcount, other than occasional office space
constraints. However, our anticipated future growth, especially that which is planned over the next two years,
may place greater strains on our resources. For instance, if our new hires perform poorly, or if we are
unsuccessful in hiring, training, managing and integrating these new employees as needed, or if we are not
successful in retaining our existing employees, we may not be able to handle any increase in the volume of our
business or support the plan to hire up to 100 incremental salespeople over the next two years, and our business
may be harmed. As we continue to grow, we may outgrow our current spaces in Waltham, Massachusetts and
Shanghai, China or desire to open additional offices domestically and internaticnally, which will require us to
expend additional financial resources and make it more difficult to manage employees not located at our
principal headquarters and maintain uniform standards, controls, procedures and policies across locations. If we
determine that it is necessary or desirable to open additional offices, whether domestically or internationally,
management resources will be allocated to integrating new offices, handling cultural and language issues arising
from international operations and managing costs assaciated with a multi-office organization. Such focus could
divert management’s attention from managing ongoing business operations.

To manage the expected growth of our operations and personnel, we will need to continue to improve our
operational, financial and management controls and our reporting systems and procedures. The additional
headcount and capital investments we expect to add will increase our cost base, which will make it more difficult
for us to offset any future revenue shortfalls by offsetting expense reductions in the short term. If we fail to
successfully manage our growth, we will be unable to execute our business plan.

Qur data is obtained from a variety of sources, some of which may not be available to us in the future.

Cur proprietary compensation data sets are comprised of extensive data. We obtain our data from a variety
of sources, including major consulting firms and our partners, the SEC and other U.S, government agencies and
other third party providers, and through our own research efforts. We generally obtain data on a non-exclusive
basis and in a summary form. While we do not generally have an ability to resell such data in its entirety, we use
such data internally in generating our proprietary data sets. We cannot assure you that the data we require for our
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proprietary data sets will be available from these sources in the future or that the cost of such data will not
increase. From time to time in the past, third parties have sent us letters asserting that our use of data may have
violated our agreement with them or infringed upon their copyright. Although we believe that cur purchase and
use of ali third party surveys complies with copyright law and any applicable license agreements, we cannot
assure you that we will prevail in any such claims asserted against us and any litigation, regardless of its validity,
may involve significant costs and could divert our management’s time and attention from developing our
business.

If any third party successfully asserts a claim that we have violated their copyrights or our license
agreements with them, we may be required to remove the applicable data from our data sets and regenerate our
data sets without such data. Additionally, we may no longer be able to obtain data from the provider or other
providers on reasonable terms, if at all. Any inability to obtain data may have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Further, as we expand our customer base to inciude customers outside of the United States, we may not be
able to obtain sufficient international data on reasonable terms to support our data sets. We plan to obtain data
which we believe is sufficient to build proprietary data sets in order to support the development of an
international business. We expect to incur substantial expense to build proprietary data sets for international
markets. We cannot assure you that we will be able to successfully obtain sufficient data to develop proprietary
data sets for international markets.

We may expand through acquisitions of, investments in or through business relationships with other
organizations, all of which may divert our management’s attention, result in additional dilution te our
stockholders, consume resources that are necessary to sustain our business and may not result in the
realization of the goals underlying the acquisition, investment or business relationship.

One of our business strategies is 1o selectively pursue the acquisition of companies that would either expand
the functionality of our compensation management and talent management solutions or provide access to new
customers or markets, or both. In December 2007, we acquired the assets of Schoonover Associates, Inc. (SAI), a
leading provider of competency management data and consulting services. In August 2007, we acquired the
assets of ITG Competency Group, LLC (ITG), a leader in the competency model content business. In May 2007,
we acquired ICR Limited, L.C. and ICR International Ltd. (ICR}, a premier provider of specialty consumer goods
and global technology compensation data and software. In April 2006, we acquired the assets of the eComp
division of Aon Consulting, Inc. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources.” Additionally, we also may enter into business
relationships with other organizations in order to expand our offerings, which could involve preferred or
exclusive licenses, additional channets of distribution or discount pricing or investments in other organizations.
An acquisition, investment or business relationship may result in unforeseen operating difficulties and
expenditures. In particular, we may encounter difficulties assimilating or integrating the acquired organizations,
technologies, products, personnel or operations of the acquired organizations, particularly if the key personnel of
the acquired company choose not to work for us, and we may have difficulty retaining the customers of any
acquired business due to changes in management and ownership. Acquisitions may also disrupt our ongoing
business, divert our resources and require significant management attention that would otherwise be available for
ongoing development of our business. We also may experience lower rates of renewal from customers obtained
through acquisitions than we do from existing customers. Additionally, to the extent we expand into new
facilities, we may have difficulty maintaining uniform standards, controls, procedures and policies across
locations. Moreover, we cannot assure you that the anticipated benefits of any acquisition, investment or business
relationship would be realized or that we would not be exposed to unknown liabilities. In connection with one or
more of these transactions, we may:

»  issue additional equity securities that would dilute our existing stockholders’ ownership;

*  use cash that we may need in the future to operate our business;
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*  incur debt on terms unfavorable to us or that we are unable to repay;
= incur large charges or substantial liabilities;

«  encounter difficulties retaining key employees of an acquired company or integrating diverse business
cultures; and

*  become subject to adverse tax and accounting consequences.

Although we periodically engage in preliminary discussions with respect to acquisitions, we are not
currently a party to any agreement or commitment, and we have no understandings with respect to any
acquisition.

We face competition from a variety of sources, and our failure to compete successfully could make it
difficult for us to add new customers and retain existing customers and could reduce or impede the growth
of our business,

The market for on-demand compensation management and talent management solutions is fragmented,
competitive and rapidly evolving, and there are low barriers to entry to some segments of this market. We expect
the intensity of competition to increase in the future as existing competitors develop their capabilities and as new
companies enter our market. Additionally, as we expand our suite of compensation management and talent
management solutions and create new types of applications, we may face additional competition. Increased
competition could result in pricing pressure, reduced sales, lower margins or the failure of our solutions to
achieve or maintain broad market acceptance. If we are unable to compete effectively, it will be difficult for us to
maintain our pricing rates and add and retain customers, and our business, financial condition and results of
operations will be seriously harmed. We face competition primarily from:

. generic desktop software and in-house or custom-developed solutions;

= established software vendors offering products specifically designed for compensation management-or
talent management;

=  established compensation and HR consulting firms;
»  other websites and advertising venues; and

*  existing and future start-up companies offering software, data and interactive compensation solutions,

Many of our current and potential competitors have longer operating histories, a larger presence in the
general corporate compensation and talent management market, access to larger customer bases and substantially
greater financial, technical, sales and marketing, management, service, support and other resources than we have.
As a result, our competitors may be able to respond more quickly than we can to new or changing opportunities,
technologies, standards or customer requirements or devote greater resources to the promotion and sale of their
products and services than we can. To the extent our competitors have an existing relationship with a potential
customer, that customer may be unwilling to switch vendors due to existing commitments with such competitors.

We also expect that new competitors, including companies currently operating in the HR market, enterprise
software vendors and online service providers that have traditionally focused on enterprise resource planning or
back office applications will enter the on-demand compensation management market with competing products as
this market develops and matures. Many of these potential competitors have established or may establish
business, financial or strategic relationships among themselves or with existing or potential customers, alliance
partners or other third parties or may combine and consolidate to become more formidable competitors with
better resources. It is possible that these new competitors could rapidly acquire significant market share.
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Mergers or other strategic transactions involving our competitors could weaken our competitive position
or reduce our revenue.

We believe that cur industry is highly fragmented and that there is likely to be consolidation, which could
lead to increased price competition and other forms of competition. Increased competition may cause pricing
pressure and loss of market share, either of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. Our competitors may establish or strengthen cooperative relationships with
HR BPO vendors, systems integrators, third party consulting firms or other parties. Established companies may
not only develop their own products but may also merge with or acquire our current competitors. In addition, we
may face competition in the future from large established companies, as well as from emerging companies that
have not previously entered the markets for compensation management and talent management solutions or that
currently do not have products that directly compete with our solutions. It is also possible that new competitors
or alliances among competitors may emerge and rapidly acquire significant market share. In addition, our
competitors may announce new products, services or enhancements that better meet the price or performance
needs of clients or changing industry standards.

If there are interruptions or delays in our on-demand services due to third-party error, our own error or
the occurrence of unforeseeable events, delivery of our solutions and the use of our service could become
impaired, which could harm our relationships with customers and subject us to liability.

All of our solutions reside on hardware that we own or lease and operate and which is currently located in a
third party operations facility maintained and operated by AT&T in Watertown, Massachusetts. We do not
maintain long-term supply contracts with AT&T, and AT&T does not guarantee that our customers’ access 1o our
solutions will be uninterrupted, error-free or secure. QOur operations depend on AT&T’s ability to protect their
and our systems in their facilities against damage or interruption from natural disasters, power or
telecommunications failures, computer viruses or other attempts to harm our systems, criminal acts and similar
events, In the event that our operations facility arrangement with AT&T is terminated, or there is a lapse of
service or damage to such facility, we could experience interruptions in our service as well as delays and
additional expense in arranging new facilities and services.

Qur disaster recovery computer hardware and systems located at our headquarters in Waltham,
Massachusetts have not been tested under actual disaster cenditions and may not have sufficient capacity to
recover all data and services in the event of an outage occurring at our operations facility. In the event of a
disaster in which our operations facility was irreparably damaged or destroyed, we could experience lengthy
interruptions in our service. Moreover, our disaster recovery computer hardware and systems are located within
five miles of our operations facility and may be equally or more affected by any disaster affecting our operations
facility. Any or all of these events could cause our customers to lose access to our on-demand software.

Our on-demand compensation management and talent management solutions are accessed by a large
number of customers at the same time. As we continue to expand the number of our customers and applications
available to our existing clients, we may not be able to scale our technology to accommodate the increased
capacity requirements, which may result in interruptions or delays in services. In addition, the failure by the
AT&T facility to meet our capacity requirements could result in interruptions or delays in our service or impede
our ability to scale our operations.

We design the system infrastructure and procure and own or lease the computer hardware used for our
on-demand services. Design and mechanical errors, spikes in usage volume and failure to follow system
protocols and procedures could cause our systems to fail, resulting in interruptions in our service. While we have
not experienced extended system failures in the past, any interruptions or delays in our service, whether as a
result of third-party error, our own error, natural disasters or security breaches, whether accidental or willful,
could harm our relationships with customers and our reputation, Also, in the event of damage or interruption, our
insurance policies may not adequately compensate us for any losses that we may incur. These factors in turn

37




could damage our brand and reputation, divert our employees’ attention, reduce our revenue, subject us to
liability, cause us to issue credits or cause customers to fail to renew their subscriptions, any of which could
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Material defects or errors in our on-demand software could affect our reputation, result in significant
costs to us and impair our ability to sell our solutions, which would harm our business.

The software applications forming part of our solutions may contain material defects or errors, which could
materially and adversely affect our reputation, result in significant costs to us and impair our ability to sell our
solutions in the future. After the release of our products, defects or errors may also be identified from time to time
by our internal team and by our clients. The costs incurred in correcting any material product defects or errors may
be substantial and would adversely affect our operating results. Such defects or errors may occur in the future.

Because our customers use our solutions for important aspects of their business, any errors or defects in, or other
performance problems with, our solutions could hurt our reputation and may damage our customers’ businesses. If that
occurs, we could lose future sales or our existing customers could elect not to renew their agreements with us.
Software performance problems could result in loss of market share, failure to achieve, or a delay in achieving, market
acceptance of our solutions and the diversion of development resources. If one or more of our solutions fail to perform
or contain a technical defect, a customer may assert a claim against us for substantial damages, whether or not we are
responsible for our solutions’ failure or defect. We do not currently maintain any warranty reserves.

Product liability claims could require us to spend significant time and money in litigation or arbitration/
dispute resolution or to pay significant settlements or damages. Although we maintain general liability insurance,
including coverage for errors and omissions, this coverage may be inadequate, or may not be available in the
future on reasonable terms, or at all. Defending a lawsuit, regardless of its merit, could be costly and divert
management’s attention and could cause our business to suffer.

We may be liable to our customers and may lose customers if we provide poor service, if our solutions do
not comply with our agreements or if there is a loss of data.

The information used in our proprietary data sets may not be complete or may contain inaccuracies that our
customers regard as significant. Our ability to collect and report data may be interrupted by a number of factors,
including the termination of agreements with third-party data providers, our inability to access the Internet, the
failure of our network or software systems or failure by our operations facility to meet our capacity requirements.
In addition, computer viruses and intentional or unintentional acts of our employees may harm our systems,
causing us to lose data we maintain and supply 1o our customers or data that our customers input and maintain on
our systems, and the transmission of computer viruses could expose us to litigation. Our subscription agreements
generally give our customers the right to terminate their agreements for cause if we materially breach our
obligations. Any failures in the services that we supply or the loss of any of our customers' data that we cannot
rectify in a reasonable time period may give our customers the right to terminate their agreements with us and
could subject us to liability. As a result, we may also be required to spend substantial amounts to defend lawsuits
and pay any resulting damage awards. In addition to potential liability, if we supply inaccurate data or experience
interruptions in our ability to supply data, our reputation could be harmed and we could lose customers,

Although we maintain general liability insurance, including coverage for errors and omissions, this coverage
may be inadequate, or may not be available in the future on reasonable terms, or at all. In addition, we cannot
assure you that this policy will cover any claim against us for loss of data or other indirect or consequential
damages and defending a lawsuit, regardless of its merit, could be costly and divert management’s attention.

Reductions in information technology spending could limit our ability to grow our business.

Qur operating results may vary based on changes in the information technology, or IT, spending of our
clients. The revenue growth and profitability of our business depend on the overall demand for enterprise
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application software and services. We sell our solutions primarily to large organizations whose businesses
fluctuate with general economic and business conditions. As a result, decreased demand for enterprise
application software and services, and in particular on-demand compensation management solutions, caused by a
weakening global economy or otherwise may cause a decline in our revenue, Historically, economic downturns
have resulted in overall reductions in corporate IT spending. In particular, compensation management software
may be viewed by some of our existing and potentiai clients as a lower priority and may be among the first
expenditures reduced as a result of unfavorable economic conditions. In the future, potential clients may decide
to reduce their IT budgets by deferring or reconsidering product purchases, which would negatively affect our
operating results,

Because our products collect and analyze applicants’ and employees’ stored personal information,
concerns that our products do not adequately protect the privacy of applicants and employees could result
in liability to us and inhibit sales of our products.

Some of the features of our compensation management and talent management applications depend on the
ability to develop and maintain profiles of applicants and employees for use by our clients. Our software
applications augment these profiles over time by capturing additional data and collecting usage data. Although
our applications are designed to protect user privacy, privacy concerns nevertheless may cause individuals and
businesses to resist providing the personal data necessary to support our products, Any inability 1o adequately
address privacy concerns, even if unfounded, or comply with applicable privacy laws and regulations, could
result in liability to us, damage our reputation, inhibit sales of our products and seriously harm our business,
financial condition and operating results.

As we continue 1o extend our operations outside of the United Siates, we may become subject to various
data protection regulations such as those adopted by the European Union related to the confidentiality of personal
data.

If our security measures are breached and unauthorized access is obtained to client data, clients may
curtail or stop their use of our solutions, which would harm our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Our solutions involve the storage and transmission of confidential information of clients and their existing
and potential employees, and security breaches could expose us to a risk of loss of, or unauthorized access 1o, this
information, resulting in possible litigation and possible liability. Although we have never sustained such a
breach, if our security measures were ever breached as a result of third-party action, employee error, malfeasance
or otherwise, and, as a result, an unauthorized party obtained access to this confidential data, our reputation could
be damaged, our business could suffer and we could incur significant liability. Techniques used to obtain
unauthorized access or to sabotage systems change frequently and generally are not discovered until launched
against a target. As a result, we may be unable to anticipate these techniques or to implement adequate
preventative measures. If an actual or perceived breach of our security occurs, the market perception of our
security measures could be harmed and we could lose sales and clients.

We may increase our sales and marketing efforts to clients outside the United States and apen offices outside
the United States, which would expose us to additional risks associated with international operations.

As a part of our future business strategy, and in support of the plan o increase our sales force and investment
in marketing over the next two years, we intend to increase our operations outside the United States, including our
international sales efforts. In December 2006, we established a wholly foreign owned enterprise in Shanghai, China
primarily for software development. In connection with the ICR acquisition, we now have a senior business
development representative in Europe. Furthermore, in March 2008, we released our first international dataset
within the existing CompAnalyst market pricing suite in Canada and completed our first sales to customers. While
we have no additional specific plans or commitments with respect to any further intemational expansion, we may
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open additional offices outside of the United States in the future. We may not be successful in our efforts to
establish our Chinese operations or to expand our sales into Canada and other international markets and open
additional international offices. International operations and sales subject us to risks and challenges that we would
otherwise not face if we conducted our business only in the United States including:

*  legal and regulatory restrictions;

»  challenges caused by distance, language and cultural differences and in doing business with foreign
agencies and governments;

= difficulties obtaining additional dara sources that cover international job markets at a reasonable cost;

« difficuities obtaining the data necessary to support international customers on reasonable terms, if at
all;

« difficulties developing algorithms that can be used to generate and analyze data on international job
markets;

+ difficulties in developing products and services in different languages and for different cultures;
= difficulties in managing and staffing international operations;

s challenges in protecting data and intellectual property;

*  longer payment cycles in some countries;

«  credit risk and higher levels of payment fraud,

+  currency exchange rate fluctuations;

»  political and economic instability and export restrictions;

»  potentially adverse tax consequences, including the complexities of foreign value added tax systems
and restrictions on the repatriation of earnings; and

*  higher costs associated with doing business internationally.

Our limited experience with conducting business internationally increases our risk of operating
internationally and requires management to focus additional attention and resources on our international
operations. These risks could harm our international expansion efforts or other aspects of our business, which
would in turn harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Evolving regulation of the Internet may increase our expenditures related to compliance efforts, which
may adversely affect our financial condition. :

As Internet commerce continues to evolve, increasing regulation by federal, state or foreign agencies
becomes more likely. We are particularly sensitive to these risks because the Internet is a critical component of
our on-demand business model. For example, we believe that increased regulation is likely in the area of data
privacy, and laws and regulations applying to the solicitation, collection, processing or use of personal or
consumer information could affect our clients’ ability to use and share data, potentially reducing demand for
solutions accessed via the Internet and restricting our ability to store, process and share data with our clients via
the Internet. In addition, taxation of services provided over the Intemnet or other charges imposed by government
agencies or by private organizations for accessing the Internet may also be imposed. Any regulation imposing
greater fees for Internet use or restricting information exchange over the Internet could result in a decline in the
use of the Internet and the viability of Internet-based services, which could harm our business.
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The success of our business depends on the continued growth and acceptance of the Internet as a business
and communications tool, and the related expansion of the Internet infrastructure.

The future success of our business depends upon the continued and widespread adoption of the Internet as a
primary medium for commerce, communication and business applications. Our business growth would be impeded
if the performance or perception of the Internet was harmed by security problems such as “viruses,” “worms” and
other malicious programs, reliability issues arising from outages and damage to Internet infrastructure, delays in
development or adoption of new standards and protocols to handle increased demands of Internet activity, increased
costs, decreased accessibility and quality of service or increased government taxation of Internet activity.

The Internet has experienced, and is expected to continue to experience, significant user and traffic growth,
which has, at times, caused user frustration with stow access and download times. If Internet activity grows faster
than Internet infrastructure or if the Internet infrastructure is otherwise unable to support the demands placed on
it, or if hosting capacity becomes scarce, our business growth may be adversely affected.

If we are unable to protect our proprietary technology and other intellectual property rights, it will reduce
our ability to compete for business and we may lose valuable assets, experience reduced revenue and incur
costly litigation to protect our rights.

Qur intellectual property rights are important to our business, and our success is dependent, in part, on
protecting our proprietary technology and our brand, marks and domain names. In particular, the processes we
use when working with the data we obtain, including the use of algorithms and other analytical tools, are critical
to the accuracy of our data sets and the success of our business. We rely on a combination of patent, copyright,
trademark and trade secret laws, as well as licensing agreements, third-party nondisclosure agreements and other
contractual provisions and technical measures, to protect our intellectual property rights. These protections may
not be adequate to prevent our competitors from copying our solutions or otherwise infringing on our intellectual
property rights. Existing copyright laws afford only limited protection for our intellectual property rights and
may not protect such rights in the event competitors independently develop solutions similar or superior to ours.
In addition, the taws of some countries in which our solutions are or may be licensed may not protect our
solutions and intellectual property rights to the same extent as do the laws of the United States.

To protect our proprictary methods, we have two U.S. issued patents and corresponding foreign equivalents,
and currently have three U.S. patent applications pending and corresponding foreign equivalents. We cannot
assure you that the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office (or its foreign equivalents) will grant these patents, or that
the patents granted will give us the protection that we seek.

To protect our trade secrets and other proprietary information, we require employees, consultants, advisors
and collaborators to enter into non-disclosure agreements. These agreements may not provide meaningful
protection for our trade secrets, know-how or other proprietary information in the event of any unauthorized use,
misappropriation or disclosure of such trade secrets, know-how or other proprietary information.

We will not be able to protect our intellectual property if we do not detect unauthorized use of our
intellectual property. If we discover that a third party is infringing upon our intellectual property rights, we may
need to undertake costly and time-consuming litigation to enforce our intellectual property rights. We cannot be
sure we will prevail in any litigation filed to protect our intellectual property, and even if we are successful in
protecting our intellectual property rights, we may incur significant legal costs and management’s attention may
be diverted from the ongoing development of our business, which could adversely affect our business. If we are
unable to protect our intellectual property, our competitors could use our intellectuat property to market products
similar to ours, which could decrease demand for our solutions.
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If a third party asserts that we are infringing its intellectual property, whether successful or net, it could
subject us to costly and time-consuming litigation or expensive licenses, and our business may be harmed.

The software and Internet industries are characterized by the existence of a large number of patents,
trademarks and copyrights and by frequent litigation based on allegations of infringement or other violations of
intellectual property rights. Third parties may assert patent and other intellectual property infringement claims
against us in the form of lawsuits, letters, or other forms of communication. If a third party successfully asserts a
claim that we are infringing their proprietary rights, royalty or licensing agreements might not be available on
terms we find acceptable or at all. As currently pending patent applications are not publicly available, we cannot
anticipate all such claims or know with certainty whether our technology infringes the intellectual property rights
of third parties.

Any litigation, with or without merit, could be time consuming and expensive to litigate or settie and could
divert management’s attention from our business. Any license agreement we enter into with the patent holder
could have unfavorable terms, including royalty payments, which could adversely affect our business.

In order to obtain certain of the necessary data that serves as the backbone of our compensation management
solutions, we enter into agreements with major consulting firms and other third-party providers. We generally
receive data in a summary form. We do not generally have an ability to resell such data in its entirety, but we can
use such data internally to generate our proprietary data sets. If a third party successfully asserts a claim that our use
of its data has violated our agreement with such provider or infringed upon their copyright, we may be required to
remove the applicable data from our data sets and regenerate our data sets without such data. Additionally, we may
no longer be able to obtain data from the provider or other providers on reasonable terms, if at all.

We expect that the number of infringement and breach of contract claims in our market will increase as the
number of solutions and competitors in our industry grows. These claims, whether or not successful, could:

*  require significant management time and attention;

«  result in costly and time-consuming litigation, and the payment of substantial damages;

*  require us o enter into royalty or licensing agreements, which may not be available on terms
acceptable to us, if at all;

*  reguire us to remove data from our compensation management data sets and regenerate our data sets
without such data;

*  require us to expend additional development resources to redesign our solutions to avoid infringement
or discontinue the sale of our solutions;

»  create negative publicity that adversely affecis our reputation and brand and the demand for our
solutions: or

*  require us to indemnify our clients.

As aresult, any third-party intellectual property infringement claims or breach of contract claims against us
could increase our expenses and adversely affect our business. In addition, many of our customer agreements
require us to indemnify our customers for third-party intellectual property infringement claims, which would
increase the cost to us resulting from an adverse ruling in any such claim. Even if we have not infringed any third
parties’ intellectual property rights, we cannot be sure our legal defenses will be successful, and even if we are
successful in defending against such claims, our legal defense could require significant financial resources and
management’s time, which could adversely affect our business.

We might require additional capital to support business growth, and this capital might not be available.

We intend to continue to make investments to support our business growth and may require additional funds
to respond to business challenges, including the need to develop new software or enhance our existing solutions,

42



enhance our operating infrastructure and acquire complementary businesses and technologies. Accordingly, we
may need to complete additional equity or debt financings to secure additional funds. We cannot assure you that
further equity or debt financing will be available on acceptable terms. If we raise additional funds through further
issuances of equity or convertible debt securities, our existing stockholders could suffer significant dilution, and
any new equily securities we issue could have rights, preferences and privileges superior to those of holders of
our common stock.

Our reported financial results may be adversely affected by changes in accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States.

Generally accepted accounting principles in the United States are subject to interpretation by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Securities and
Exchange Commission, or SEC, and vartous bodies formed to promulgate and interpret appropriate accounting
principles. A change in these principles or interpretations could have a significant effect on our reported financial
results, and could affect the reporting of transactions completed before the announcement of a change.

Our ability to use net operating loss carryforwards in the United States may be limited.

As of March 31, 2008, we had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $13.5 million for federal
tax purposes. These loss carryforwards expire at various dates through 2028, To the extent available, we intend to
use these net operating loss carryforwards to reduce the U.S. corporate income tax liability associated with our
operations. Section 382 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986 generally imposes an annual limitation on the
amount of net operating loss carryforwards that may be used to offset taxable income when a corporation has
undergone significant changes in stock ownership. Our ability to utilize net operating loss carryforwards may be
limited by the issuance of common stock in our initial public offering. To the extent our use of net operating loss
carryforwards is significantly limited, our income could be subject to U.S. corporate income tax earlier than it
would if we were able to use net operating loss carryforwards, which could result in lower profits.

If our new accounting system does not operate as intended, we may be unable to timely or accurately
prepare financial reports.

In the past, our accounting systems operated on a platform which we do not believe were adequate to meet
our long-term needs as a public company or under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or Sarbanes-Oxley. Effective
April 1, 2008, we upgraded our accounting platform to our new accounting system which we believe provides us
with the ability to expand our accounting capabilities as our business grows while providing the necessary
accounting controls needed for compliance with Sarbanes-Oxley. However, having converted from prior systems
and processes, data integrity problems or other issues may be discovered that, if not corrected, could impact our
business or financial results.

Being a public company has increased and will continue to increase our administrative costs.

As a public company, we have incurred and will continue to incur significant legal, accounting and other
expenses that we did not incur as a private company. Sarbanes-Oxley, as well as new rules subsequently
implemented by the SEC and the Nasdaq Global Market, have required changes in corporate governance
practices of public companies. These new rules and regulations have increased our legal and financial
compliance costs, and have made some activities more time consuming and/or costly. For example, we have
migrated our core financial systems 10 our new accounting system, adopted additional internal controls and
disclosure controls and procedures and adopted corporate governance policies. We also are subject to Section
404 of Sarbanes-Oxley which requires us to complete a formal evaluation, documentation and analysis of our
internal controls, and remedy any deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses that we or our
independent registered public accounting firm may identify. In addition, as a public company we have all of the
internal and external costs of preparing and distributing periodic public reports in compliance with our
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obligations under the securities laws. These new rules and regulations could also make it more difficult for us to
attract and retain qualified members of our board of directors, particularly to serve on our audit committee, and
qualified executive officers.

An active trading market for our common stock may not be available on a consistent basis to provide
stockholders with adequate liquidity. Qur stock price may be extremely volatile, and our stockholders
could lose a significant part of their investment.

Prior to February 15, 2007, there was no public market for our common stock. An active trading market for
shares of our common stock may not be sustained on a consistent basis. The public trading price for our common
stock will be affected by a number of factors, including:

*  quarterly variations in our operating results;

»  seasonality of our business cycle;

*  interest rate changes;

+  changes in the market’s expectations about our operating results;

*  our operating results failing to meet the expectation of securities analysts or investors in a particular
period or failure of securities analysts to publish reports about us or our business;

+  changes in financial estimates and recommendations by securities analysts concerning our company or
the on-demand software industry in general;

«  operating and stock price performance of other companies that investors deem comparable to us;
*  news reports relating to trends in our markets;

«  announcements by us or our competitors of acquisitions, changes in strategy, new offerings or
improvements, significant contracts, commercial relationships or capital commitrents;

*  our ability to market new and enhanced offerings on a timely basis;
*  changes in laws and regulations affecting our business;

. commencement of, or involvermnent in, litigation;

. the volume of shares of our common stock available for public sale;
¢ any major change in our board or management;

¢  sales of substantial amounts of common stock by our directors, executive officers or significant
stockholders or the perception that such sales could occur;

¢ general economic and political conditions such as recessions and acts of war or terrorism; and

. the other factors described elsewhere in these “Risk Factors.”

As a result of these factors, our stockholders may not be able to resell their shares at, or above, their purchase
price.

In addition, prior to our public offering, we received very limited analyst coverage. The trading market for
our common stock will rely in part on the research and reports that industry or financial analysts publish about us
or our business. We do not control these analysts. There are many large, well-established publicly-traded
companies active in our industry and market, which may mean it will be less likely that we receive widespread
analyst coverage. Furthermore, if one or more of the analysts who do cover us downgrade our stock, our stock
price would likely decline rapidly. If one or more of these analysts cease coverage of us, we could lose visibility
in the market, which in turn could cause our stock price to decline and may also impair our ability to expand our
business with existing customers and attract new customers.
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The concentration of our capital stock ownership with insiders will likely limit your ability to influence
corporate matters.

Our executive officers, directors and affiliated entities together beneficially own approximately 30% of our
common stock. As a result, these stockholders, acting together, will have control over most matters that require
approval by our stockholders, including the election of directors and approval of significant corporate
transactions, Corporate action might be taken even if other stockholders oppose them. This concentration of
ownership might also have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of control of our company that other
stockholders may view as beneficial. In addition, Kent Plunkett, our Chairman, President and Chief Executive
Officer, directly and indirectly owns approximately 23% of our common stock. Mr. Plunkett’s significant
ownership interest could adversely affect investors’ perception of our corporate governance or delay, prevent or
cause a change in control of our company, any of which could adversely affect the market price of our common
stock.

Future sales, or the availability for sale, of our common stock may cause our stock price to decline.

Sales of substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market, or the perception that such sales
could occur, could adversely affect the market price of our common stock and could materially impair our future
ability to raise capital through offerings of our common stock.

Provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws or Delaware law might
discourage, delay or prevent a change of control of our company or changes in our management and,
therefore, depress the trading price of our stock.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws contain provisions that could depress the
trading price of our common stock by acting to discourage, delay or prevent a change in control of our company
or changes in our management that the stockholders of our company may deem advantageous. These provisions
include:

+  our board of directors is divided into three classes serving staggered three-year terms;
»  only our board of directors may call special meetings of our stockholders;
+  our stockholders may take action only at a meeting of our stockholders and not by written consent;

»  we have authorized undesignated “blank check” preferred stock, the terms of which may be established
and shares of which may be issued without stockholder approval,

+  stockholder approval of amendments of our certificate of incorporation requires a vote of a majority of
our outstanding shares and, in some cases, a vote of 75% of our outstanding shares;

»  stockholder approval of amendments of our by-laws requires a vote of a majority of our outstanding
shares or, if the amendment is not recommended by our board of directors, a vote of 75% of our
outstanding shares;

»  vacancies on the board of directors may be filled only by the directors;

»  stockholders may remove our directors only for cause and with the affirmative vote of the holders of
75% of the votes that all stockholders would be entitled to cast in the election of directors; and

»  we require advance notice for stockholder proposals.

In addition, Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law may discourage, delay or prevent a change in
control of cur company.
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We do not intend to pay dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future.

We have not declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock. We currently intend to retain any
future earnings and do not expect to pay any dividend in the foreseeable future. As a result, you may only receive
a return on your investment in our common stock if the market price of our common stock increases.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Information regarding our principal properties at March 31, 2008 is set forth below:

Location Principal Use 8q. Footage Ownership
Waltham, MA ......... Corporate Headquarters 62,000 Leased
Shanghai, China ....... Research and development 18,800 Leased

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not currently subject to any material legal proceedings. From time to time, however, we may be
named as a defendant in legal actions arising from our normal business activities. These claims, even those that
lack merit, could result in the expenditure of significant financial and managerial resources.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2008.
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PARTII

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED COMMON
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Price of Common Stock

Our common stock has been traded on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol “SLRY” since
February 15, 2007. Prior to that time, there was no established public trading market for our common stock. The
following table presents the high and low sale prices of our common stock as reported by the Nasdag Global
Market, for the period indicated.

Fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 High Low

Fourth quarter (from February 15,2007) ...... ... . i $14.00 $10.50
Fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 High Low

FIrSL QUATIET . .. oo i ettt et et iie s e a s $12.79  § 9.67
Second QUATTET . .. .ottt e e $14.41  $10.80
Thirdquarter ...........covvvven.... e $1632  $11.70
Fourth QUATTET ... ..ot $1394 $ 6.15

The last sale price of the common stock on June 9, 2008, as reported by Nasdaq Global Market, was $4.55
per share. As of June 9, 2008, there were 194 holders of record of the common stock.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock and currently expect to retain
future earnings for use in our business for the foreseeable future.
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Performance Graph

The following line graph compares cumulative total stockholder returns for the peried from February 15,
2007, the date of our initial public offering, through March 31, 2008 for (1) our common stock; (2) the Nasdaq
Composite Index; and (3) the Nasdag Computers Index. The graph assumes an investment of $100 on
February 15, 2007, which was the first day on which our stock was listed on the Nasdaq Composite Index. The
calculations of cumulative stockholder return on the Nasdaq National Index and the Nasdaq Computers Index
include reinvestment of dividends, but the calculation of cumulative stockholder return on our common stock
does not include reinvestment of dividends because we did not pay dividends during the measurement period.
The performance shown is not necessarily indicative of future performance,

Comparison of 1 Year Cumulative Total Retum
Assumaes Initial Investment of $100
March 2008

110.00

100.00 -

70.00 \

50,00
40.00
2115/2007 ¥31/2007 /3172008
—4— SALARY.COMINC —8— NASDAD Composita - Total Retums —i— NASDAQ Computsr Index |
21502007 331407 3/31/08
Salary.com, InC. .o e e e $100  $R89.04 3$52.72
Nasdaq Composite . ... .. uut ittt e e 100 9732 $91.59
Nasdag ComputersIndex ....... ... ... i i 100 97.69 $95.63
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth certain information as of March 31, 2008 with respect to compensation plans
under which our equity securities are authorized for issuance:

Number of securities
remaining available for

Number of securities future issuance under
to be issued upon Weighted-average equity compensation
exercise of exercise price of plans (excluding
outstanding options, outstanding options,  securities reflected in
warrants and rights  warrants and rights column (a))
(a) (b) (©
Equity compensation plans approved by security
helders (1): ... ... o i 1,702,684 $6.5775 4,906,991(2)
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders:  .......... .. ...l None ‘None None
Total . ... e e 1,702,684 $6.5775 4,906,991

(1) Please see Note 9 of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for description of our equity
compensation plans.

(2) Includes 490,098 shares that remain available for purchase under the Salary.com Employee Stock Purchase
Plan, 1,276,892 shares for stock options that have been exercised but have not vested as of March 31, 2008
and 1,565,143 shares for restricted stock awards that have not vested as of March 31, 2008.

Unregistered Sales of Securities

In connection with our acquisition of ITG Competency Group, LLC, in August 2007 we issued 38,565
shares of common stock to the principal of ITG.

In connection with a settlement agreement with a former consultant, in August 2007 we issued 18,000
shares of Salary.com common stock to an affiliate of the former consultant.

In the quarter ended December 31, 2007 and the quarter ended March 31, 2008, we issued an aggregate of
2,334 shares of Salary.com common stock to a consultant as consideration for services rendered by the
consultant.

In connection with our acquisition of Schoonover Associates, Inc., in March 2008 we issued 112,646 shares
of common stock to Dr. Stephen Schoonover. These shares will vest over the first five years following the
closing of the acquisition, subject to the attainment of certain performance targets.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, we issued 90,883 shares of our common stock upon the
exercise of outstanding warrants to purchase common stock at a weighted average exercise price of $2.38 per
share.

During the fiscal year 2008, the Company issued stock options for the purchase of an aggregate of 43,340
shares to employees under the 2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan. All such stock options had exercise prices
ranging from of $10.57 to $13.31 per share, which was the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on
the date of issuance.

No underwriters were involved in these transactions, and there were no underwriting discounts or
commissions. The issuance of securities described above were deemed to be exempt from registration under the
Securities Act of 1933 in reliance on Section 4(2) or Rule 701 of the Securities Act of 1933. The recipients of
securities in each such transaction represented their intention to acquire the securities for investment only and not
with a view 10 or for sale in connection with any distribution thereof and appropriate legends were affixed to the
share certificates and other instruments issued in such transactions. The sales of these securities were made
without general solicitation or advertising.
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Use of Proceeds from Registered Securities

On Febrvary 21, 2007, we issued and sold 4,898,443 shares of our common stock that we registered under a
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-138646), which was declared effective by the SEC on
February 14, 2007, in an initial public offering at an offering price of $10.50 per share, less underwriting
discounts and commissions. On February 27, 2007, the underwriters exercised the option to purchase an
additional 349,757 shares of common stock from us at the offering price of $10.50 per share less underwriting
discounts and commissions. The offering of the common stock (including the exercise by the underwriters of
their over-allotment option) resulted in gross proceeds of $55.1 million and net proceeds of approximately $48.0
million to us after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions of approximately $3.9 millien and related
offering costs of an estimated $3.2 million. The foregoing proceeds do not include proceeds to selling
stockholders from their sale of an aggregate of 1,306,800 shares of our common stock. The book-running
manager for the offering was Thomas Weisel Partners LLC, the co-lead manager was William Blair & Company,
L.L.C. and Needham & Company, LLC, Wachovia Capital Markets, L LC and Pacific Crest Securities In¢. acted
as representatives of the underwriters. No paymenis were made to directors, officers or persons owning ten
percent or more of our common stock or to their associates, or to our affiliates, other than proceeds from the
offering to those selling stockholders who are officers of the company in respect of their shares sold in the
offering, and payments in the ordinary course of business to officers for salaries and to non-employee directors as
compensation for board or board commitiee service.

As of June }, 2008, $32.1 million of the net proceeds remained available and were primarily invested in
money market accounts or marketable securities. Pending any use, as described below, we have invested the net
proceeds in investment-grade, short-term, interest-bearing securities.

Since the initial public offering, we have used approximately $10.3 million for our acquisition of ICR,
approximately $1.3 million for our acquisition of ITG, approximately $2.2 million for our acquisition of SAI, and
approximately $2.4 million for data purchases. There has been no material change in the planned use of proceeds
from our mitial public offering as described in our final prospectus filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b),

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Pursuant to the terms of our 2000 Stock Option Plan and our 2004 Stock Option Plan (collectively referred
to as our “Stock Plans”), options may typically be exercised prior to vesting. We have the right to repurchase
unvested shares from employees upon their termination, and it is generally our policy to do so. The following
table provides information with respect to purchases made by us of shares of our common stock during the three
month period ended March 31, 2008:

Maximum Number (or
Approximate Dollar
Total Number of Shares  Value) of Shares that
Average Price Purchased as Part of May Yet Be Purchased

Total Number of Shares Paid per Publicly Announced Under the Plans or
Period Purchased (1) Share Plans or Programs Programs
January 1 -31............. 105,316 $0.223 — —
February 1-28 ............ 22,587 $0.223 — —_
March1-31.............. 817 $0.223 — —
Total ................ 128,720 $0.223 — —

(1) All shares were originally purchased from us by employees pursuant to exercises of unvested stock options.
During the months listed above, we routinely repurchased the shares from our employees upon their
termination of employment pursuant to our right to repurchase unvested shares at the original exercise price
under the terms of our Stock Plans and the related stock option agreements.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table summarizes the financial data for our business and is derived from the Company’s
historical consolidated financial statements. You should read the selected financial data in conjunction with our
historical consolidated financial statements and related notes and the section of this Annual Report on Form 10-K
entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

The selected statement of operations data for the three years ended March 31, 2008, and balance sheet data
as of March 31, 2008 and 2007 have been derived from our aundited financial statements appearing in this annual
report on Form 10-K. The selected statement of operations data for the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2004,
and balance sheet data as of March 31, 2005 and 2004 have been derived from our audited financial statements
not appearing in this annual report on Form 10-K. The selected financial data set forth below should be read in
conjunction with Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” set
forth below and our financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form
10-K. The historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected in any future period.

Years ended March M,
{in thousands, except per share data)
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Statement of Operations:
Revenue:
Subscription revenues ...................0uu... $31,552 $20,503 513,037 § 8565 $ 5,150
Advertising revenues . ... ...c. v 2,955 2,531 2,262 1,411 1,250
Total revenues . ..........oovenenenanann... 34,507 23,034 15,299 9,976 6,400
Costofrevenues (1) ....... ... ... . i, 8,229 5,334 3,108 1,831 901
Gross profit .. ... .. e 26,278 17,700 12,191 8,145 5,499
Operating expenses:
Research and development (1) ................... 4941 4116 2,238 1,410 846
Sales and marketing (1) ......................... 18,963 12,792 8,573 5,835 3,477
General and administrative (1) ................... 13,499 8,922 4,337 2,798 2,002
Amortization of intangible assets ................. 1,126 126 — — —
Total Operating expenses . .............ueurennanan.. 38,529 25956 15,148 10,063 6,325
Loss fromoperations ......................... .. ... {12,251) (8,256) (2,957 (1,918) (826)
Other income (eXpense) .. .........ooovinernnenn.... 1,858 174 (173) (372) (368)
Loss before provision for income taxes .. ............... (10,393) (8,082) (3,130) (2,290) (1,194)
Provision for inCOmMe taxes . ........ovriinrevnnnnnn. 205 — — — —
Netloss . oo e (10,598) (8,082) (3,130) (2,290) (1,194)
Accretion of preferred stock ........ ... ... ... ... — 471) (515) (513) (473)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders . ........... $(10,598) $(8,553) $(3,645) $(2,803) $(1.667)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders per share—
basicanddiluted ........ ... .. ... .. e, 5 (077 § (142 $ (0.89) § (0.81) % (0.68)
(1) Net loss includes stock-based compensation expense, as follows:
Years ended March 31,
(in thousands)
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Stock-based compensation:
Costof FEVENUES . . ... $ 800 $ 437 % 186 § 41 & —
Research and development .. ... .. .. .. ... ..... 459 505 180 57 —
Salesand marketing ......... ... ... ... ..., 1,778 986 401 162 —
General and administrative ... ..................... 2,092 2,437 31l 252 |

$ 5129 § 4365 $ 1078 $ 512 § 1

51



As of March 31,

(in thousands)

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Balance Sheet Data:

Cash ... .. $37,727 $49016 % 1814 § 392 % 1423
TOtal @SS8US . v\ vt et et e 66,210 58,675 7.028 3,428 3,401
Totaldebt ....... .. —_ — 800 1,100 2,654
Total deferredrevenue . ..... ... ... ... ... .. ..., 22,033 16,388 10,548 6,384 3,863
Redeemable convertible preferred stock .............. — — 10,538 9,973 9,185
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit} .................. 36,168 37983 (17,914) (15,240) (13,070)
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes that appear elsewhere in this report. In
addition 10 historical consolidated financial information, the following discussion contains forward-looking
statements that reflect our plans, estimates and beliefs. Qur actual results could differ materially from those
discussed in the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to these differences include
those discussed below and elsewhere in this report, particularly in “Risk Factors” in ftem 1A.

Overview

Salary.com is a leading provider of on-demand compensation management solutions. Our comprehensive
on-demand software applications are integrated with our proprietary data sets to automate the essential elements
of our customers’ compensation management processes, As a result, our solutions can significantly improve the
effectiveness of our customers’ compensation spending. We enable employers of all sizes to replace or
supplement inefficient and expensive traditional approaches to compensation management, including the use of
paper-based surveys, consultants, internally developed software applications and spreadsheets.

Our on-demand solutions, which incorporate market compensation intelligence from our proprietary data
sets, enable companies to determine how much to pay new and existing employees and to manage overall
compensation programs. Our data sets contain base, bonus and incentive pay data for positions held by more than
80% of U.S. employees and similar data for the top executives in over 10,000 U.S. public companies. Our
flagship offering is CompAnalyst, a suite of compensation management applications that integrates our data,
third party survey data and a customer’s own pay data in a complete analytics offering, We have also introduced
TalentManager, an employee life-cycle performance management application that links employee pay to
performance. We offer these solutions principally on an annual or multi-year subscription basis. In addition to
our on-demand enterprise software offerings, we also provide a series of applications through our website, which
allows us to deliver salary management comparison and analysis tools to individuals and small businesses on a
cost-effective, real-time basis.

We were organized as a Delaware corporation in 1999. As of March 31, 2008, our enterprise subscriber base
has grown to more than 2,800 companies who spend from $2,000 to more than $100,000 annually. We have achieved
28 consecutive quarters of revenue growth since April 2001. During the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006,
we achieved positive operating cash flows of $8.4 million, $3.1 million and $1.8 million, respectively. During these
periods, we have consistently incurred operating losses, including $12.3 million for 2008, $8.3 million for 2007 and
$3.0 million for 2006. As of March 31, 2008, we had an accumulated deficit of $40.0 million.

Strategic Initiatives

In May 2008, we announced new marketing and sales initiatives designed to accelerate growth and expand
our leadership position in the compensation and employee performance management markets. Over the next two
years, we plan to re-invest up to $10 million in marketing and hire up to 100 sales people to support new product
offerings. The marketing investments are expected to extend our compensation brand globally and build
awareness among a new set of buyers in organizational and leadership development. We plan to incrementally
hire up to 100 sales people to build out our competency, international, small business and strategic sales teams to
penetrate new buying groups and new geographic markets over the next two years. We expect to fund these
initiatives with our operating cash flow,

We also are launching a wave of next generation products during fiscal 2009 that are designed to enable
companies of all sizes to effectively and efficiently attract, retain and reward employees. New products that we
have recently made available or that will come to market in the future include expanded capabilities in
compensation, performance management and competency services as follows:

+  Enhanced CompAnalyst and IPAS compensation platforms with .net and ajax technologies.
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*  New intemnational market pricing data sets covering individual countries starting with Canada.
» Increased CompAnalyst Executive data processing capability.

»  Re-architected TalentManager performance management suite including our new Succession Planning
module,

« A small business version of our performance management and pay products for companies with fewer
than 500 employees.

« A competency management application 1o complement cur new data libraries and competency
consulting practice.

Sources of Revenues

We derive our revenues primarily from subscription fees and, to a lesser extent, through advertising on our
website. For the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, subscription revenues accounted for 91%, 89% and
85%, respectively, of our total revenues and for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, advertising
revenues accounted for 9%, 11% and 15%, respectively, of our total revenues. For the years ended March 31,
2008, 2007 and 2006, our subscription revenues derived from our TalentManager products comprised less than
10% of our total revenues, with the remainder of cur subscription revenues being derived from our compensation
management and data products.

Subscription revenues are comprised primarily of subscription fees from enterprise and small business
customers who pay a bundled fee for our on-demand software applications and data products and implementation
services related to our subscription products, as well as sales of job competency models and related
implementation and consulting services, syndication fees from our website partners and premium membership
subscriptions sold primarily to individuals. Subscription revenues are primarily recognized ratably over the
contract period as they are earned. Our subscription agreements for our enterprise subscription customer base are
typically one to five years in length, and as of March 31, 2008, approximately 50% of our contracts were more
than one year in length. We generally invoice our customers annually in advance of their subscription (for both
new products and renewals), with the majority of the payments typically due upon receipt of invoice. Deferred
revenue consists primarily of billings or payments received in advance of revenue recognition from our
subscription agreements and is recognized over time as the revenue recognition criteria are met. Deferred
revenue does not include the unbilled portion of multi-year customer contracts, which is held off the balance
sheet, Changes in deferred revenue generally indicate the trend for subscription revenues over the following year
as the current portion of deferred revenue is expected to be recognized as revenue within 12 months. To a lesser
extent, subscription revenues also include fees for professional services which are not bundled with our
subscription products, revenues from sales of job competency models and related implementation services and
revenue from the sale of our Compensation Market Study and Salary.com Survey preducts, which are not sold on
a subscription basis.

Advertising revenues are comprised of revenues that we generate through agreements to display third party
advertising on our website for a fixed period of time or fixed number of impressions. Advertising revenues are
recognized as the advertising is displayed on the website.

Cost of Revenues and Operating Expenses

Cost of Revenues.  Cost of revenues consists primarily of costs for data acquisition and data development,
fees paid to our network provider for the hosting and managing of our servers, related bandwidth costs,
compensation costs for the support and implementation of our products, compensation costs related to our
consulting and professional services business and amortization of capitalized software costs. As we continue to
implement and support our new and existing products and expand our data sets, we expect that over the next few
years cost of revenues will continue to increase as a percentage of revenue and on an absolute dollar basis. Over
the longer term, we expect our cost of revenues to decrease as a percentage of revenue as our business grows and
our new data products gain market acceptance.
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Research and Development.  Research and development expenses consist primarily of compensation for
our software and data application development personnel. We have historically focused our research and
development efforts on improving and enhancing our existing on-demand software and data offerings as well as
developing new features, functionality and products. We expect that in the future, research and development
expenses will increase on an absolute dollar basis as we upgrade and extend our service offerings and develop
new technologies.

Sales and Marketing. Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of compensation for our sales and
marketing personnel, including sales commissions, as well as the costs of our marketing programs. We capitalize
our sales commissions at the time a subscription agreement is executed by a customer and we recognize the
initial year sales commission expense ratably over one year. In the case of multi-year agreements, upon billing
the customer for each additional year, we incur a subsequent sales commission and recognize the expense for
such commission over the applicable year. Typically, a majority of the sales commission is recognized in the
initial year of the subscription term. In order to add new customers and increase sales to our existing customers,
we plan to continue to invest heavily in our sales efforts by increasing the number of direct sales personnel. We
also plan to expand ovr marketing activities in order to extend brand awareness and generate additional leads for
our sales staff. As a result, we expect that our sales and marketing expenses will increase on an absolute dollar
basis as we grow our business.

General and Administrative.  General and administrative expenses consist of compensation expenses for
executive, finance, accounting, administrative and management information systems personnel, professional fees
and other corporate expenses.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth our total deferred revenue and net cash provided by operating activities for
each of the periods indicated.

Year Ended March 31,
(in thousands) 2008 2007 2006
Total deferred reVENE . .. .. v e e e e e $22,033 §$16,388 $10,548
Net cash provided by operating activities .................ciieivernnnn. $ 8,428 § 3,007 $ 1,791

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2008 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2007

Revenues. Revenues for fiscal 2008 were $34.5 million, an increase of $11.5 million, or 50%, compared to
revenues of $23.0 million for fiscal 2007. Subscription revenues were $31.5 million for fiscal 2008, an increase
of $11.0 million, or 54%, compared to subscription revenues of $20.5 million for fiscal 2007. The growth in
subscription revenues was due principally to an increase of $4.4 million in renewal revenues to existing
subscription customers, an increase of $3.5 million in revenues 10 new subscription customers and an increase of
$2.5 million in revenues from additional products sold 1o existing customers in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal
2007. Included in the growth of subscription revenues was the incremental revenue contribution of $3.4 million
from acquisitions during fiscal year 2008. Also contributing to the increase in total revenues was the result of our
hiring of additional sales personnel focused on retaining existing customers, adding new customers and selling
additional products to existing customers. Advertising revenues were $3.0 million for fiscal 2008, an increase of
$0.5 million, or 17%, compared to advertising revenues of $2.5 million for fiscal 2007. The growth in advertising
revenues was primarily due to increased advertising volume resulting from enhancements to our website. Total
deferred revenue as of March 31, 2008 was $22.0 million, representing an increase of $5.6 million, or 34%,
compared to total deferred revenue of $16.4 million as of March 31, 2007.
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Cost of Revenues. Cost of revenues for fiscal 2008 was $8.2 million, an increase of $2.9 million, or 54%,
compared to cost of revenues of $5.3 million for fiscal 2007. The increase in cost of revenues was primarily due
to a $1.3 million increase in payroll and benefit related costs due to the addition of 11 personnel during fiscal
2008 for our compensation and professional service teams, a $0.4 million increase in stock-based compensation
expense, a $0.6 million increase of amortization of data acquisition costs and a $0.4 million increase in
consulting and other product related costs. As a percent of total revenues, cost of revenues increased from 23% in
fiscal 2007 to 24% in fiscal 2008. The increase was primarily the result of an increase in the number of
professional service personnel in order to provide implementation services to our increasing number of
customers.

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses for fiscal 2008 were $4.9
million, an increase of $0.8 million, or 20%, compared to research and development expenses of $4.1 million for
fiscal 2007. The increase in research and development expenses was primarily due to a $0.6 million increase in
payroll and benefit related costs due to the net addition of 61 personnel during fiscal year 2008, all of which were
added at our China subsidiary, an increase of $0.2 million in rent and office expenses needed to support the
growth in headcount in China and a $0.2 million increase in equipment expense related to our data management
infrastructure, offset by a $0.2 million decrease in other research and development expenses. Research and
development expenses decreased to 14% of net total revenues in fiscal 2008 compared to 18% of total revenues
in fiscal 2007. The decrease of research and development expense as a percentage of revenue was due primarily
to cost savings realized from operating much of our development activities in China.

Sales and Marketing Expenses. Sales and marketing expenses for fiscal 2008 were $19.0 million, an
increase of $6.2 million, or 48%, compared to sales and marketing expenses of $12.8 million for fiscal 2007. The
increase was primarily due to a $3.9 million increase in payroll and benefit related costs due to the addition of 32
sales and marketing personnel during fiscal 2008, a $1.1 million increase in sales commissions as a result of
increased sales, and a $0.8 million increase in stock-based compensation expense. Sales and marketing expenses
decreased to 55% of net total revenues in fiscal 2008 compared to 56% of net total revenues in fiscal 2007. Our
sales and marketing headcount increased as we hired additional personnel to focus on adding new customers and
increasing revenues from existing customers.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses for fiscal 2008 were
$13.5 million, an increase of $4.6 million, or 51%, compared to general and administrative expenses of
$8.9 million for fiscal 2007. The increase in general and administrative expenses was primarily due to a $1.5
million increase in payroll and benefit related costs due to the addition of 7 general & administrative personnel
during fiscal year 2008, a $1.1 million increase in accounting expenses related primarily to our Sarbanes-Oxley
compliance program, a $0.8 million increase in legal expenses related to the litigation and settlement of the
related cases during fiscal year 2008, a $0.7 million increase in recruiting expenses and a $0.2 million increase in
insurance expenses. General and administrative expenses were 39% of net total revenues in both fiscal 2008 and
fiscal 2007.

Amortization of Intangible Assets. Amortization of intangible assets for fiscal 2008 was $1.1 million, an
increase of $1.0 million, compared to amortization of intangible assets of $0.1 million in fiscal 2007. The
increase in amortization was primarily due to the amortization of intangible assets acquired as part of the
acquisition of ICR in May 2007, ITG in August 2007 and Schoonover in December 2007 as well as certain data
sets purchased during tiscal 2008.

Interest Income. Interest income for fiscal 2008 was $1.9 miilion compared to $0.3 million in fiscal 2007.
The increase in interest income was due to interest earned on higher invested cash resulting from the proceeds
from the Company’s initial public offering in February 2007.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was $0 in fiscal 2008 compared to $116,000 in fiscal 2007. The
decrease in interest expense was due to the repayment of all outstanding borrowings in February 2007.
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Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2007 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2006

Revenues. Revenues for fiscal 2007 were $23.0 million, an increase of $7.7 million, or 51%, compared to
revenues of $15.3 million for fiscal 2006. Subscription revenues were $20.5 million for fiscal 2007, an increase
of $7.5 million, or 57%, compared to subscription revenues of $13.0 million for fiscal 2006. The growth in
subscription revenues was due principally to an increase of $2.6 million in renewal revenues to existing
subscription customers, an increase of $2.8 million in revenues to new subscription customers and an increase of
$1.4 million in revenues from additional products sold to existing customers in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal
2006. A contributing factor in the increase in total revenues was the result of our hiring of additional sales
personnel focused on retaining existing customers, adding new customers and selling additional products to
existing customers. Advertising revenues were $2.5 million for fiscal 2007, an increase of $0.2 million, or 12%,
compared to advertising revenues of $2.3 million for fiscal 2006. The growth in advertising revenues was
primarily due to increased advertising volume. Total deferred revenue as of March 31, 2007 was $16.4 million,
representing an increase of $5.9 million, or 5%, compared to total deferred revenue of $10.5 million as of
March 31, 2006.

Cost of Revenues.  Cost of revenues for fiscal 2007 was $5.3 million, an increase of $2.2 million, or 72%,
compared to cost of revenues of $3.1 million for fiscal 2006. The increase in cost of revenues was primarily due
to a $1.5 million increase in payroll and benefit related costs due to the addition of 18 personnel during fiscal
2007 for our compensation and professional service teams, a $0.3 million increase in stock-based compensation
expense as well as $0.3 million of costs associated with sales of our CompAnalyst Executive Product which was
not available during fiscal 2006. As a percent of total revenues, cost of revenues increased from 20% in fiscal
2006 to 23% in fiscal 2007. The increase was primarily the result of an increase in the number of professional
service personnel in order to provide implementation services to our increasing number of customers.

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses for fiscal 2007 were $4.1
million, an increase of $1.9 million, or 84%, compared to research and development expenses of $2.2 million for
fiscal 2006. The increase in research and development expenses was primarily due to a $1.1 million increase in
payroll and benefit related costs due to the addition of 49 personnel, 38 of which were added in our newly created
China subsidiary, during fiscal 2007, an increase of $0.3 million in stock-based compensation expense and an
increase of $0.3 million in computer and software related expenses. Research and development expenses
increased to 18% of net total revenues in fiscal 2007 compared to 15% of total revenues in fiscal 2006. Qur
research and development headcount increased as we hired additional personnel to upgrade and expand our
on-demand software product suite.

Sales and Marketing Expenses.  Sales and marketing expenses for fiscal 2007 were $12.8 million, an increase
of $4.2 million, or 49%, compared to sales and marketing expenses of $8.6 million for fiscal 2006. The increase was
primarily due to a $2.3 million increase in payroll and benefit related costs due to the addition of 26 sales and
marketing personnel during fiscal 2007, a $0.5 million increase in sales commissions as a result of increased sales,
and a $0.6 million increase in stock-based compensation expense. Sales and marketing expenses was 55% of total
revenues in both fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006. Our sales and marketing headcount increased as we hired additional
personnel to focus on adding new customers and increasing revenues from existing customers.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses for fiscal 2007 were
$8.9 million, an increase of $4.6 million, or 106%, compared to general and administrative expenses of
$4.3 million for fiscal 2006. The increase in general and administrative expenses was primarily due to an
increase of $0.5 million in rent expense related to taking on addittonal space to support our continued growth, a
$2.1 increase in stock-based compensation expense, which includes $1.3 million of expense related to the
acceleration of certain of our Chief Executive Officer’s stock options in February 2007, a $0.7 million increase in
payroll and benefit related costs due to the addition of 7 IT, accounting and legal personnel, a $0.5 million in
legal and accounting expenses and a $0.2 million increase in depreciation expense during fiscal 2007 compared
to fiscal 2006. The increase in our general and administrative expenses, other than stock compensation expense
and rent expense, is primarily the result of additional expenses that we incurred which are related 1o being a

57




publicly traded company that we did not incur as a privately owned company in fiscal 2006. General and
administrative expenses were 39% of total revenues in fiscal 2007 compared to 28% in fiscal 2006.

Amortization of Intangible Assets. Amortization of intangible assets for fiscal 2007 was $0.1 million. The
amortization was the result of the acquisition of certain assets of the eComp Data Services Division from Aon
Consulting in April 2006.

Interest Income. Interest income for fiscal 2007 was $0.3 million compared to $3,000 in fiscal 2006. The
increase in interest income was due to interest earned on higher invested cash resulting from the proceeds from
our initial public offering in February 2007.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was $116,000 in fiscal 2007 compared to $159,000 in fiscal 2006. The
decrease in interest expense was due to both the refinancing of our existing line of credit in August 2006 to a line of
credit with a lower interest rate and the repayment of all outstanding borrowings in February 2007.

Acquisition of Businesses
Schoonover Associates

On December 21, 2007, we acquired the assets of Schoonover Associates, Inc. (“Schoonover™). Schoonover is
a provider of competency management data and consulting services with over 20 years of experience helping clients
maximize their human capital. Under the terms of the agreement, we paid the owner of Schoonover $4.4 million in
cash of which $0.4 million reflects payments made by us in connection with a pre-existing license agreement by and
between the parties. In addition, $0.5 million of the cash paid will be held in escrow until one year from the
anniversary of the closing. The escrow fund will be available to compensate us for any losses the we may incur as a
result of any breach of the representations or warranties by Schoonover or its founder, Dr. Stephen C. Schoonover,
contained in the purchase agreements, and certain liabilities arising out of the ownership or operation of Schoonover
prior to the acquisition. Schoonover will also be eligible to earn additional consideration based on meeting certain
performance targets during the first five fiscal years beginning on April 1, 2008. The additional consideration, if
earned, consists of cash payments of a maximum of $100,000 per year for 5 years and 112,646 shares of common
stock valued at $1.5 million, which are eligible to vest ratably over such five-year period. Under the terms of the
agreement, the number of shares issued was calculated as the $1.5 million of additional consideration divided by the
average of the closing bid prices of our common stock as reported on the NASDA(Q} Global Market over the last ten
trading days prior to the closing of the agreement. The total cost of the acquisition was approximately $4.4 million.
Accordingly, the purchase price was allocated based upon the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
We allocated $2.6 million of the purchase price to goodwill based upon the estimated fair value of the assets
acquired in the acquisition. Goodwill from the acquisition resulted from our belief that the products and services
offered by Schoonover will be complementary to our existing competency business and on-demand software suites.
The allocation of the purchase price is preliminary and subject to change. The results of operations include the
impact of this acquisition since December 21, 2007.

We have allocated the purchase price on a preliminary basis based upon the estimated fair value of the net
assets acquired, as follows:

Amount
Non-compete agreement (amortization period 3 years) ................... $ 600,000
Customer relationships (amortization period Syears) .................... 250,000
Customer backlog (amortization period 2months) . ...................... 10,000
Competency data ... .. ... e e 290,000
Trade NAME . . oot e e e 170,000
Assets acquired, primarily accounts receivable .. ... . ... . oL 488,000
Assumed liabilities ... ... ... . e (30,000)
GoodWill .. e e e e s 2,610,000
Total purchase Price ... ...\ ittt e $4,388,000



ITG Competency Group

On August 3, 2007, we acquired the assets of ITG Competency Group, LLC (“ITG™). ITG is a provider of
off-the-shelf competency models and related implementation services used in a wide range of industries. Under
the terms of the agreement, we paid the owner of ITG $1.8 million in cash and shares of our commen stock
valued at $500,000. ITG received an additional $0.25 million in April 2008 and will also be eligible to earn up to
$1.0 million in additional consideration based on meeting certain performance targets during the first two years
after the closing of the acquisition, and can earn additional consideration if these targets are exceeded. The
additional consideration, if earned, will be paid 50% in cash and 50% in common stock. As of March 31, 2008,
approximately $464,000 of the additional consideration has been earned and recorded as goodwill. The total cost i
of the acquisition was approximately $3.0 million. Accordingly, the purchase price was allocated based upon the
fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. We allocated $0.9 million of the purchase price to goodwill
based upon the estimated fair value of the assets acquired in the acquisition and the value of the contingent
consideration earned as of March 31, 2008. Goodwill from the acquisition resulted from our belief that the
products developed by ITG will be complementary to our on-demand software suites. The allocation of the
purchase price is preliminary and subject to change. The results of operations include the impact of this
acquisition since August 3, 2007.

We have allocated the purchase price on a preliminary basis based upon the estimated fair value of the net
assets acquired, as follows:

Amount

Non-compete agreement {(amortization period 3 years) ................... $ 10,000

Customer relationships (amortization period S years) .................... 1,360,000

Customer backlog (amortization period 3 years) ... ..................... 60,000

Job position data (amortization period Syears) ......... .. ... o 340,000

Assets acquired, primarily accounts receivable ........... ... ... ... 000 552,170

Assumed Habilities . ... .. i i e e e (238,136)

Goodwill ... e e 911,207 |
Total purchase price .. ... .t ui i e $2,995,241 |

ICR

On May 15, 2007, we acquired all of the membership interests of ICR Limited, L.C. and all of the .
outstanding share capital of ICR International Ltd. (collectively, “ICR"}, a leading provider of industry-specific |
market intelligence for employee pay and benefits for the global technology and specialty consumer goods |
markets. Pursuant to the terms of the purchase agreements, we paid $10.3 million to the owners of ICR, of which
$1.0 million was placed in escrow for 12 months. The escrow fund was available to compensate us for any losses
we may incur as a result of any breach of the representations or warranties by the owners of ICR contained in the i
purchase agreements, and certain liabilities arising out of the ownership or operation of ICR prior to the !
acquisition. As of the date of this report, the $1.0 million in the escrow account has been released to the owners
of ICR. The total cost of the acquisition, including legal fees of $20,000, was approximately $10.3 million.

Accordingly, the purchase price was allocated based upon the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. We allocated $5.8 million of the purchase price to goodwill based upon the estimated fair value of the
assets acquired in the acquisition. Goodwill from the acquisition resulted from our belief that the products
developed by ICR will be complementary to our on-demand software suites. The results of operations include the
impact of this acquisition since May 15, 2007.
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We have allocated the purchase price based upon the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired, as
follows:

Amoumnt
Non-compete agreements (amortization period 3 years) ........... ... ... $ 620,000
Customer relationships (amortization period Syears) ................... 3,210,000
Compensation data (amortization period 3years) ...................... 120,000
IPAS interface tool (amortization period Syears) ...................... 110,000
Trademarks ... ... e e 290,000
ASSEIS ACQUITEd . ... ... s 298,000
Assumed lHabilities . ... .. e e e (133,000)
Goodwill ... . s 5,761,534
Total purchase price . ........ ... ... ... ... i $10,276,534

eComp Data Services

On April 3, 2006, we acquired certain assets of the eComp Data Services Division (“eComp”) from Aon
Consulting, Inc., a global human capital consulting firm located in New York City. eComp Data Services is a
leading provider of executive compensation data. The assets acquired included the eComp database and certain
software and proprietary assets, including all intellectual property rights. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement,
we paid $585,000. Included in the acquisition was an additional $75,000 paid by us to a former principal of
¢Comp for a non-compete agreement. Accordingly, the purchase price was allocated based upon the fair value of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. We allocated $266,000 of the purchase price to goodwill based upon the
estimated fair value of the assets acquired in the acquisition. The results of operations include the impact of this
acquisition since April 3, 2006.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At March 31, 2008, our principal sources of liquidity were cash and cash equivalents totaling $37.7 million
and accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $4.7 million compared to cash and cash
equivalents of $49.0 million and accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $3.4 million at
March 31, 2007. Our working capital as of March 31, 2008 was $16.0 million compared to working capital of
$34.3 million as of March 31, 2007.

Cash provided by operating activities for the year ended March 31, 2008 was $8.4 million. This amount
resulted from a net loss of $10.6 million, adjusted for net non-cash charges of $8.2 million and a $10.8 million
net increase in working capital accounts. Non-cash items primarily consisted of $1.0 million of depreciation and
amortization of property, equipment and software, $1.8 million of amortization of intangible assets, $5.1 million
of stock-based compensation and $0.2 million of a legal settlement paid in common stock. The net increase in
working capital of $10.8 million was comprised of increases in accounts receivable of $0.2 million, accounts
payable of $1.4 million, accrued expenses and other current liabilities of $3.8 million, other long term liabilities
of $0.2 million and deferred revenue of $5.5 million, partially offset by a decrease in prepaid expenses and other
current liabilities of $0.3 million, The increase in accounts receivable is primarily due to an overall increase in
invoicing during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007. The increase in accounts payable is
due primarily to the company’s growth during fiscal 2008 and the timing of payments to vendors. The increase in
accrued expenses and other current liabilities is due primarily to $0.7 million of acquisition-related liabilities and
general increase in expenses related to the company’s growth during fiscal 2008. The increase in other long term
liabilities is due to a deferred tax liability related to the goodwill from acquisitions during fiscal 2008. The
increase in deferred revenue is due primarily to increased invoicing less revenue recognition from our
subscription customers in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007. The growth in the invoiced amounts was
primarily due to sales to new customers, increased sales to existing customers, the introduction of new products,
and the enhancement of existing products. Currently, payment for the majority of our subscription agreements is
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due upon invoicing. Because revenue is generally recognized ratably over the subscription period, payments
received at the beginning of the subscription period result in an increase to accounts receivable and deferred
revenue, Changes in deferred revenue generally indicate the trend for subscription revenues over the following
year as the current portion of deferred revenue is expected to be recognized within 12 months. The decrease in
prepaid expenses and other current liabilities is due primarily to the timing of payments to vendors.

Cash used in investing activities was $20.2 millton and consisted primarily of an aggregate of $16.4 million
paid for the acquisition of ICR in May 2007, ITG in August 2007 and Schoonover in December 2007, $2.4
million paid for the acquisition of data underlying certain of our products, an increase in restricted cash of $0.7
mitlion, $0.3 million paid for purchases of property and equipment for new offices, network infrastructure and
computer equipment to support our growth in employee headcount and $0.4 million of payments capitalized for
the payment of software development costs. We intend to continue to invest in our content data sets, software
development and network infrastructure to ensure our continued ability to enhance our existing software, expand
our data sets, introduce new products, and maintain the reliability of our network.

Cash provided by financing activities was $0.4 million, which consisted primarily of $0.5 million of
proceeds from the exercise of stock options, warrants and the employee stock purchase plan, offset slightly by
the repurchase of exercised unvested stock options from terminating employees.

In August 2006, we entered into a $5,000,000 credit facility with Silicon Valley Bank. The line, which
expires in August 2008, provides for a term loan up to $1,000,000 and a $4,000,000 revolving working capital
line of credit. We are currently in negotiations for a new line of credit. Borrowings on the term loan bear interest
at the bank’s prime rate plus 1.00% and interest is payable on a monthly basis. Borrowings on the revolving line
bear interest at the bank’s prime rate plus 0.25%. The credit facility is collateralized by substantially all of our
assets. In addition, the facility carries an unused revolving line facility fee of 0.375% of the undrawn balance. As
of March 31, 2008, there were no outstanding borrowings under this credit facility and we were in compliance
with all related debt covenants. However, as of the month ended April 30, 2008, we were not in compliance with
one of our debt covenants. We have received a waiver from Silicon Valley Bank for the month of April 2008.

On December 30, 2006, we entered into an agreement with a vendor to obtain additional data sets that runs
for an initial one year term beginning on the date that the data sets were received and ending on October 1, 2008.
At the end of the initial term, the agreement shall automatically renew for up to six subsequent one year terms
unless terminated by us. The annual fees due to the vendor related to years two through seven of the agreement
are $0.5 million, $0.6 million, $0.6 million, $0.7 million, $0.8 million, and $0.9 million, respectively.

On June 27, 2007, we entered into a master equipment lease agreement (“‘Leaseline #17} with a maximum
commitment of $300,000. The lease term began on September 1, 2007 and runs for a term of 36 months. On
August 13, 2007, we increased the maximum commitment of Leaseline #1 to $600,000. As of December 31,
2007, we had leased approximately $381,000 of equipment under the terms of Leaseline #1. On September 13,
2007, we entered into an additional lease commitment (“Leaseline #2"') with the same fender with a maximum
commitment of $350,000. On December 4, 2007, we increased the maximum commitment of Leaseline #2 to
$400,000. The lease term began on January 1, 2008 and runs for a term of 36 months. As of December 31, 2007,
we had leased approximately $388,000 of equipment under the terms of Leaseline #2. On January 17, 2008, we
entered into a third lease commitment {“Leaseline #3”) with the same lender with a maximum commitment of
$350,000. The lease term began on April 1, 2008 and runs for a term of 36 months. As of March 31, 2008, we
had leased approximately $250,000 of equipment under the terms of Leaseline #3. On April 17, 2008, we entered
into an additional lease commitment (“Leaseline #4°) with a maximum commitment of $350,000. The lease term
begins on July 1, 2008 and runs for a term of 36 months. In addition, we have approximately $740,000 in a
restricted cash account as collateral in accordance with the master lease agreements.

On August 3, 2007 we acquired the assets of ITG. ITG is a provider of off-the-shelf competency models and
related implementation services used in a wide range of industries. Under the terms of the agreement, the owner of
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ITG will be eligible to earn up to $1.0 million in additional consideration based on meeting certain performance
targets during the first two years after the closing of the acquisition, and can earn additional consideration if these
targets are exceeded. The additional consideration, if carned, will be paid 50% in cash and 50% in common stock.
As of March 31, 2008, approximately $464,000 of the additional consideration has been earned.

On December 21, 2007 we acquired the assets of Schoonover. Schoonover is a provider of competency
management data and consulting services with over 20 years of experience helping clients maximize their human
capital. Under the terms of the agreement, Schoonover will be eligible to earn additional consideration based on
meeting certain performance targets during the first five fiscal years after March 31, 2008. The additional
consideration, if earned, consists of cash payments of no more than $100,000 per year for 5 years and 112,646
shares of common stock valued at $1.5 million, which are eligible to vest ratably over such five-year period.

Effective May {4, 2008, Bryce Chicoyne replaced Chris Power as Chief Financial Officer. From August
2004 to May 2008, Mr. Chicoyne was the Chief Financial Officer of Harvard Bioscience, Inc. Prior to joining
Harvard Bioscience, Mr. Chicoyne served from December 2002 to August 2004 as Director of Financial
Reporting with Apogent Technologies Inc. (now a subsidiary of Fisher Scientific Inc.). The terms of Mr. Power’s
separation have not yet been finalized.

In May 2008, we announced new marketing and sales initiatives designed to accelerate growth and expand
our leadership position in the compensation and employee performance management markets. Over the next two
years, we plan to re-invest up to $10 million in marketing and hire up to 100 sales people to support new product
offerings. We expect to fund these initiatives with our operating cash flow.

Given our current cash, accounts receivable and available borrowings under our credit facility, we believe
that we will have sufficient liquidity to fund our business and meet our contractual obligations for the foreseeable
future. However, we may need to raise additional funds in the future in the event that we pursue acquisitions or
investments in complementary businesses or technologies or experience operating losses that exceed our
expectations. If we raise additional funds through the issuance of equity or convertible securities, our
stockholders may experience dilution. In the event that additional financing is required, we may not be able to
obtain it on acceptable terms or at all.

During the last three fiscal years, inflation and changing prices have not had a material effect on our
business and we do not expect that inflation or changing prices will materialty affect our business in the
foreseeable future.

Off-Balance-Sheet Arrangements

Under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States, certain obligations and commitments
are not required to be included in the consolidated balance sheet. These obligations and commitments, while
entered into in the normal course of business, may have a material impact on liquidity. We do not have any
relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred to as structured
finance or special purpose entities, which would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance
sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes. As such, we are not exposed to any
financing, liquidity, market, or credit risk that could arise if we had engaged in such relationships. The following
table discloses our contractual payment obligations as of March 31, 2008. As of March 31, 2008, we did not have
any material purchase obligations, capital leases, or other material long-term commitments reflected on our
balance sheet.

62



The following table summarizes our contractual cash obligations at March 31, 2008 and the effect such
obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flow in future periods:

Payments Due by Period
Less than 1-3 3-5 More than
Contractual obligations Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
(in thousands)
Operating leases . ... ..o vvet it it $3017 $2,113 § 904 % — $—
Contractual commitments . ...........covrrriniurirnnann 932 761 171 — —
Total .o $3,949 $2874 %1075 § — $—

The contractual commitment amounts in the table above are associated with agreements that are enforceable
and legally binding and that specify all significant terms, including: fixed or minimum services to be used; fixed,
minimum or variable price provisions; and the approximate timing of the transaction. Obligations under
agreements that we can cancel without a significant penalty are not included in the table above.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States (GAAP). The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, costs and expenses and related
disclosures. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and assumptions. Our actual results may differ from
these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe that of our significant accounting policies, which are described in the notes to our financial
staternents, the following accounting policies involve a greater degree of judgment, complexity and effect on
materiality. A critical accounting policy is one that is both material to the presentation of our financial statements
and requires us to make difficult, subjective or complex judgments for uncertain matters that could have a
material effect on our financial condition and results of operations. Accordingly, these are the policies we believe
are the most critical to aid in fully understanding and evaluating our financial condition and results of operations.

Revenue Recognition. In accordance with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101, “Revenue Recognition in
Financial Statements,” as amended by Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, “Revenue Recognition,” we recognize
revenues from subscription agreements for our on-demand software and related services when there is persuasive
evidence of an arrangement, the service has been provided to the customer, the collection of the fee is probable
and the amount of the fees to be paid by the customer is fixed or determinable. Amounts that have been invoiced
are recorded in accounts receivable and deferred revenue. Qur subscription agreements generally cantain
multiple service elements and deliverables. These elements include access to our software and often specify
initial services including implementation and training. Except under limited circumstances, our subscription
agreements do not provide customers the right to take possession of the software at any time.

In accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple
Deliverables, or EITF 00-21, issued by the Emerging Issues Task Force of the Financial Accounting Standards
Board, or FASB, in May 2003, we define all elements in our multiple element subscription agreements as a
single unit of accounting, and accordingly, recognize all associated revenue over the subscription period, which
is typicaily one to five years in length. In the event professional services relating to implementation are required,
we generally do not recognize revenue until such implementation is complete. In applying the guidance in EITF
00-21, we determined that we do not have objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the subscription to
our on-demand software after detivery of specified initial services. We therefore account for our subscription
arrangements and our related service fees as a single unit.

Income Taxes. We account for income taxes in accordance with FASB Statement No. 109, “Accounting for
Income Taxes,” or SFAS 109, which requires that deferred tax assets and liabilities be recognized using enacted
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tax rates for the effect of temporary differences between the book and tax basis of recorded assets and liabilities.
SFAS 109 also requires that deferred tax assets be reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not
that some portion of all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. The realization of the deferred tax assets is
evaluated quarterly by assessing the valuation allowance and by adjusting the amount of the allowance, if
necessary. As of March 31, 2008, we have a full valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets.

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — An
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48”), which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes by prescribing the minimum recognition threshold and measurement requirements a tax position must meet
before recognized a benefit in the financial statements. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition,
measurement, classification, interest and penalties, accounting for interim periods and disclosures for uncertain
tax positions. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. Our adoption of FIN 48 on
April 1, 2007 did not result in the recognition of a tax liability for any previously unrecognized tax benefits and
did not have an effect on our financial position or results of operations as we have a full valuation allowance
against its deferred tax assets.

Software Development Costs.  We capitalize certain internal software development costs under the
provisions of Statement of Position No. 98-1, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or
Obtained for Internal Use (“SOP 98-1"). SOP 98-1 requires computer software costs associated with internal use
software to be charged to operations as incurred until certain capitalization criteria are met. Costs incurred during
the preliminary project stage and the post-implementation stages are expensed as incurred. Certain qualifying
costs incurred during the application development stage are capitalized as property, equipment and software.
These costs generally consist of internal labor during configuration, coding, and testing activities. Capitalization
begins when the preliminary project stage is complete, management with the relevant authority authorizes and
commils to the funding of the software project, and it is probable that the project will be completed and the
software will be used to perform the function intended. These costs are amortized using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful life of the software, generally three years.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses
resulting from our customers’ inability to pay us. The provision is based on our historical experience and for
specific customers that, in our opinion, are likely to default on our receivables from them. In order to identify
these customers, we perform ongoing reviews of ali customers that have breached their payment terms, as well as
those that have filed for bankruptey or for whom information has become available indicating a significant risk
of non-recoverability. In addition, we have experienced significant growth in the number of our customers, and
we have less payment history to rely upon with these customers. We rely on historical trends of bad debt as a
percentage of total revenue and apply these percentages to the accounts receivable associated with new customers
and evaluate these customers over time. To the extent that our future collections differ from our assumptions
based on historical experience, the amount of our bad debt and allowance recorded may be different.

Stock-Based Compensation. We follow the provisions of FAS 123R, which requires that all stock-based
compensation be recognized as an expense in the financial statements over the vesting perlod and that such
expense be measured at the fair value of the award.

Determining the appropriate fair value model and calculating the fair value of stock-based payment awards
require the use of highly subjective assumptions, including the expected life of the stock-based payment awards
and stock price volatility. Beginning in fiscal year 2006, we have used the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to
value our option grants and determine the related compensation expense. The assumptions used in calculating the
fair value of stock-based payment awards represent management’s best estimates, but the estimates involve
inherent uncertainties and the application of management judgment. As a result, if factors change and we use
different assumptions, our stock-based compensation expense could be materially different in the future. Prior to
the adoption of SFAS 123R, we had adopted SFAS 123, but in accordance with SFAS 123, we had elected not to
apply fair value-based accounting for awards under our employee stock incentive plan through March 31, 2005.
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Instead, we measured compensation expense for our stock plans using the intrinsic value method prescribed by
APB 25 and related interpretations and provided pro forma disclosures as permitted under SFAS No. 148,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure an amendment of SFAS 123.”

We estimate our expected volatility based on that of our publicly traded peer companies and expect to
continue to do so until such time as we have adequate historical data from our traded share price. Management
believes that the historical volatility of our stock price does not best represent the expected volatility of the stock
price. Until February 2007, we were a private company and therefore lack sufficient company-specific historical
and implied volatility information. We intend to continue to consistently use the same group of publicly-traded
peer companies to determine volatility in the future until such time that sufficient information regarding the
volatility of our share price becomes available or that the selected companies are no longer suitable for this

purpose.

The risk-free interest rate used for each grant is equal to the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time
of grant for instruments with a similar expected life.

The expected term of the options granted was determined based upon review of the period that our share-
based awards are expected to be outstanding and is estimated based on historical experience of similar awards,
giving consideration to the contractual term of the awards, vesting schedules, employee turnover and
expectations of employee exercise behavior.

The stock price volatility and expected terms utilized in the calculation of fair values involve management’s
best estimates at that time, both of which impact the fair value of the option calculated under the Black-Scholes
methodology and, ultimately, the expense that will be recognized over the vesting period of the option. SFAS 123R
also requires that we recognize compensation expense for only the portion of options that are expected to vest.
Therefore, we have estimated expected forfeitures of stock options with the adoption of SFAS 123R. In developing
a forfeiture rate estimate, we have considered our historical experience, our growing employee base and the
historical limited liquidity of our common stock. If the actual number of forfeitures differs from those estimated by
management, additional adjustments to compensation expense may be required in future periods.

We recognized stock-based compensation pursuant to SFAS 123R in the amount of $5,129,000, $4,365,000
and $1,078,000 in years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. As of March 31, 2008, we had
$20.2 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested stock-based compensation awards
granted under our equity plans. The unrecognized compensation cost is expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average period of 2.2 years.

Valuation of Goodwill and Intangible Assets. We follow the guidance of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets” or SFAS 142, In accordance with SFAS No. 142, goodwill and certain intangible assets
are no longer amortized, but instead we assess the impairment of goodwill and identifiable intangible assets on at
least an annual basis and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the
goodwill or intangible asset is greater than its fair value. Factors we consider important that could trigger an
impairment review include significant underperformance relative to historically or projected future operating
results, identification of other impaired assets within a reporting unit, the disposition of a significant portion of a
reporting unit, significant adverse changes in business climate or regulations, significant changes in senior
management, significant changes in the manner of our use of the acquired assets or the strategy for our overall
business, significant negative industry or economic trends, a significant decline in our stock price for a sustained
period, a decline in our credit rating, or a reduction of our market capitalization relative to net book value.
Determining whether a triggering event has occurred includes significant judgment from management. The
estimation of the fair values of goodwill and the reporting units to which it pertains requires the use of discounted
cash flow valuation models. Those models require estimates of future revenue, profits, capital expenditures and
working capital for each unit. These estimates will be determined by evaluating historical trends, current budgets,
operating plans and industry data. Determining the fair value of reporting units and goodwill includes significant
judgment by management and different judgments could yield different results.
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New Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 157, Fair
Value Measurement (“SFAS 157"). SFAS 157 clarifies the principle that fair value should be based on the
assumptions market participants would use when pricing an asset or liability and establishes a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the information used to develop those assumptions. Under SFAS 157, fair value
measurements would be separately disclosed by level within the fair value hierarchy. The provisions of SFAS
157, as issued, are effective for the fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. However, in February 2008,
the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. 157-2, Effective Date of FASE Statement No. 157 (“FSP 157-2") that
amended SFAS 157 to delay the effective date for all non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities, except
those that are recognized or disclosed at fair vaiue in the financial statements on a recurring basis (that is, at least
annually). FSP 157-2 defers the effective date of SFAS 157 to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008,
and interim periods within those fiscal years for items within the scope of FSP 157-2. We adopled the required
provisions of SFAS 157 as of April 1, 2008. The adoption of SFAS 157 did not have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements,

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities (“SFAS 1597). SFAS 159 permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments
and certain other items at fair value. The objective is to improve financial reporting by providing entities with the
opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities
differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. SFAS 159 is effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. Although we adopted SFAS 159 as of
April 1, 2008, we have not yet elected the fair value option for any items permitted under SFAS 159.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (R) Business Combinations (“SFAS 141R”). SFAS
141R establishes principles and requirements for how the acquirer of a business recognizes and measures in its
financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in the
acquiree. SFAS 141R also provides guidance for recognizing and measuring the goodwill acquired in the
business combination and determines what information to disclose to enable users of the financial statements to
evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination. The guidance will become effective as of
the beginning of our fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2008. SFAS No. 141R is effective for us beginning
April 1, 2009. SFAS 141R will have an impact on accounting for business combinations once adopted but the
effect is dependant upon acquisitions at that time,
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk. Qur results of operations and cash flows are not subject to fluctuations
due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates in any material respect.

Interest Rate Sensitivity. Interest income and expense are sensitive to changes in the general level of
U.S. interest rates. However, based on the nature and current level of our investrents, which are primarily cash
and debt obligations, we believe that there is no material risk of exposure.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The information required by Item 8 is contained on pages F-1 through F-28 of this report.

ITEMY. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As required by Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, we have evaluated,
with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. Qur
disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be
disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized
and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and our management necessarily
was required to apply its judgment in evaluating and implementing our disclosure controls and procedures. Based
upen the evaluation described above, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded
that they believe that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective, as of the end of the period covered
by this report, in providing reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports
that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms.

(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
P

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an adequate system of internal
control over financial reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refiect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Management of the Company conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2008 based on the Internal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on that
evaluation, management of the Company concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was
effective as of March 31, 2008.

Grant Thornton LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has issued a report on the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting, which is included under Item 9A(d) of this Annual Report.

(¢) Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

There have been no significant changes in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting during
the quarter ended March 31, 2008 that would materially affect, or are reasonably likely to materially affect our
internal controls over financial reporting except the following:

During fiscal 2008, we changed our internal control over financial reporting by implementing additional
controls designed to address the significant deficiencies identified in our internal control over financial reporting
with respect to the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007.

The changes in internal control over financial reporting were made throughout fiscal 2008 and we
completed our testing of these items during the fourth quarter of 2008. These changes include enhanced review
by senior financial management of the SFAS 123R calculations performed by outside consultants and controls
relating to the retention of evidence of our customers’ product and subscription renewals. The new processes and
procedures have been tested by us as part of management’s evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting as of March 31, 2008.

Other than the items noted above, we have made no significant changes in the Company’s internai controls

over financial reporting during the quarter ended March 31, 2008 that would materially affect, or are reasonably
likely to materially affect our internal controls over financial reporting.
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{d) Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FiIRM

To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Salary.com, Inc.

We have audited Salary.com, Inc. and subsidiaries’ (a Delaware Corporation) internal control over financial
reporting as of March 31, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued
by the Commiittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Salary.com Inc.’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on Salary.com, Inc. and subsidiaries” internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Qur
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reascnable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject 10 the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Salary.com, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Salary.com, Inc. and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2008 and
2007, and the related consolidated statement of operations, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive loss, and
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2008 and our report dated June 13, 2008
expressed an unqualified opinion.

/st GRANT THORNTON LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
June 13, 2008
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.,

None.

PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS , EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Except as set forth under the heading “Executive Officers” in Part I of this Annuoal Report on Form 10-K,
the information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended
March 31, 2008.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement for the 2008
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended
March 31, 2008.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

_ The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement for the 2008
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended
March 31, 2008.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement for the 2008
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended
March 31, 2008.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement for the 2008
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended
March 31, 2008.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Page Number in
this Form 10-K

(a)(1) INDEX TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Financial Statements required to be filed by Item 8 of Form 10-K, and filed herewith,
are as follows:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm .. ............ ... ..., . ., F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2008 and 2007 . ... .. ... .. ... e nrnen.. F-2
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and

20000 . L e F-3
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) and Comprehensive Loss for the three

years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 . ... .. i e F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and

2000 . e F-5
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . . ..., .. ...ttt it e F-6

(a}(2) INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE
Schedute II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves .......................... S-1
Schedules not listed above have been omitted because the information requested to be set forth therein is

either not applicable or the required information is included in the consolidated financial statements or related
notes.

(a)(3) INDEX TO EXHIBITS

See attached Exhibit Index of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(b) Exhibits

The Company hereby files as part of this Form 10-K the Exhibits listed in Item 15 (a) (3) above. Exhibits
which are incorporated herein by reference can be inspected and copied at the public reference facilities
maintained by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission’™), 450 Fifth Street, Room 1024,
N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549, Copies of such material can also be obtained from the Public Reference Section
of the Commission, 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549, at prescribed rates.

(¢) FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The Company hereby files as part of this Form 10-K the consolidated financial statements schedule listed in
Item 15 (a)(2) above, which is attached hereto.
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O

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on June 13,
| 2008.

SALARY.COM, INC.

By: /s/ _G. KENT PLUNKETT

G. Kent Plunkett
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive
Officer

Power of Attorney

Each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints G. Kent Plunkett, Bryce Chicoyne and
Elliot J. Mark, and each of them, his true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full power of substitution
in each of them, for him and in his name, place, and stead, and in any and all capacities, to sign this Annval
Report on Form 10-K of Salary.com, Inc. and any amendments thereto, and to file the same, with all exhibits
thereto and any other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform
each and every act and thing requisite or necessary to be done in and about the premises, as fully and to all
intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said
attorneys-in-fact and agents or any of them or their or his substitute or substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be
done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
fs/ G, KENT PLUNKETT Chairman of the Board, President June 13, 2008
G. Kent Plunkett and Chief Executive Officer

{Principal Executive Officer)

/s/  BRYCE CHICOYNE Senior Vice President, Chief June 13, 2008
Bryce Chicoyne Financial Officer, Treasurer and
Director (Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)

/s YONG ZHANG Executive Vice President, Chief June 13, 2008
Yong Zhang Operating Officer and Director
fs/ PauL R.DaousT Director June 13, 2008

Paul R. Daoust

/s  JoHN F. GREGG Director June 13, 2008
John F. Gregg
/st EpbwarD F. McCAULEY Director June 13, 2008

Edward F. McCauley

72



Signature

/s/  JoHN R. SUMSER

John R. Sumser

/s/ TeErRRY TEMESCU

Terry Temescu

/s/ ROBERT A. TREVISANI

Robert A. Trevisani

Title

Director

Director

Director
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Date

June 13, 2008

June 13, 2008

June 13, 2008



Exhibit
Number

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

2.1

2.2

23

24

31

3.2

33

4.1

10.1

10.1.1

10.2

10.21

10.3

10.3.1

Membership Interest Purchase Agreement dated as of May 15, 2007 by and among Salary.com, Inc.,
ICR Limited, L.C., Joseph Duggan and Roger Sturtevant, Jr. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
2.1 filed with the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 15, 2007).

Share Purchase Agreement dated as of May 15, 2007, by and among Salary.com, Inc., John Cunnell
and Valerie Cunnell (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 filed with the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated May 15, 2007).

Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of July 31, 2007 by and among Salary.com, Inc., ITG
Competency Group, LLC and Douglas Crisman (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 31, 2007, SEC file no. 001-33312).

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 21, 2007, by and among Salary.com, Inc., Stephen
C. Schoonover, Schoonover Associates, Inc. and Helen Schoonover (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 28, 2007, SEC file no.
001-33312).

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant Agreement (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 filed with Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1, dated January 19, 2007, Registration No. 333-138646).

Form of Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 filed with Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1,
dated January 19, 2007, Registration No. 333-138646).

Amended and Restated By-Laws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 filed with Amendment
No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form $-1, dated January 19, 2007, Registration
No. 333-138646).

Specimen Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 filed with
Amendment No. 2 to the Company’'s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated January 19, 2007,
Registration No. 333-138646).

Second Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Option Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated November 13,
2006, Registration No. 333-138646). *

2000 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1.1 filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated
November 13, 2006, Registration No. 333-138646). *

First Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (incorpeorated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated November 13,
2006, Registration No. 333-138646). *

2004 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, Form of Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2.1 filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated November 13,
2006, Registration No. 333-138646).*

2007 Stock Optien and Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 filed with
Amendment No, 3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated February 9, 2007,
Registration No. 333-138646). *

2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3.1 filed with Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1, dated January 19, 2007, Registration No. 333-138646). *
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.3.2

1033

10.3.4
10.4

10.5

10.5.1

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.8.1

10.8.2

10.9

10.10

10.10.1

10.12

2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3.2 filed with Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated January 19, 2007, Registration No. 333-138646). *

2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Non-Employee
Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3.3 filed with Amendment No. 2 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated January 19, 2007, Registration No.
333-138646). *

2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan, Form of Deferred Stock Award Agreement (filed herewith), *

2007 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 filed with
Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated January 19, 2007,
Registration No. 333-138646). *

Second Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5
filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form §-1, dated November 13, 2006,
Registration No. 333-138646).

Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.5.1 filed with Amendment No. 1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form
§-1, dated December 21, 2006, Registration No. 333-138646).

Second Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.6 filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated November 13, 2006,
Registration No, 333-138646).

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,7 filed with the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated November 13, 2006, Regisiration No.
333-138646).

Agreement for Extension of Credit {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 filed with the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form §-1, dated November 13, 2006, Registration No.
333-138646).

Amendment to No. 1 Agreement for Extension of Credit (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8.}
filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated November 13, 2006,
Registration No. 333-138646).

Assignment Agreement for Agreement of Extension of Credit (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.8.2 filed with the Company’s Registration Staternent on Form S-1, dated November 13, 2006,
Registration No. 333-138646).

Loan and Security Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 filed with the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated November 13, 2006, Registration No. 333-138646).

Sublease (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 filed with the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, dated November 13, 2006, Registration No. 333-138646).

Amendment No. | to Sublease (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 filed with the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated November 13, 2006, Registration No.
333.138646).

Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 filed with
Amendment No. 2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated January 19, 2007,
Registration No. 333-138646).
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

21.1

23.1
24.1
311
312
321

Form of Employment Agreement with G. Kent Plunkett (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13
filed with Amendment No. 3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated February
9, 2007, Registration No. 333-138646).*

Letter Agreement Re: Employment and Compensation with Kenneth S. Goldman (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.12 filed with the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, dated
November 13, 2006, Registration No. 333-138646).*

Salary.com, Inc. Employment offer letter dated as of December 12, 2007, by and between
Salary.com and Chris G. Power (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 10 the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed February 14, 2008, SEC file no. 001-33312).*

Separation Agreement and Release, dated as of January 8, 2008, by and between Salary.com, Inc.
and Kenneth S. Goldman (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed December 28, 2007, SEC file no. 001-33312).*

Salary.com, Inc. Employment offer letter dated as of April 2, 2008, by and between Salary.com and
Bryce Chicoyne (filed herewith).*

Subsidiaries of the Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 filed with the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31, 2007).

Consent of Grant Thornton LLP (filed herewith).

Power of Attorney (filed herewith as part of the signature page hereto).
Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer (filed herewith).
Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer (filed herewith).

Certification of Chijef Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (furnished herewith).

* Compensatory plan or arrangement applicable to management.

76




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Salary.com, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Salary.com, Inc. and subsidiaries {a
Delaware corporation) (collectively the “Company™) as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, stockholders’ equity (deficit) and comprehensive loss, and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended March 31, 2008. Our audits of the basic financial statements included the
financial statement schedule listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(2). These consolidated financial
statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our cpinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Salary.com, Inc. and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2008, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the related
financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole,
presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of
accounting for stock-based payments as of April 1, 2005. '

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{(United States), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of March 31, 2008, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COSO) and our report dated June 13, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Grant Thornton L.LLLP

Boston, Massachusetts
June 13, 2008
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SALARY.COM INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

March 31,
2008 2007
Assets
Current assets:
Cashand cashequivalents ......... ... ... .. .. i iiiieeinnn, $ 37,726,997 § 49,016,389
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $246,897 and
$179,712, at March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively . ................. 4,734,059 3,364,931
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .......................uon., 1,922,473 1,810,563
Total CUITENL @SSELS . . . .ttt e et e et s e it nasanansons 44,383,529 54,191,883
Property, equipment and software,net ............. .. ... .. .. .. ... ... ... 1,566,410 1,937,250
Amortizable intangible assets, net .. ... ... i 9,081,874 1,923,632
Other intangible assels . ...ttt e 460,000 —
Goodwill . ... e e 9,549 298 266,000
Restricted cash ... ... i i i e e e e e 738,706 —
Other a8861S . . . . e 429 697 356,708
Total ASSELS . ..ot e e $£ 66,209,514 § 58,675,473
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable .. ... ... $ 1961,394 $ 607,782
Accrued COMPENSALION ... ... ..ot ittt e i ieaaeenss 2,719,993 1,898,529
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities . ........................ 3,146,244 1,798,352
Deferred revenue, current portion ............covuiiiriiiiieaannn 20,523,225 15,506,966
Total current liabilities . .. ... ... . . e 28,350,856 19,811,629
Deferred revenue, netof current portion .......... ... ... .. i, 1,509,573 880,688
Other long-term liabilities . ... ... ... . . i 180,800 —_
Total liabilities . ... ... .. .. 30,041,229 20,692,317
Commitments and contingencies (Note 7) ........ ... ..o ... — —
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $.0001 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized; none issued
oroutstanding . .. ... — —_—
Common stock, $.0001 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized at
March 31, 2008; 14,452,999 and 13,315,580 issued and outstanding at
March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively .............. ... ... ... ..... 1,445 1,331
Additional paid-incapital . ........ ... .. .. 76,165,772 67,378,802
Accumulated deficit . ... ... ... e (39,994,329) (29,396,311)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss .. ... .. .. ... L . 4,603) (666)
Total stockholders’ equity ........... ... ... ... ... 36,168,285 37,983,156
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity .......... ... ... oo, $ 66,209,514 §$ 58,675,473

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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SALARY.COM INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years ended March 31,
2008 2007 2006
Revenues:
Subscription . ... . e $ 31,551,867 $20,502,788 $13,037,330
Advertising . . ..ot i 2,955,331 2,531,259 2,262,031
Tolal TEVENUES . . . . .o i it i e en e 34,507,198 23,034,047 15,299,370
Cost Of TEVETIUES . . . ...ttt it it ia et i inanenn 8,229,158 5,334,018 3,107,889
Gross profit . ... ... uiir e 26,278,040 17,700,029 12,191,481
Operating expenses:
Research and development ............... ... ... ... ... 4,941,351 4,115,635 2,238,095
Marketingandsales ........ ... ... ... . ...l 18,963,042 12,792,121 8,573,582
General and administrative . .........c i 13,498,787 8,922,186 4,336,859
Amortization of intangible assets ................ ... ... 1,125,863 125,998 —
Total operating eXpenses . .............veernneinn., 38,529,043 25955940 15,148,536
Loss from Operations .. .........ueuurnnnneenneaaaaanns (12,251,003) (8,255,911) (2,957,055}
Other income (expense):
Interest iNCOME .. .. .. it et e e aaae e 1,906,172 297,690 2,979
INLEreSt EXPENSE ...ttt e i ia e s — (115,595) (159,140)
Other expense, et .. ..........uutiiiiinenns (48,387) {8,010y (16,515)
Total other income (expense) ...................... 1,857,785 174,085 (172,676)
Loss before provision forincometaxes . ...................... (10,393,218) (8,081,826) (3,129,731)
Provision for inCOME taxes . ... ... ..ttt 204,800 — —
N L O8S . . ot i e e e e (10,598,018) (8,081,826) (3,129,731)
Accretion of preferred stock . ........ ... . oo —_ (470,796) (515,586)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders . ................. $(10,598,018) $(8,552,622) $(3,645317)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders per share—basic and
diluted ... 3 077 % (142) $ {0.89)
Weighted average shares outstanding—basic and diluted . . . ... ... 13,791,680 6,022,792 4,079,224

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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SALARY.COM INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Add ' Accumulated s ;l(‘;:u;l ,
itiona Other tockholders
M Paid-In 1reasury Stock Subscription Accumulated Comprehensive  Equity
Shares Amount Capital Shares Amount Receivable Deficit Loss (Deficit)
Balance at March 31,2005 .... 3,892,093 § 389 § 1957869 — § — & —  $(17,198,372) 3 — $(15.240,114)
Issuance of common stock for
warrant and options
EXEICISeS ... ooy, 766,219 77 172978 — — — — — 173,055
Purchase of treasury stock . ... — — — 4,480 (1,000) —_— — — {1,000)
Subscription receivable ... ... — — — — — (279,139) — — (279,139)
Accretion of preferred stock to
redemption value ......... — — — — — — (515,586) — (515,586)
Stock-based compensation
EXPENSE . ... ... — — 1,078,294 — - — — — 1,078,294
Netloss ................... — — — — — —_ (3,129,731) (3,129,731}
Balance at March 31,2006 .. .. 4,658,312 $ 466 § 3,209,141 4,430 $(1,000) $(279,139) $(20,843,639) 5§ — $(17,914,221}
Issuance of common stock for
warrant and options exercises
andbonuses ............. 100,929 10 276,536 — — — — — 276,546
Vesting of early exercise stock
Options .............aun 1,554,020 155 497293 — — — — —_ 497,448
Subscription receivable ... .. — — — — — 279,139 — — 279,139
initial public offering, net of
offering costs ............ 5,248,200 525 48,022,793 — — — — — 48,023,318
Conversion of preferred
stock ... ool 1,758,599 175 11,008,728 — — — — — 11,008,903
Accretion of preferred stock to
redemption value ......... — — — — — — (470,796) (470,796)
Retirement of treasury stock . .. 4,480y — (1,000) (4,480) 1,000 — — — —
Stock-based compensation
BXPENMSE « . . ooveevtivnnnnn — — 4365311 — — — — — 4,365,311
Comprehensive loss:
Cumulative translation
adjustment .............. —_ — — — am — — (666) {666)
Netloss ................... — — — — — — (8.081,826) — (8,081,826)
Comprehensive loss ......... (8,082,492)
Balance at March 31, 2007 . ... 13,315,580 $1,331 $67,378802 — § — % —  $(29,396,311) $ (666) $ 37.983,156
Issuance of commeon stock for
warrant and options
EXEICISES ... vvviiinn .. 202,144 20 409,290 — — — — — 409,310
Vesting of early exercise stock
oOptions ..........., .. ..., 444,140 45 251,397 — — — — — 251,442
Vesting of restricted stock
awards . ..., ... ... ..., 164,571 16 16y — — — — — —
Issuance of commoen stock for
bonuses ................. 147,451 15 1,898,482 — — —_ — — 1,898,497
Issuance of common stock for
business acquisitions .. .... 154,211 15 773,268 — — — — J— 773,283
Issuance of common stock for
legal settlement . .. .... ... 18,000 2 224,998 — — _ — —_ 225,000
Issuance of common stock for
employee stock purchase
plan ...l 9,902 1 100,314 — — — — — 100,315
Stock-based compensation
EXPENSE ...t — — 5129237 — — — — —_ 5,129,237
Comprehensive loss:
Cumulative translation
adjustment .............. — —_ —_ — — — — (3,937 (3,937
Netloss ............covue — — — — — — (10,598,018) (10,598,018)
Comprehensive loss ......... (10,601,953)
Balance at March 31, 2008 . ... 14,452,999 $1.445 $76,165772 — $ — § —  $(39,994,329) $(4.603) $ 36,168,285

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the conseclidated financial statements.
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SALARY.COM INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended March 31,
2008 2007 2006
Cash flows from operating activities:
by =L [0 U U M $(10,598,018) $(8,081,826) $(3,129,731)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization of property, equipment and
SOfEWATE . . Lo e e e 971,524 841,678 495,571
Amortization of intangible assets .......... ... . i 1,814,052 133,144 —
Stock-based compensation . ...... ... i i i 5,129,237 4,365,311 1,078,294
Legal settlement paid in common stock ........ ... ..o o 237,000 —_ —
Provision {(credit) for doubtful accounts .. .............. ... ..., 67,185 13,397 (123,185)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisition:
(Increase) decrease in:
Accountsreceivable .. ... ... i i et (202,794) (477,386) (1,293,899
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .................. 310,791 (1,135,397) (216,935)
(01T oY= 1S U (72,989) 72,825 (217,014)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accountspaysble .......... .. .. o i 1,353,612 317,720 79,491
Accried expense and other current liabilities ............... 3,759,919 1,298,302 939,053
Other long-term liabilities .................. ... ..., 180,800 — (5.581)
Deferredrevenue . .........ciiirinnninininrreeennnnn. 5.477,286 5,719,570 4,164,524
Net cash provided by operating activities ................ 8,427,605 3,067,338 1,790,588
Cash flows from investing activities:
Cash paid for acquisition of business, net of cash acquired . ............ (16,366,510) (660,000) —
Cash paid for acquisitionof data ....... ... ... ... ..o, (2,369,432)  (1,500.000) —
Cashpaid forpatents ............ . o oiiiiniiii i eeaannn (35,655) (42,776) —
Increase inrestricted Cash . . ... .. it e e s (738,706)
Purchases of property and equipment . ......... ... ..o oo (251,859) (1,301,342) (655,126)
Capitalization of software developmentcosts ....................... (390,218) {268,900) (167,998)
Net cash used in investing activities . . ................... (20,152,380y  (3,773,018) (823,124)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from initial public offering, net of stock issuance costs .. ...... — 48,023,318 —
Proceeds from revolving line of credit, related party .................. -— — 100,000
Repayments of revolving line of credit, related party ................. — (800,000) (400,000)
Proceeds from issuance of Series A-4 preferred stock . ... ... ... oL — — 125,000
Proceeds from exercise of common stock options and warrants ......... 499,748 26,551 173,055
Repurchase of unvested exercised stock options .............. ... ... (60,428) (35,835) —
Repurchase of common stock . ..., .o — — (1,000)
Proceeds from subscription payable .. ............ ... oL —_ 415,847 811,069
Payments for subscription receivable . ...... ... .. ... ... o oo — _ (279,139)
Proceeds from subscriptionreceivable .. .......... .. ... . ool — 279,139 —
Repurchase of Series A-4 preferred stock . ............... ... ..., —_ — (75,000)
Proceeds from revolving line of creditand term loan .. ............... — 7,400,000 —
Repayments of borrowings under line of creditand termloan .......... — (7,400,000) —
Net cash provided by financing activities ................ 439,320 47,909,020 453,985
Effect of exchange rate changesoncash ............. ... ... ...... ... (3.937) (666) —
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ................... (11,289,392) 47,202,674 1,421,449
Cash and cash equivalents, beginningof year ......................... 49,016,389 1,813,715 392,266
Cash and cash equivalents,end of year ...... ... .. ... ...l $ 37,726,997 $49,016,389 $ 1,813,715

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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SALARY.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. BUSINESS

Salary.com (the “Company”) is a leading provider of on-demand compensation and talent management
solutions helping businesses and individuals manage pay and performance. Salary.comn provides companies of all
sizes comprehensive on-demand software applications that are tightly integrated with its proprietary data sets to
automate the essential elements of its customers’ compensation management processes. The Company enables
employers of all sizes to replace or supplement inefficient and expensive traditional approaches o compensation
management, including paper-based surveys, consultants, internally developed software applications and
spreadsheets. The Company was incorporated in Delaware in 1999 and its principal operations are located in
Waltham, Massachusetts. Since December of 2006, the Company has operated a facility in Shanghai, China,
primarily for research and development activities. The Company conducts its business primarily in the United
States, however, it expects to expand its international business significantly in the future.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Salary.com, Inc. and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. On an ongoing basis, management
evaluates these estimates and judgments, including those related to revenue recognition, valuation of long-lived
assets, goodwil] and intangible assets, acquisition accounting, income taxes, allowance for doubtful accounts,
stock-based compensation and capitalization of software development costs eligible for capitalization. The
Company bases these estimates on historical and anticipated results and trends and on various other assumptions
that the Company believes are reasonable under the circumstances, including assumptions as to future events.
These estimates form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. By their nature, estimates are subject to an inherent degree of
uncertainty. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications of prior year balances have been made to conform to current year presentations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with a maturity of three months or less at
the time of purchase to be cash equivalents. The Company invests its excess cash in money market accounts and
overnight repurchase agreements. These investments are subject to minimal credit and market risks. At
March 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company has classified as cash equivalents, investments totaling approximately
$33,519,000 and $48,018,000, respectively. The carrying amount of these investments approximates fair market
value.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from customer accounts.
Management reviews accounts receivable on a periodic basis to determine if any receivablies will potentially be
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SALARY.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES !
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

uncollectible. Estimates are used to determine the amount of the allowance for doubtful accounts necessary to
reduce accounts receivable 10 its estimated net realizable value. These estimates are made by analyzing the status
of significant past due receivables and by establishing general provisions for estimated losses by analyzing
current and historical bad debt trends. Actual collection experience has not varied significantly from estimates,
due primarily to credit and collection policies and the financial strength of the Company’s customers.
Receivables that are ultimately deemed uncollectible are charged off as a reduction of receivables and the
allowance for doubtful accounts. Accounts receivable balances are not collateralized.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentration of credit risk consist
primarily of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable. The company may invest in high-quality money
market instruments, securities of the U.S. government and high quality corporate issues. At March 31, 2008 and
2007, the Company had cash balances at certain financial institutions in excess of federally insured limits.
However, the Company does not believe that it is subject to unusual credit risk beyond the normal credit risk
asseciated with commercial banking relationships. Accounts receivable are typically uncollateralized and are
derived from revenues earned from customers primarily located in the United States

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists of certificates of deposit totaling approximately $739,000 and $0 as of March 31,
2008 and 2007, respectively. The certificates of deposit are held in the Company’s name with a major financial
institution 1o collateralize the Company’s equipment leases,

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost and are depreciated over the estimated useful life, generally three
years, using the straight-line method. The Company’s policy is to generally capitalize any item with an
acquisition cost of $1,000 or more. Depreciation of leasehold improvements is recorded over the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the leasehold improvement or the remaining lease term. Expenditures for maintenance
and repairs are charged to operations when incurred, while additions and betterments are capitalized. When
assets are retired or disposed, the asset’s original cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from
the accounts and any gain or loss is reflected in the statement of operations.

Business Combinations

The Company accounts for business acquisitions in accordance with SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations,
which requires that the purchase method of accounting be used for all business combinations, The Company
determines and records the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the dates of acquisition.

Valuation of Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Company accounts for goodwill and other intangible assets in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (“SFAS 142}, Under SFAS No. 142,
goodwill and certain other intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized, but instead are reviewed for
impairment annually or more frequently if impairment indicators arise. The Company reviews the carrying value of
its goodwill by comparing the carrying value of the related business component to its estimated fair value. The fair
value is based on management’s estimate of the future discounted cash flows to be generated by the respective
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SALARY.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

business component. Changes in the underlying business could affect these estimates, which in tumn could affect the
recoverability of goodwill. If goodwill becomes impaired, some or all of the goodwill could be written off as a
charge to operations. During the fourth quarter of fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, the Company performed its
annual impairment test in accordance with SFAS 142 and determined that the carrying value of its goodwill was not
impaired. Intangible assets subject to amortization are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives or contract periods, as applicable.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets

The Company assesses the recoverability of its long-lived assets that are held for use, such as property, plant
and equipment and amortizable intangible assets in accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for Impairment
or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
an asset or asset group may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets or an asset group to be held and used is
measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset or asset group to estimated undiscounted future
cash flows expected to be generated by the asset or the asset group. Cash flow projections are based on trends of
historical performance and management’s estimate of future performance. If the carrying amount of the asset or
asset group exceeds the estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which
the carrying amount of the asset or asset group exceeds its estimated fair value.

Software Development Costs

The Company capitalizes certain internal software development costs under the provisions of Statement of
Position No. 98-1, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use
(“SOP 98-1"). SOP 98-1 requires computer software costs associated with internal use software to be charged to
operations as incurred until certain capitalization criteria are met.

The Company incurs software development costs related to its applications developed for subscription services
and for management information systems. Costs are incurred in three stages of development: the preliminary project
stage, the application development stage, and the post-implementation stage. Costs incurred during the preliminary
project stage and the post-implementation stage are expensed as incurred. Certain qualifying costs incurred during the
application development stage are capitalized as property, equipment and software. These costs generally consist of
internal labor during configuration, coding, and testing activities. Capitalization begins when the preliminary project
stage is complete, management with the relevant authority authorizes and commits to the funding of the software
project, it is probable that the project will be completed, the software will be used to perform the function intended and
technical feasibility has been determined. These costs are amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful life of the software, which is generally three years. All other development costs are expensed as incurred.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives its revenues from subscription fees and, to a lesser extent, through advertising on its
website and syndication fees. Subscription revenues are comprised primarily of subscription fees from enterprise
and small business customers who pay a bundled fee for the Company’s on-demand software applications and
data products and implementation services related to the Company’s subscription products, as well as syndication
fees from the Company’s website partners and premium membership subscriptions sold primarily to individuals.
To a lesser extent, subscription revenues also include fees for discrete professional services which are not
bundled with the Company’s subscription products, revenues from sales of job competency models and related
implementation and consulting services and revenue from the sale of the Company’s Compensation Market
Study and Salary.com Survey products, which are not sold on a subscription basis. These discrete professional
services generally represent stand-alone compensation related to consulting and benchmarking of specific jobs.
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SALARY.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

The Company follows the provisions of SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 101 “Revenue Recognition
in the Financial Statements”, as amended by No. 104, Revenue Recognition. Revenue is recognized when ail of
the following conditions are satisfied: (1} there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement; (2) the service has been
provided to the customer; (3} the amount of fees to be paid by the customer is fixed or determinable; and (4) the
collection of fees from the customer is probable.

Subscription revenue is recognized ratably over the contract period. Customers are generally billed for the
subscription on an annual basis. For all customers, regardless of their billing method, subscription revenue is
initially recorded as deferred revenue in the accompanying balance sheets. As services are performed, the
Company recognizes subscription revenue over the applicable service period. For selected products where an
implementation process occurs prior to the on-demand applications becoming useful 1o customers, revenue
recognition is deferred until after the product has been implemented and then recognized as revenue ratably over
the remaining applicable subscription period.

Subscription agreements that are related to the Company’s TalentManager suite of products may contain
multiple service elements and deliverables. These elements include access to the Company’s on-demand software
and often specify initial services including configuration and training. Except when the Company becomes the
subject of a bankruptcy proceeding which is not dismissed within 60 days of filing or the Company makes an
assignment for the benefit of its creditors, these particular subscription agreements do not provide customers the
right to take possession of the software at any time. In May 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 00-21, Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables (EITF
00-21). EITF 00-21 was issued to address how companies should determine whether an arrangement involving
multiple deliverables contains more than one unit of accounting. In applying the guidance in EITF 00-21, the
Company determined that it does not have objective and reliable evidence for the fair value of the TalentManager
subscription fees after delivery of specified initial services, consisting of configuration and training. The
Company cannot establish the fair value of the TalentManager subscription element of the contract due to the
variability of the sales price between different customers for the subscription element of the contract.
Furthermore, the initial services do not have stand-alone value to the customer without being bundled with the
subscription element of the contract because the Company does not sell the initial services separately and
because such services are not provided by a third party. The Company therefore accounts for these subscriptions
arrangements and its related service fees as a single unit of accounting.

Revenues from the Company’s sales of job competency models and related implementation services may
contain multiple service elements and deliverables. These elements inclede delivery of the job competency
models, implementation services, consulting services and post contract customer support. The Company
recognizes revenue for these transactions in accordance with EITF 00-21. Except for the post contract customer
support services, the Company does not have objective and reliable evidence for the fair value of the deliverables
in these types of transactions, primarily due to the variability of the sales price between different customers.
Revenue from the sales of post contract customer support services is recognized ratably over the contract period,
generally one year, upon delivery of the job competency models. The Company accounts for the job competency
models, implementation services and consulting services as a single unit of accounting.

Discrete professional services represent a separate eamnings process and revenue is recognized as services
are performed. Professional services engagements are generally priced on a fixed-fee basis. Revenue under
fixed-fee arrangements is recognized proportionally to the performance of the services utilizing milestones, if
present in the arrangement, or at the completion of the project.

Revenues for the Company’s Compensation Market Study and Survey products, which are not sold on a
subscription basis, are recognized only when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery of the study
or survey has occurred, risk of ownership has passed to the customer, the price is fixed and determinable, and
collection is reasonably assured.
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SALARY.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Advertising revenues are comprised of revenues that the Company generates through agreements to display
third party advertising on the Company's website for a fixed period of time or fixed number of impressions.
Advertising revenues are recognized as the advertising is displayed on the website.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues consists primarily of costs for data development and data acquisition, fees paid to the
Company’s network provider for the hosting and managing of its servers, related bandwidth costs, compensation
and related personnel costs for the support and implementation of the Company’s products and amortization of
capitalized software costs.

Deferred Reveriue

Deferred revenue primarily consists of billings to customers in advance of revenue recognition from the
Company’s subscription service described above and is recognized as the revenue recognition criteria are met.
Deferred revenue to be recognized in the succeeding 12-month period is included in current deferred revenue
with the remaining amounts included in non-current deferred revenue. Deferred revenue does not include the
unbilled portion of multi-year customer contracts, which is held off the balance sheet.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company’s financial instruments, including cash, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities approximate their fair value because of their short-term nature.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income,” requires that changes in comprehensive income (loss)
be shown in a financial statement that is displayed with the same prominence as other financial statements. The
Company has presented other comprehensive income (loss) in the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’
Equity (Deficit). Other comprehensive loss consists of the cumulative translation adjustment.

For the non-U.8. subsidiary, which operates in a local currency environment, assets and liabilities are
translated at period-end exchange rates, and income statement items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period. The local currency for the foreign subsidiary is considered to be the functional currency and,
accordingly, translation adjustments are reported as a separate component of stockholders’ equity under the
caption “accumulated other comprehensive loss.”

Advertising Expenses

The Company expenses advertising as incurred. Advertising expense for the years ended March 31, 2008,
2007 and 2006 was approximately $3,900, $68,000 and $85,000, respectively.

Segment Data

The Company manages its operations on a consolidated, single segment basis for purposes of assessing
performance and making operating decisions. Accordingly, the Company does not have reportable segments of
its business.

Income Taxes

The Company recognizes deferred tax liabilities and assets for the expected future tax consequences of
events that have been included in the financial statements or tax returns. Under this method, deferred tax
liabilities and assets are determined based upon the temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax
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SALARY.COM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

bases of liabilities and assets, using enacted tax rates in effect in the years in which the differences are expected
to reverse. Realization of the Company’s net deferred tax assets is contingent upon generation of future taxable
income. Due to the uncertainty of realization of the tax benefits, the Company has provided a valuation
allowance for the full amount of its net deferred tax assets.

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48,
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—An Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48™), which
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes by prescribing the minimum recognition threshold and
measurement requirements a tax position must meet before recognized a benefit in the financial statements. FIN 48
also provides guidance on derecognition, measurement, classification, interest and penalties, accounting for interim
periods and disclosures for uncertain tax positions. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal vears beginning after December 15,
2006. The Company’s adoption of FIN 48 on April 1, 2007 did not result in the recognition of a tax liability for any
previously recognized tax benefits and did not have an effect on its financial position or results of operations as the
Company has a full valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets.

Other Taxes

Non-income taxes such as sales tax are presented con a net basis.

Net Loss Attributable to Common Stockholders per Share

Net loss attributable to common stockholders per share is presented in accordance with SFAS No. 128,
“Earnings per Share,” which requires the presentation of “basic™ earnings {loss) per share and “diluted” earmnings
(loss) per share. Basic net loss attributable to common stockholders per share is computed by dividing net loss
attributable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the
period. Diluted net loss attributable to common stockholders per share includes the potential dilution that could
occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock
unless the effect is antidilutive.

The following summarizes the potential outstanding common stock of the Company as of the end of each
period:

March 31,
2008 2007 2006

Options to purchase commonstock .......... ... iiiiiiiien. 1,645,699 1,941,103 640,341
Warrants to purchase common or preferred stock ..................... 56,985 147,868 108,666
Shares of common stock into which outstanding preferred stock is

convertible ... ... .. e _ — 1,758,599
Restricted stock awards .. ... ... .. .. i e 1,565,143 — —
Restricted shares (1) . ... ... ..t i it i e 1,276,892 1,991,585 3,630,488
Total options, warrants, restricted shares and preferred stock exercisable or

convertible into common stock . ... .. ... ... e 4544719 4,080,556 6,138,094

(1) Represents stock options that have been exercised, but unvested as of the reporting date.
If the cutstanding options, warrants and preferred stock were exercised or converted into common stock, the
result would be anti-dilutive. Therefore, basic and diluted net loss attributable to common stockholders per share

is the same for all periods presented in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations,
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Stock-Based Compensation

The Company follows the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statement
No. 123-revised, “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R"), which revises SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation.” SFAS 123R requires that all stock-based compensation be recognized as an expense in
the financial statements over the vesting period and that such expense be measured at the fair value of the award.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model for determining the estimated fair values of its
stock option awards. The determination of the fair value of stock-based awards on the date of grant using an
option pricing model is affected by the historical price of the Company’s stock as well as key assumptions
including the expected life of the award, the expected stock price, volatility over the term of the award and actual
and projected exercise behaviors. For all share-based awards the Company has recognized stock compensation
expense using a straight-line amortization method over the vesting period of the award. SFAS 123R requires that
stock-based compensation expense be based on awards that uttimately vest. Therefore, estimated stock-based
compensation has been reduced for estimated forfeitures.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 157, Fair
Value Measurement (“SFAS 157). SFAS 157 clarifies the principle that fair value should be based on the
assumptions market participants would use when pricing an asset or liability and establishes a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the information used to develop those assumptions. Under SFAS 157, fair vaiue
measurements would be separately disclosed by level within the fair value hierarchy. The provisions of SFAS
157, as issued, are effective for the fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. However, in February 2008,
the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157 (“FSP 157-2") that
amended SFAS 157 to delay the effective date for ali non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities, except
those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (that is, at least
annually). FSP 157-2 defers the effective date of SFAS 157 to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008,
and interim periods within those fiscal years for items within the scope of FSP 157-2. The Company adopted the
required provisions of SFAS 157 as of April 1, 2008. The adoption of SFAS 157 did not have a material impact
on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities (“SFAS 159”). SFAS 159 permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments
and certain other items at fair value. The objective is to improve financial reporting by providing entities with the
opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities
differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. SFAS 159 is effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. Although we adopted SFAS 159 as of
April 1, 2008, we have not yet elected the fair value option for any itemns permitted under SFAS 159.

In Decemnber 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (R) Business Combinations (“SFAS 141R”). SFAS
141R establishes principles and requirements for how the acquirer of a business recognizes and measures in its
financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in the
acquiree. SFAS 141R also provides guidance for recognizing and measuring the goodwill acquired in the
business combination and determines what information to disclose to enable users of the financial statements to
evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination. The guidance will become effective as of
the beginning of the Company’s fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2008. SFAS No. 141R is effective for
the Company beginning April 1, 2009, SFAS 141R will have an impact on accounting for business combinations
once adopted but the effect is dependant upon acquisitions at that time.
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3. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES
Schoonover Associates

On December 21, 2007, the Company acquired the assets of Schoonover Associates, Inc. (“Schoonover™).
Schoonover is a provider of competency management data and consulting services with over 20 years of
experience helping clients maximize their human capital. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company has
paid the owner of Schoconover $4.4 million in cash of which $0.4 miltion reflects payments made by the
Company in connection with a pre-cxisting license agreement by and between the parties. In addition, $0.5
million of the cash paid will be held in escrow until one year from the anniversary of the closing. The escrow
fund will be available to compensate the Comnpany for any losses the Company may incur as a result of any
breach of the representations or warranties by Schoonover or its founder, Dr. Stephen C. Schoonover, contained
in the purchase agreements, and certain liabilities arising out of the ownership or operation of Schoonover prior
to the acquisition. Schoonover will also be eligible to earn additional consideration based on meeting certain
performance targets during the first five fiscal years beginning on April 1, 2008, The additional consideration, if
earned, consists of cash payments of a maximum of $100,000 per year for 5 years and 112,646 shares of common
stock valued at $1.5 million, which are ¢ligible to vest ratably over such five-year period. Under the terms of the
agreement, the number of shares issued was calculated as the $1.5 million of additional consideration divided by
the average of the closing bid prices of the Company’s common stock as reported on the NASDAQ Global
Market over the last ten trading days prior to the closing of the agreement. The total cost of the acquisition was
approximately $4.4 million. Accordingly, the purchase price was allocated based upon the fair value of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. The Company allocated $2.6 million of the purchase price to goodwill based
upon the estimated fair value of the assets acquired in the acquisition. Goodwill from the acquisition resulted
from the Company’s belief that the products and services offered by Schoonover will be complementary to our
existing competency business and on-demand software suites. The allocation of the purchase price is preliminary
and subject to change. The results of operations include the impact of this acquisition since December 21, 2007.

The Company has allocated the purchase price on a preliminary basis based upon the estimated fair value of
the net assets acquired, as follows:

Amount
Non-compete agreement (amortization period 3 years) ................... $ 600,000
Customer relationships (amortization period Syears) .................... 250,000
Customer backlog (amortization period 2months) . ...................... 10,000
Competency data ... ...t e e 290,000
Trade MamIE . . e e e e 170,000
Assets acquired, primarily accounts receivable ......... ... ... . ... ..., 488,000
Assumed liabilities ....... ... ... e (30,000)
Goodwill ... .. e 2,610,000
Total purchase price ... ....... .. . i i e $4,388,000

ITG Competency Group

On August 3, 2007, the Company acquired the assets of ITG Competency Group, LLC (“ITG™). ITG is a
provider of off-the-shelf competency models and related implementation services used in a wide range of industries.
Under the terms of the agreement, the Company has paid the owner of ITG $1.8 million in cash and shares of the
Company’s common stock valued at $500,000. ITG received an additional $0.25 miilion in April 2008 and will also
be eligible to eam up to $1.0 million in additional consideration based on meeting certain performance targets
during the first two years after the closing of the acquisition, and can earn additional consideration if these targets
are exceeded. The additional consideration, if earned, will be paid 50% in cash and 50% in common stock. As of
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March 31, 2008, approximately $464,000 of the additional consideration has been earned and recorded as goodwill.
The total cost of the acquisition was approximately $3.0 million. Accordingly, the purchase price was allocated
based upon the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The Company allocated $0.9 million of the
purchase price to goodwill based upon the estimated fair value of the assets acquired in the acquisition and the value
of the contingent consideration earned as of March 31, 2008. Goodwill from the acquisition resulted from the
Company’s belief that the products developed by ITG will be complementary to our on-demand software suites.
The allocation of the purchase price is preliminary and subject to change. The results of operations include the
impact of this acquisition since August 3, 2007.

The Company has allocated the purchase price on a preliminary basis based upon the estimated fair value of
the net assets acquired, as follows:

Amount
Non-compete agreement (amortization period 3years) ................... $ 10,000
Customer relationships (amortization period S years) .................... 1,360,000
Customer backlog (amortization period 3 years) .............. .. ... ..., 60,000
Job position data (amortization period Syears) ....... ... ... . 0 0. 340,000
Assets acquired, primarily accounts receivable . ... ... ... oo 552,170
Assumed Habllities .. ... ... e e e (238,136)
GoodWIll .. e e 911,207
Total purchase Price ... ...t e e $2,095,241

ICR

On May 15, 2007, the Company acquired all of the membership interests of ICR Limited, L.C. and all of the
outstanding share capital of ICR International Ltd. (collectively, “ICR™), a leading provider of industry-specific
market intelligence for employee pay and benefits for the global technology and specialty consumer goods
markets. Pursuant to the terms of the purchase agreements, the Company paid $10.3 million to the owners of
ICR, of which $1.0 million was placed in escrow for 12 months. The escrow fund was available to compensate us
for any losses we may incur as a result of any breach of the representations or warranties by the owners of ICR
contained in the purchase agreements, and certain liabilities arising out of the ownership or operation of ICR
prior to the acquisition. As of the date of this report, the $1.0 million in the escrow account has been released to
the owners of ICR. The total cost of the acquisition, including legal fees of $20,000, was approximately $10.3
million. Accordingly, the purchase price was allocated based upon the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. The Company allocated $5.8 million of the purchase price to goodwill based upon the estimated fair
value of the assets acquired in the acquisition. Goodwill from the acquisition resulted from our belief that the
products developed by ICR wilt be complementary to our on-demand software suites. The results of operations
include the impact of this acquisition since May 15, 2007,
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The Company has allocated the purchase price based upon the estimated fair value of the net assets
acquired, as follows:

—Amount
Non-compete agreements (amortization period 3 years) ................. $ 620,000
Customer relationships (amortization period Syears) ................... 3,210,000
Compensation data (amortization period 3 years) ............c.cvuvn... 120,000
IPAS interface tool (amortization period Syears) ...................... 110,000
Trademarks ..ot e s 290,000
Assetsacquired . ... ... .. e e 298,000
Assumed liabilities ... ... i e e (133,000)
Goodwill ... ... 5,761,534
Total purchase price, netof cashacquired ............................ $10,276,534

eComp Data Services

Cn April 3, 2006, the Company acquired certain assets of the eComp Data Services Division (“eComp”)
from Aon Consulting, Inc., a global human capital consuiting firm located in New York City. eComp Data
Services is a leading provider of executive compensation data. The assets acquired included the eComp database
and certain software and proprietary assets, including all intellectual property rights. Pursuant to the terms of the
agreement, the Company paid $585,000. Included in the acquisition was an additional $75,000 paid by the
Company to a former principal of eComp for a non-compete agreement, Accordingly, the purchase price was
allocated based upon the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The Company allocated $266,000
of the purchase price to goodwill based upon the estimated fair value of the assets acquired in the acquisition.
The results of operations include the impact of this acquisition since April 3, 2006.

4. PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND SOFTWARE
Property, equipment and software at March 31, 2008 and 2007 consisted of the following:

2008 2007

Computer equipment and software .......... ... ... ... ... ... $2,667.513  $2,596,855
Office equUIPment . . .. ...ttt i it it et 260,794 249,902
Fumniture and fIXTUIES . .. ..ottt i ettt e e e i 430,060 280,100
Capitalized software development costs .. ................... .. .... 1,183,032 792,814
Leasehold Improvements ............... . .. .. iiiiiiiiiiiian. 305,703 319,638

4,847,102 4,239,309
Less: accumulated depreciation ....... ... ... .. 3,280,692 2,302,059
Property and equipment, BEU .. ......... ..ttt 51,566,410  $1,937,250

Depreciation expense for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was approximately $764,000,
$716,000 and $430,000, respectively.

During the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company capitalized approximately $390,000 and
$269,000, respectively, of costs of computer software developed or obtained for internal use. These costs are
being amortized to cost of revenues on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful life of three years.
Amoriization expense related to capitalized sofiware development costs amounted to approximately $169,000,
$126,000 and $66,000 during the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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5. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS |
Goodwill and intangible assets as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, consist of the following:

March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007
Accumulated  Carrying Aecumulated Carrying
Cost Amortization Amount Cost Amortization  Amount
Amortizable intangible assets:
Non-compete agreements
Gyears) ............... $ 1,595,000 $ 388,090 $ 1.206910 $ 365,000 $ 72,998 § 292002
Customer reilationships
(Syears) ............... 5,010,000 834,773 4,175,227 120,000 24,000 96,000
Other intangible assets
(5-18years) . ............ 201,208 58,134 143,074 42,776 7,146 35,630
Data acquisition costs
(1-3years) .............. 4,206,639 649,976 3,556,663 1,500,000 — 1,500,000
Total amortizable intangible
ASSELS ...t e $11,012,847 $1,930,973 $ 9,081,874 $2,027,776 $104,144 $1,923,632
Unamortizable intangible assets:
Goodwill ................. 9,549,298 9,549,298 266,000 266,000
Other indefinite lived
intangible assets ......... 460,000 460,000 — —
Total goodwill and other indefinite
lived intangible assets .. ....... $10,009,298 $10,009,298 § 266,000 $ 266,000
Total intangible assets .......... $21,022,145 $19,091,172 $2,293,776 $2,189,632

On December 30, 2006, the Company entered into an agreement with a vendor to obtain additional data sets
that runs for an initial one year term following the date of the initial delivery. The fee for the initial term is $1.5
million. At the end of the initial term, the agreement shall automatically renew for up to six subsequent one year
terms unless terminated by the Company. The annual fees due to the vendor related to years two through seven of
the agreement are $0.5 million, $0.6 million, $0.6 million, $0.7 million, $0.8 million, and $0.9 million,
respectively.

All of the Company’s finite-lived acquired intangible assets are subject to amortization over their estimated
useful lives. No residual value is estimated for these intangible assets. Acquired intangible asset amortization for
the fiscal years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 was approximately $1,814,000 and $133,000, respectively, of
which $672,000 and $27,000, respectively, is included in cost of revenues. Amortization for the data acquisition
costs begins once the acquired data is integrated into the related product and that product is available to our
customers.

Estimated annual amortization expense for the next five years related to intangible assets is as follows:

Year ending March 31,

2009 .. e e $2,956,217
2000 L 2,874,356
2000 L e 2,172,182
200 e e e e 1,183,568
2003 L e e 269,851
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The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended March 31, 2008 are as follows:

Balance asof March 31,2007 . . ... . . it e $ 266,000

Goodwill acquired during the year ........... .. ... ... .. i i, 8,819,558

Increase to goodwill from contingent considerationearned ................ 463,740

Balanceas of March 31,2008 .. ... .. . i i s $9,549.,298
6. DEBT

Revolving Line of Credit and Term Loan

On August 10, 2006, the Company entered into a $5,000,000 Working Capital Line of Credit with Silicon
Valley Bank. Up to $1,000,000 of the line may be used to secure letters of credit and cash management services.
In addition, up to $1,000,000 may be horrowed as a 36-month term loan to refinance shareholder debt and
general corporate purposes. The Working Capital Line of credit expires on August 10, 2008. Borrowings on the
term loan bear interest at the bank’s prime rate plus 1.00%, and interest is payable on a monthly basis.
Borrowings on the revolving line bear interest at the bank’s prime rate plus 0.25% interest. The line of credit was
collateralized by substantially all of the Company’s assets. In addition, the line carries an unused revolving line
facility fee of 0.375% of the undrawn balance. The agreement contains financial covenants that require the
Company to maintain an vnorestricted cash balance at the Bank plus the committed availability of at least
$750,000 and certain Adjusted Net Income levels across the period of time the line is available. As of March 31,
2008, the Company was in compliance with all debt covenants. However, as of the month ended April 30, 2008,
the Company was not in compliance with one of its debt covenants. The company has received a waiver from
Silicon Valley Bank for the month of April 2008, Also, as part of the agreement, the Company is required to
maintain its primary depository, and operating accounts with Silicon Valley Bank. As of March 31, 2008, there
were no outstanding borrowings under either the term loan or the line of credit.

7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company has various non-cancelable operating leases, primarily related to rea! estate, that expire
through 2001 1. Total rent expense charged to operations was approximately $1,335,000, $1,245,000 and
$647,000 for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases at March 3, 2008 are as follows:

2000 . . e $2,112916

2000 L e 670,313

71 233,864

Thereafter ... ... . e —

Total future minimum lease payments ................coiiiirneenin.. $3,017,093
Employment Agreements

Certain members of the Company’s management have employment agreements that provide for the
continuation of salary and benefits, for a period of time, upon ceasing to be an employee as a result of either
termination from or a change in ownership of the Company.
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Litigation and Claims

On December 29, 2006, the Company commenced a declaratory judgment action in the Superior Court of
Suffolk County, Massachusetts against a former independent consultant to the Company. The action related to a
dispute between the Company and the former consultant over a contract which expired by its terms in November
2000. Pursuant to that contract, the former consultant was entitled {o a success fee consisting of a right to
purchase 33,600 shares of the Company’s common stock at a price of thirty-six cents per share. On August 23,
2007, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with the former consultant. Pursuant to the settlement
agreement, the Company and the former consultant exchanged mutual releases and the Company agreed to
dismiss the pending court action. As part of the settlement, the Company permitted the former consultant to
exercise and sell his options to purchase 33,600 shares of Salary.com common stock and to forego the $12,000
exercise cost. The Company also paid the former consultant $250,000 and issued 18,000 shares of Salary.com
common stock, valued at approximately $225,000 to an affiliate of the former consultant.

On February 1, 2007, Mercer (US) Inc. (formerly Mercer Human Resource Consulting, Inc.) (“Mercer’)
filed a Complaint against the Company in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York
relating to, among other things, the Company’s use of Mercer’s products and data. The Company filed several
counterclaims against Mercer in the New York action, and filed a separate action against Mercer in the United
States District Court for the District of Massachusetts on May 15, 2007, relating to, among other things, Mercer’s
use of the Company’s products and data. On September 27, 2007, the Company entered into a Settlement
Agreement with Mercer under which the Company and Mercer settled all ongoing litigation and exchanged
mutual releases. No payments were made by either party under the settlement agreement. Both the action filed by
Mercer against the Company in New York and the action filed by the Company against Mercer in Massachusetts
were dismissed. As part of the settlement agreement, Mercer confirmed that customers which have purchased
compensation surveys from Mercer have the right to use the Company’s Survey Center product to load and
manage their Mercer surveys, as welt as other third party surveys.

In addition to the matters noted above, from time to time the Company is subject to legal proceedings and
claims in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, the amount of ultimate expense with
respect to any other current legal proceedings and claims will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial position or results of operations.

8. COMMON STOCK
Authorized Shares and Activity

At March 31, 2008, the Company had authorized 100,000,000 shares of common stock and 5,000,000 of
preferred stock. An aggregate of 6,609,675 shares were reserved for the future issuance of common stock related
to the vesting of restricted stock awards, the employee stock purchase plan and the exercise of optiens and
warrants at March 31, 2008.

On January 17, 2007, the Company amended ils certificate of incorporation to:
+  effect a 1 for 8.93 reverse stock split of the outstanding common stock;

= adjust the conversion prices applicable to each series of preferred stock to reflect the reverse stock
split; and

»  set the authorized capital stock of the Company at 105,000,000 shares.

The stock split was approved by the Board of Directors on January 12, 2007 and was effective as of
January 17, 2007. All common stock, option and warrant share and per share data were retroactively adjusted to
reflect the 1 for 8.93 stock split.
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9. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION AND STOCK INCENTIVE PLANS

Effective April 1, 2005, the Company adopted SFAS 123R using the prospective method of application,
which requires the Company to recognize compensation expense on a prospective basis; therefore, prior period
financial statements have not been restated. Compensation expense recognized includes the expense of stock
options granted on and subsequent to April 1, 2005. Stock options granted by the Company prior to that time are
specifically excluded from SFAS 123R and will continue to be accounted for in accordance with APB 25. These
options were valued using the minimum value method.

Stock-based compensation includes expense charges for all stock-based awards to employees and directors.
Such awards include option grants, restricted stock awards and shares expected to be purchased under an
employee stock purchase plan. The estimated fair value of the Company’s stock-based awards, less expected
forfeitures, is amortized over the awards’ vesting period on a straight line basis. Stock-based compensation by
award type for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was as follows:

Year Ended March 31,
2008 2007 2006
Stock-based compensation expense by award type:
SEOCK OPLIONS . ..o e $2,312,568 $4,365,311 $1,078,294
Restricted stock awards .. ..... ... .. ... ... .. i i, 2,764,813 _— —
Employee stock purchase plan .......... ... .. ... ... ....... 51,856 —_ —
Total stock-based compensation . .......... ... ... ... ... ..., $5,129.237 $4,365,311 $1,078,294

Stock-based compensation by line item in the statement of operations for the years ended March 31, 2008,
2007 and 2006 was as follows:

Years ended March 31,
2008 2007 2006
COSL OF TEVENMUES - - o o o o et et e e e e e e e $ 800,353 $ 437,177 $ 185,537
Research and development ......... ... . ... ... ... .iiiiinn. 458,680 504,609 180,015
Marketingandsales .. ... i i et 1,777,764 986,090 401,322
General and administrative . ............ i 2,092,440 2,437,435 311,420

$5,129,237 $4,365,311 §$1,078,294

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to value option grants and determine the related
compensation expense. The assumptions used in calculating the fair value of stock-based payment awards
represent management’s best estimates.

The Company estimates expected volatility based on that of the Company’s publicly-traded peer companies
and expects to continue to do so until such time as the Company has adequate historical data from our traded
share price. Management believes that the historical volatility of the Company’s stock price does not best
represent the expected volatility of the stock price. Prior to the Company’s initial public offering in February
2007, the Company was a private company and therefore lacked company-specific historical and implied
volatility information. The Company intends to continue to consistently use the same group of publicly-traded
peer companies to determine volatility in the future until such time that we have accumulated sufticient historical
information regarding the volatility of our now publicly traded share price.

The risk-free interest rate used for each grant is equal to the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time
of grant for instruments with a similar expected life.
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The expected term of the opticns granted was determined based upon review of the period that the
Company’s share-based awards are expected to be cutstanding and is estimated based on historical experience of
similar awards, giving consideration to the contractual term of the awards, vesting schedules and expectations of
employee exercise behavior.

SFAS 123R also requires that the Company recognize compensation expense for only the portion of options
that are expected to vest. Therefore, the Company has estimated expected forfeitures of stock options with the
adoption of SFAS 123R. In developing a forfeiture rate estimate, the Company considered its historical
experience and its growing employee base. If the actual number of forfeitures differs from those estimated by
management, additional adjustments to compensation expense may be required in future periods.

The following table provides the assumptions used in determining the fair value of the share-based awards
for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively:

Year Ended Year Ended
March 11, 2008 March 31, 2007
Risk-Free Rate ...... ..o i 451-496% 4.45-4.80%
ExpectedLife ...... ... ... ... . 5 years 5 years
Expected Volatility ....... ..ot i 56.10- 61.03% 62 - 65%
Expected Dividend Yield ... ... ... ... .. ... ... ... ... ... ..... 0% 0%

Stock Options

Under the 2000 Stock Option and Incentive Ptan (the “2000 Plan™), the Company may grant up to 672,000
incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options. In April 2002, the Company’s Board of Directors
approved an increase in the number of options available for grant under the 2000 Plan to the higher of 1,344,000
or 30% of the fully diluted outstanding common shares. Under the 2004 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the
2004 Plan”), the Company may grant stock options for up to 37.5% of the fully diluted outstanding common
shares to a maximum of 2,800,000 options.

On January 12, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors and stockholders approved the adoption of the
2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (the #2007 Plan™) under which the maximum number of shares of common
stock that may be issued is the sum total of 3,000,000 shares plus all stock option awards or grants returned to the
#2000 Plan” and the “2004 Plan” as a result of expiration or cancellation or termination of such stock option
awards. The maximum contractual term of stock options granted under the 2007 Plan may range from five to ten
years from the date of grant.

Under the 2000 Plan and 2004 Plan, option recipients (“Option Holders™) are permitted to exercise options
in advance of vesting. Any options exercised in advance of vesting result in the Option Holder receiving
Restricted Stock, which is then subject to vesting under the respective option’s vesting schedule. Restricted Stock
is subject to a right of repurchase by the Company from any Option Holder who is an employee who leaves the
Company (either voluntarily or involuntarily), the Company has the right (but not the obligation) to repurchase
the Restricted Stock at the original price paid by the Option Holder at the time the options were exercised.
Because the Company has the right to repurchase the Restricted Stock upon the cessation of employment, the
Company has recognized this potential liabitity for repurchase on the balance sheet as “Subscription Payable.”
Upon vesting of the restricted shares, the Subscription Payable is relieved and recorded in equity.
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Stock option activity, under all plans, during the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was as

follows:
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Number of Exercise Number of  Exercise Number of  Exercise
Options Price Options Price Options Price

Outstanding—beginning of year ....... 1,941,103 $ 6.3465 640,341 $0.2679 2,331,092 $0.3098
Granted . .......................... 43,340 $10.8532 1,559,145 $8.2903 3,079,811 $0.2232
Exercised ..........cciiiiiienn.n. (111,261 $ 1.7505 (119,860) $3.6417 (4,475,298) $0.2355
Canceled ............... ... ... .... (227,483) $ 6.6367 (138,523) $2.4653 (295,264) $0.3528
Outstanding—end of year . ... ......... 1,645,699 $ 6.7440 1,941,103 $6.3465 640,341 3$0.2679
Exercisable—end of year ............. 413,562 $ 5.3540 279,605 $3.8500 187,072 $0.3732

The weighted average grant date fair value of options granted during fiscal years 2008, 2007 and 2006 was
$6.0892, $4.8218 and $2.3223, respectively. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended
March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, was approximately $1,187,000, $322,000 and $15,239,000, respectively.

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at March 31, 2008:

Exercise Price

$0.223—50.892
$6.607—3$8.214
$10.50—513.310

Options Vested and
Options Qutstanding Currently Exercisable
Weighted Average
Remaining Weighted Average Weighted Average

Number of  Contractual Life Exercise Price Number of Exercise Price
Options (Years) (Per Share} Options (Per Share)
.............. 374,586 7.6 $ 0.2350 146,870 $ 0.2533
.............. 645,787 8.7 $ 69573 172,917 $ 69100
............. 625,326 8.8 $10.4228 93,775 $10.4736
1,645,699 8.5 $ 6.7440 413,562 $ 5.3540
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A summary of the Company’s unvested shares, included unvested stock options and shares of unvested

restricted stock, as of March 31, 2008, and changes during the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, is
presented below:

APB 25 SFAS 123R Total
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Unvested Average Unvested Average Unvested Average
Options  Grant Options  Grant Options  Grant
And Date And Date And Date
Restricted Intrinsic Restricted Intrinsic Restricted Intrinsic

Shares Value Amount Shares Value Amount Shares Value Amount

Unvested Options and Restricted
Shares Outstanding at

March 31,2006 ............. 1,204,465 $0.420 §$ 509911 2,879,388 $2.393 § 6,880,377 4083857 $1.813 $ 7,390,288
Granted ..................... — — — 1.512,392 4.841 7.321,288 1,512.392  4.841 7,321,288
Vested ...................... (711,653) 0423 (301,132) (932,363) 1.812  (1.689.207)(1.644,016) 1.211  (1,990,339)
Canceled .................... (59.197) 0.239 (14,121) (239953) 2.663 (639,065)y (299,150) 2.183 (653,186)

Unvested Options and Restricted
Shares outstanding at March 31,

2007 ... 433,619 0449 194,658 3,219,464  3.688 11,873,393 3.653.083 3304  [2,068,05i
Granted ..................... — — — 43,340 6,089 263,908 43,340  6.089 263,908
Vested ...................... (206,925) 0.366 (75,641) (482,361) 1.465 (706.449) (689,286} 1.135 {782,090)
Canceled .................... (10,443) 0378 (3.944) (487,665) 3.387 (1,651,301) (498,108) 3.324  (1,655,745)

Unvested Options and Restricted
Shares outstanding at March 31,
2008 ... e 216,251 $0.532 §$ 115,073 2,292,778 $4.265 § 9,779,051 2,509,029 $3.943 $ 9,894,124

As of March 31, 2008, there was approximately $6.2 million of total unrecognized compensation expense
related to stock options. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.8 years. The
total fair value of shares vested during the year ended March 31, 2008 was approximately $782,000.

During fiscal 2006 and 2003, the Company offered certain holders of stock options the limited opportunity
to exercise their options at a price equal to the deemed fair value of the Company’s stock at the time of the offer.
To the extent that the offer was not accepted, the affected options retained their original exercise price. However,
because of the Company’s offer, these options became subject to variable accounting as prescribed in FASB
Interpretation No. 44, Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation {an Interpretation of
APB Opinion No. 25) (“FIN 44"). The majority of these awards became fixed upon exercise under the bonus
offer during March 2006, as described in the following paragraph, which was accounted for as a modification
under SFAS 123R. Compensation expense related to these options has been recognized during fiscal 2008, 2007
and 2006, since the modified option exercise prices were below the reassessed per share fair value of the
Company’s common stock at that time, The Company recorded compensation expense amounting to
approximately $(51,000), $912,000 and $632,000 for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

During March 2006, the Company offered certain holders of stock options, totaling 143 employees, the
limited opportunity to receive a cash bonus to exercise all of their outstanding stock options. As part of this offer,
unvested stock options could be exercised into restricted stock. This offer was accounted for as a modification
under SFAS 123R. The additional compensation expense for the modification was deemed immaterial to the
Company’s financial statements. There are 1,279,892 and 1,991,585 shares of common stock subject to
restriction as of March 31, 2008 and 2007 related to this offer.

On February 7, 2007, in connection with the negotiation of a new employment agreement with the
Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer, the Compensation Committee accelerated the vesting of

854,449 shares of restricted stock held by the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer. These shares
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had been issued to the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer in March 2006 upon the exercise of
stock options granted to him between June 2003 and March 2006 under the 2000 Plan and the 2004 Plan. The
Company recognized a non-cash compensation charge of approximately $1.3 million to general and
administrative expenses in the quarter ending March 31, 2007 as a result of this acceleration.

Restricted Stock Awards

On January 12, 2007, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company approved a
form of restricted stock agreement for use under the Company’s 2007 Stock Plan pursuant to which the Company
has granted stock options and restricted stock awards. The shares of restricted stock awards have a per share price
of $0.0001 which equals the par value. The fair value is measured based upon the closing NASDAQ market price
of the underlying Company stock as of the date of grant. Compensation expense from the restricted stock awards
is amortized over the applicable vesting period, generally 3 years, using the straight-line method. Unamortized
compensation cost related to restricted stock awards was $14.1 million as of March 31, 2008, This cost is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.9 years. The following table presents a summary
of the restricied stock award activity for the year ended March 31, 2008.

Weighted
Average
Grant
Date Fair
Shares Value
Unvested balance at March 31,2007 .. ... ... .. .. ... i, — 5§ -
Awarded ... ... e e 1,933,845 11.1317
VEsted . . oo e e e e e (312,022) 12.2596
Canceled . ... . e e e e {56,680) 12.3996

Unvested balance at March 31,2008 ... ... ... i i i 1,565,143  $10.8609

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Cn January 17, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors and stockholders approved the adoption of the
2007 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP"). Stock purchase rights are granted to eligible employees during
six month offering periods with purchase dates at the end of each offering period. The offering periods generally
commence each April 1 and October 1. Shares are purchased through payroll deductions at purchase prices equal
to 90% of the lesser of the fair market value of the Company’s common stock at either the first day or the last
day of the offering period, whichever is lower. For the ESPP, the Company recorded approximately $52,000 of
compensation expense for the year ended March 31, 2008. There are 490,098 shares available for issuance under
the ESPP as of March 31, 2008.

Warranis

In conjunction with the subordinated notes payable to stockholders in 2002, the Company issued warrants to
the holders to purchase 28,000 shares of common stock at $0.89 per share and 750,000 shares of Series B
preferred stock at $1.00 per share. The Series B preferred stock warrants were replaced with 750,000 warrants to
purchase Series A-4 preferred stock at $0.25 per share in November 2003. In November 2006, the Company
issued a warrant to acquire 44,800 shares of its common stock at an exercise price of $6.61 per share to an
existing stockholder that is affiliated with a director of the Company. The Company recorded stock-based
compensation expense of approximately $114,000 related to this warrant during the quarter ended December 31,
2006.
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As of March 31, 2008, the Company had outstanding warrants to purchase 56,985 shares of common stock

at exercise prices ranging from $0.09 to $6.61 per share.

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2008 March 31, 2607 March 31, 2006
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Number of Exercise Number of Exercise Numberof Exercise
Warrants Price Warrants Price Warrants Price
QOutstanding—beginning of year ........... 147868 $2.148 108,666 $0.214 194,770  $1.080
Granted . ... ... . . . e — 44,800  36.607 —
Exercised ............. ..., {90,883) $2.384 (5,598) 30.357 (58,104) $2.188
Canceled ..............coiiviiiinnn. —_— — (28,000) $2.230
Outstanding—end of year ................ 56,985 $1.769 147,868 $2.148 108,666 $0.214
Exercisable—end of year ................ 56,985 $1.769 147868 $2.148 108,666 $0.214
10. INCOME TAXES
The provision for income taxes consists of:
Year Ended March 31,
2008 2007 2006
Federal:
CUITENt . . . e e $ —  $ — 5 —
Deferred ... o ot e (2,989,693) (2,605,129) (487,404)
(2,989.693) (2,605,129) (487,404)
State:
CUITEN . . e e e e e 24,000 — —_
Deferred ... ...t (1,090,369) (736,343) 554,538
(1,066,369) (736,343) 554,538
Foreign:
Deferred . ... .. — (67,368) —_
— (67,368) —
Change in Valuation Allowance;
United SEates . ..o i e e 4,260,862 3,341,472 (67,134)
Foreign ... o . — 67,368 —
4,260,862 3,408,840 (67,134)
Provision for income taxes . .. ... ..ottt e e $ 204,800 3 — 3 —
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A reconciliation of the Company’s effective income tax rate to the statutory federal income tax rate of 34%
for the years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 is as follows:

Years Ended March 31,

2008 2007 2006
SHAULOTY TAIE o ottt ettt et et e e i ae e ettt (34.00% (34.00% (34.0)%
State taxes, net of federal benefit . ... . i i i e 68 (7.6) 100
Stock-based COMPENSAON . ...\t e ettt 0.0 0.0 150
Officer’s life INSUIANCE . . v\ttt e e it i e i et 0.0 0.0 0.1
11117 O 1.8 4.5 (2.2)
Expiration of state net operating 10SSes .. .....o.oi i iin i 0.0 1.8 12.9
Change in valuation allowance . ..... .. ... . ... . . i i 41.0 443 (1.8)

20% 00% 0.0%

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant
components of the Company’s deferred tax assets for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

March 31,
2008 2007

Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards . ....... ... ... ... .. $ 5258235 $5978,047
Accrued eXpenses ... ... ... e e 173,746 854,848
Property and equipment ............ .. ...t 186,812 83,921
Intangibles . ........ ... ... ... 530,153 12,731
Deferred TeVENMUE . . .. ... .. it i e s 525,592 83,872
Stock-based compensation . ......... . . i ii i e 3,138,992 1,654,002
RS EIVES L ot t eeaereea 99,425 67,135
Tax CredilsS . ..t e e 405,846 509,487
Other ..o e 7.479 —
Foreign NOL .. ... . i i e i — 67,368

Total gross deferred tax assets ......................... ... 10,326,280 9,311,411
Valuation allowance . ........ .. vttt e (10,326,280) (9,311,411)

Total deferred tax asSetS . oottt i i ittt e s $ — $ —_
Deferred tax liabilities:
Amortization—goodwill .. ... ... L (180,800) —

Total deferred tax liabilities ............... ... ... ., $ (180,800) % —_

As of March 31, 2008, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $13,474,000 for
federal income tax purposes and $10,800,000 for state income tax purposes. Federal and state net operating
losses may be available to offset future federal income tax liabilities. The net operating losses for federal income
tax purposes expire at various dates through 2028 and state net operating losses expire at various dates through
2013. As required by SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, management has determined that is more
likely than not that the Company will not recognize the benefit of federal and state deferred tax assets, and as a
result, a valuation allowance of $10,326,280 and $9,311,411 has been established at March 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively.
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We have additional net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $545,000 resulting from excess tax
deductions from stock options exercised since 2006. Pursuant to SFAS No. 123R, the deferred tax asset relating
to excess tax benefit from these exercises was not recognized for financial statement purposes, however, this
amount may be recognized for financial statement purposes in the future if the benefit is ultimately realized.

Ownership changes, as defined by the Internal Revenue Code, may substantially limit the amount of net
operating loss carryforwards that can be utilized annually to offset future taxable income. Subsequent ownership
changes could further affect the limitation in future years. Such annual limitations could result in the expiration
of net operating loss carryforwards before utilization.

The Company adopted FIN 48 on April 1, 2007. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for the uncertainty in
income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with FASB Statement No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes.” FIN 48 proscribes a recognition threshold and measurement of a tax position
taken or expected (o be taken in a tax return.

The amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of March 31, 2008 was $185,000, which, if ultimately
recognized, will reduce the Company’s annual effective tax rate. The Company does not expect any material
change in unrecognized tax benefits within the next twelve months.

The change in unrecognized tax benefits for the year ended March 31, 2008 is as follows:

Balance at April 1, 2007 ... ..t $ 185,000
Increase (decrease) for tax positions related to prior years .. ................ —
Increase (decrease) for tax positions related to the current year . . ............ —
Settlements .. ... ... e e —_

Balance at March 31, 2008 . . ... . e e $ 185,000

As of March 31, 2008, the Company is subject to tax in the U.S. Federal, state and foreign jurisdictions. The
Company is open to examination for tax years 2004 through 2007. Additionally, since the Company has net
operating loss and tax credit carryforwards available for future years, those years are also subject to review by
the taxing authorities. The Company is not currently under examination by U.S. Federal and state tax authorities
or the China taxing authority.

The Company’s policy is to recognize interest and penaities accrued on any unrecognized tax positions as a
component of income tax expense, if any. As of March 31, 2008, the Company has not accrued any interest and
penalties for unrecognized tax benefits in its statement of operations.

11. BENEFIT PLAN

The Company has a retirement savings plan under Section 40 (k) of the Internal Revenue Code (the 401(k)
Plan). Participants may contribute up to a maximum percentage of their annual compensation to the plan as
determined by the Company, limited to a maximum annual amount set by the Internal Revenue Service. The
Company has not made any matching contributions to the 401(k} Plan during the years ended March 31, 2008,
2007 and 2006.
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12. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY OPERATING RESULTS

The following table presents consolidated statement of operations data for each of the eight quarters in the
period beginning April 1, 2006 and ending March 31, 2008. This information is derived from our unaudited
financial statements, which in the opinion of management contain all adjustments necessary for a fair presentation
of such financial data. Operating results for these periods are not necessarily indicative of the operating results for a
full year. Historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected in future periods.

Three months ended
June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31 March31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec.31 March 31
(in thousands, except per share data) 2006 2006 2006 2007 2007 2007 2007 2008

{Unaudited)
Statements of Operations Data:

Revenue:
Subscription revenues .............. $4.441 $ 4,840 $ 5,484 $5,738 $6,758 $ 7,781 § 8,505 $ 8,508
Advertising revenues . .............. 715 602 553 661 781 687 681 806
Total revenues ................ 5156 5442 6037 6,399 7539 8468 9,186 9314
Costofrevenues . ...................... 1,052 1,122 1483 1,677 1,622 1,883 2208 2516
Grossprofit ...... ... ..o i 4,104 4,320 4,554 4,722 5917 6,585 6,978 6,798
Operating Expenses:
Research and development .......... 728 899 [,180 1,309 882 1,227 1,368 1,464
Sales and marketing ................ 2,687 2965 3,396 3,744 3,899 4427 57242 57395
General and administrative .......... 1,448 1553 1,974 3947 2927 3,620 3,598 3,355
Amortization of intangible assets .. ... 53 24 25 24 135 281 321 389
Total operating expenses ................ 4916 5441 6,575 9,024 7843 9,555 10,529 10,603
Loss from operations ................... (812) (1,121) (2,021) (4,302) (1,926) (2,970} (3,551) (3,805)
Other income {expense) ................. 22y (25 (27 248 561 549 516 232
Loss before provision for income taxes . . ... (834) (1,146) (2,048) (4,054) (1,365) (2,421) (3,035) (3,573)
Provision for income taxes .............. — — _— — — 89 49 66
Netloss ..., (834) (1,146) (2,048) (4,054) (1,365) (2,510) (3.084) (3,639
Accretion of preferred stock ............. (129 (129 (129 84y — — —_ —
Net loss attributable to common stockholders
pershare ... ... ... .. .. .. . ... .... 3 (963)8(1,275)$(2,177)5(4,138)$(1,365)5(2,510)% (3,084)$ (3,639)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders
per share—basic and diluted ........... $(0.200% (0.26)% (0435 (0.44)% (0.10)% (0.18)$ (0.22)$% (0.26)
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13. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Years ended March 31,

2008 2007 2006

Supplemental cash flow information:

Cash paid forinterest .......... ... it iiianninnnas $ — $ 115,000 $159,000
Noncash operating activities:

Bonus paid incommon stock ... ... $ 1,808000 $ 250,000 $§ —
Noncash financing activities

Accretion and dividends on preferred stock . . ........ ... ... .. 3 — § 471,000 3516,000

Conversion of convertible preferred stock to common stock ..... 3 —  $11,009000 $ -
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired:

Net assets acquired (liabilities assomed) ............... .. .... $ 937,034 $ (120,000y § —

Goodwill and intangible assets . ... ......... ... ool 16,722,741 780,000 —
Total cost of aCQUISILIONS .. ... i i i i i 17,659,775 660,000 —
Less:

Cashacquired ...... ... .o (90,084) — _

Value of common stockissued .. ..ot (500,000) — —

Deferred purchase price . .......... ... ... ..o i i (703,181) — —
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired ................... $16,366,510 $ 660,000 § -
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Balance at Balance at
Beginning Charged to End
of Period Expense Deductions of Period
Allowance for doubtful accounts (deducted from accounts
receivable)
Yearended March 31,2006 ......................... $ 289501 $ (86,923) $(36,262) $ 166,316
Yearended March 31,2007 ............ .. oo ... 166,316 13,396 — 179,712
Yearended March 31,2008 . .................. .. .... 179,712 67,185 —_ 246,897
Balance at Balance at
Beginning Charged to End
) of Period Expense Deductions of Period
Deferred tax valuation allowance (deducted from net
deferred taxes)
Yearended March 31,2006 ....... ... ... ... ......... $5,969,706 $ (67,135 $§ — § 5902571
Yearended March 31,2007 ......................... 5,902,571 3,408,840 — 9,311,411
Yearended March 31,2008 ......................... 9311411 1,014,869 — 10,326,280
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